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Mr. Sean Dunagan 
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Washington, DC  20024      No.1:17-cv-00832 
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Dear Mr. Dunagan:   
             
 This is our second interim response to your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) 
request and related lawsuit, seeking emails to or from former Acting Attorney General Sally 
Yates for the period of January 21, 2017, through January 31, 2017.   
 
 By letter dated September 15, 2017, we provided you with an interim response and 
informed you that we were continuing to process records.  At this time, we have completed 
processing of an additional 333 pages of records responsive to your request and are continuing 
to process an additional 110 pages of responsive records.  I have determined that 251 pages are 
appropriate for release without excision.  I have also determined that eighty-two pages are 
appropriate for release with certain excisions made pursuant Exemptions 5 and 6 of the FOIA, 
5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(5) and (b)(6), and copies are enclosed.  Exemption 5 pertains to certain 
inter- and intra-agency communications protected by the deliberative process privilege and 
attorney work-product privilege.  Exemption 6 pertains to information the release of which 
would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of the personal privacy of third parties.  
Information has also been withheld on behalf of the Federal Bureau of Investigation pursuant 
to FOIA Exemption 7(C) and 7(E), 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(C) and (b)(7)(E), which involves 
records or information compiled for law enforcement purposes, the release of which could 
reasonably be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of the personal privacy of third 
parties.    
  
 For your information, Congress excluded three discrete categories of law enforcement 
and national security records from the requirements of the FOIA.  See 5 U.S.C. § 552(c) (2015) 
(amended 2016).  This response is limited to those records that are subject to the requirements 
of the FOIA.  This is a standard notification that is given to all our requesters and should not be 
taken as an indication that excluded records do, or do not, exist. 
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 If you have any questions regarding this response, please contact James Bickford of the 
Department’s Civil Division, Federal Programs Branch, at (202) 305-7632.    
 
 Sincerely, 
  
 
 
  Daniel R. Castellano 
  Senior Attorney 
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 10:17 PM


To: 


Subject: FW: Immigration


-----Original Message-----

From: Delahanty, Thomas (USAME) [mailto:Thomas.Delahanty@usdoj.gov]


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 9:58 PM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG) (JMD) <Sally.Yates2@usdoj.gov>


Subject: Immigration


You are my new hero.


Being a native Mainer, your stand on principle reminds me of Sen. Margaret Chase Smith  in her "Declaration of


Conscience" when she called out Sen. Joe McCarthy for his witch hunt on Communism.


Thank you.....


Tom Delahanty


THOMAS E. DELAHANTY II


United States Attorney


District of Maine
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 10:17 PM


To: 


Subject: FW: I am so proud


-----Original Message-----

From: Weissmann, Andrew (CRM)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 9:50 PM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG) <sayates@jmd.usdoj.gov>


Subject: I am so proud


And in awe.  Thank you so much.


All my deepest respects,


Andrew Weissmann


Sent from my iPhone
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 10:17 PM


To: 


Subject: FW: Thank you


-----Original Message-----

From: Aloi, Elizabeth


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 10:11 PM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG) <sayates@jmd.usdoj.gov>


Subject: Thank you


Thank you for your service.  Inspirational and heroic.


Liz Aloi


Sent from my iPhone
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 8:58 PM


To: 


Subject: FW: Your Message on the EO


-----Original Message-----

From: Rice, Emily (USANH) [mailto:Emily.Rice@usdoj.gov]


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 7:16 PM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG) (JMD) <Sally.Yates2@usdoj.gov>


Subject: Your Message on the EO


AAG Yates, thank you, as always, for making us proud.  It is truly an honor to work for you.


Gratefully,


Emily Gray Rice


Sent from my iPhone
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 9:07 PM


To: 


Subject: FW: Message from the Acting Attorney General


From: McQuade, Barbara (USAMIE) [mailto:Barbara.McQuade@usdoj.gov]

Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 6:30 PM

To: Yates, Sally (ODAG) (JMD) <Sally.Yates2@usdoj.gov>

Subject: Fwd: Message from the Acting Attorney General


Thank you for your courage and leadership. This is wonderful news.


Barbara L. McQuade


United States Attorney


Eastern District of Michigan


211 West Fort Street, Suite 2001


Detroit, Michigan 48226


Offic 


Mobil 


barbara.mcquade@usdoj.gov


Begin forwarded message:
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On January 27, 2017, the President signed an Executive Order regarding immigrants and


refugees from certain Muslim-majority countries.  The order has now been challenged in a


number of jurisdictions.  As the Acting Attorney General, it is my ultimate responsibility to


determine the position of the Department of Justice in these actions. 

My role is different from that of the Office of Legal Counsel (OLC), which, through


administrations of both parties, has reviewed Executive Orders for form and legality before


they are issued.  OLC’s review is limited to the narrow question of whether, in OLC’s view, a


proposed Executive Order is lawful on its face and properly drafted.  Its review does not take


account of statements made by an administration or it surrogates close in time to the issuance of


an Executive Order that may bear on the order’s purpose.  And importantly, it does not address

whether any policy choice embodied in an Executive Order is wise or just.


Similarly, in litigation, DOJ Civil Division lawyers are charged with advancing


reasonable legal arguments that can be made supporting an Executive Order.  But my role as

leader of this institution is different and broader.  My responsibility is to ensure that the position


of the Department of Justice is not only legally defensible, but is informed by our best view of


what the law is after consideration of all the facts.  In addition, I am responsible for ensuring that

the positions we take in court remain consistent with this institution’s solemn obligation to


always seek justice and stand for what is right. At present, I am not convinced that the defense of


the Executive Order is consistent with these responsibilities nor am I convinced that the


Executive Order is lawful. 

 Consequently, for as long as I am the Acting Attorney General, the Department of


Justice will not present arguments in defense of the Executive Order, unless and until I become


convinced that it is appropriate to do so.   
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From: Horn, John (USAGAN) <John.Horn@usdoj.gov>


Sent: Friday, January 27, 2017 2:11 PM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG) (JMD); Schools, Scott (ODAG) (JMD)


Cc: Wilkinson, Monty (USAEO)


Subject: LaGrange Ga


Every now and again, being US Attorney allows me to participate in things that change my life.

Yesterday was one of those events. If you’re needing a lift to your day, this is it.


Nearly 8 Decades Later, an Apology for a Lynching in Georgia


By ALAN BLINDER and RICHARD FAUSSETJAN. 26, 2017


Photo


Ernest Ward, right, the N.A.A.C.P. president in Troup County, Ga., said he had “a newfound respect”

for Louis M. Dekmar, the police chief in LaGrange. Credit Dustin Chambers for The New York Times


LaGRANGE, Ga.  Some people here had never heard about the lynching of Austin Callaway 

about how, almost 77 years ago, he was dragged out of a jail cell by a band of masked white men,

then shot and left for dead.


Some people never forgot.


But on Thursday evening, the fatal cruelties inflicted upon Mr. Callaway  long obscured by time,

fear, professional malfeasance and a reluctance to investigate the sins of the past  were

acknowledged in this city of 31,000 people when LaGrange’s police chief, Louis M. Dekmar, who is

white, issued a rare apology for a Southern lynching.


“I sincerely regret and denounce the role our Police Department played in Austin’s lynching, both

through our action and our inaction,” Chief Dekmar told a crowd at a traditionally African-American

church. “And for that, I’m profoundly sorry. It should never have happened.”


He also said that all citizens had the right to expect that their police department “be honest, decent,

unbiased and ethical.”


The apology for the Sept. 8, 1940, killing is part of a renewed push across the American South to

acknowledge the brutal mob violence that was used to enforce the system of racial segregation after

Reconstruction: In a 2015 study, the Equal Justice Initiative, a nonprofit based in Montgomery, Ala.,

documented 4,075 of what it called the “racial terror lynchings” of blacks by white mobs in 12

Southern states from 1877 to 1950.
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The group has begun construction of a memorial to lynching victims in Montgomery, which could

open by March 2018.


To Chief Dekmar, however, the apology in the town he has called home since 1995 is about more

than righting history’s wrongs. It is also an effort, in the age of the Black Lives Matter movement, to

address some of the deepest roots of minority mistrust in the police, and create a better working

relationship between officers and the community.


“It became clear that something needed to be done to recognize that some things we did in the past

are a burden still carried by officers today,” Chief Dekmar said in a recent phone interview.

“Institutions are made up of people, and relationships go like this: Before you trust somebody, you

need to know that they know that they did you wrong, and that you’re stepping up and apologizing for

it.”


Photo


A Sept. 9, 1940, article in The New York Times about the lynching of Austin Callaway. The fatal

cruelties inflicted upon him are to be acknowledged Thursday evening. Credit The New York Times


Chief Dekmar, 61, a New Jersey native raised in Oregon, embraces a view of law enforcement that

extends beyond the narrow goals of protecting the good and locking up the bad.


He tends to speak about his department as one organ of a broader social body, though one that is

perhaps more exposed than others to its ills. He leads regular meetings of a “community outreach

committee” in which he shares with other civic leaders what his officers see on the streets 

homelessness, juvenile delinquency, children with learning and literacy issues  and looks for ways

that various small-town entities might work together to solve them. He has also sought to address

trust issues: The department, he said, has mandated the use of body cameras on officers for the last

five years.


The chief became familiar with the lynching of Mr. Callaway only about two or three years ago, when

one of his officers overheard two older African-American women who were looking at old photos of

the LaGrange police on display at the headquarters building.


One woman said to the other, “They killed our people.”


Chief Dekmar began researching the episode but found, he said, only “sketchy reports”  there was

“no investigation I could find, no arrest, no follow-up by the media.”


Indeed, the details of the crime appear to have been deliberately obscured for the 1940-era residents

of LaGrange. Then, in 2014, Jason M. McGraw, a student at the Northeastern University School of

Law in Boston, wrote a research paper about the lynching. He noted that while newspapers around

the country had reported that a band of masked whites had abducted Mr. Callaway, the local paper,

The LaGrange Daily News, wrote only that Mr. Callaway had died “as a result of bullets fired by an

unknown person or group of individuals.”


The paper’s headline on the Sept. 9, 1940, article declared, “Negro Succumbs to Shot Wounds.”
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Mr. Callaway is generally believed to have been 16 or 18 years old on Sept. 7, the day he was

arrested and charged with trying to assault a white woman. According to Mr. McGraw’s research, six

white men arrived at the jail that night with at least one gun, forced the jailer to open the cell and

forced Mr. Callaway into a car. He was driven to a spot eight miles away and shot in the head and

arms.


He was later found by a roadside and taken to a hospital, where he died.


Mr. McGraw noted that the investigation of Mr. Callaway’s death fell to the town’s police chief, J. E.

Matthews, and the Troup County sheriff, E. V. Hillyer, but that an investigative report was never made

public.


Chief Dekmar has learned that generations of African-Americans were well aware of what happened.


“There are relatives here and people who still remember,” he said. “Even if those people are not still

alive, down through the generations, that memory is still alive. That’s a burden that officers carry.”


As Chief Dekmar learned more about the case, he decided that something must be done to

acknowledge it. The city he has sworn to protect is less than 70 miles southwest of Atlanta. Before

the Civil War, LaGrange was a wealthy hub in Georgia’s cotton kingdom: Troup County, of which

LaGrange is the seat, had the state’s fifth-largest number of slaves.


Today, according to recent census figures, the city is about 48 percent black and 45 percent white. A

Kia plant in nearby West Point, Ga., suggests an economic future for the area beyond the textile

industry that once sustained it. But nearly one in three LaGrange residents live in poverty.


Photo


The audience at LaGrange College on Thursday for a speech by Representative John Lewis,

Democrat of Georgia. Credit Dustin Chambers for The New York Times


Residents say race relations here, as in many multicultural American communities, run the gamut

from friendly to frayed, depending on the day and the issue. When LaGrange College, a private liberal

arts school in town, announced that it had invited Representative John Lewis, the Georgia Democrat,

to speak at a Martin Luther King Jr. event scheduled for Thursday, protests poured in, in part because

Mr. Lewis had questioned the legitimacy of President Donald J. Trump.


On Thursday, some businesses around town bore signs promoting Mr. Lewis’s appearance, while

some homes featured pro-police signs declaring “Back the Blue.”


For the last two years or so, city and county residents, including Chief Dekmar, have been engaged in

a program of racial reconciliation and racial trust-building. At a monthly meeting this summer, Chief

Dekmar approached the president of the county N.A.A.C.P. chapter, Ernest Ward, and asked if he

would help set up a public apology for the lynching.


Mr. Ward served on the police force for nearly two decades starting in the mid-1980s. He

acknowledged that some of his fellow black residents harbored an us-versus-them attitude toward the

police. “I lost many friends when I became a police officer,” he said, “because they felt that I sold out.”
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He was asked how much the apology would help with day-to-day police work. “I believe it’s a start,”

he said. “And it’s helped me to have a newfound respect for Chief Dekmar.”


“Historically certain people in the white race don’t like to bring up the past when it may not show a

good light on their ancestors,” Mr. Ward said. “And so they would prefer to keep things hidden.”


Chief Dekmar issued his apology to relatives of Mr. Callaway on Thursday night at Warren Temple

United Methodist Church here.


The month after the shooting, Mr. McGraw noted, a church minister named L. W. Strickland wrote to

Thurgood Marshall, the future Supreme Court justice who was then a lawyer for the N.A.A.C.P.,

telling him that the local branch of the rights group had asked the authorities to look into the case, but

that “nothing is being done  not even acknowledgment of our requests.”


Some white LaGrange residents said on Thursday that they were deeply skeptical about whether the

apology would have any practical effect. They noted that the crime took place before most people

here were even born.


“I don’t care if they apologize or don’t,” said Jessie East, 74, who works at a furniture and appliance

shop. “It’s not going to change a thing that happened 77 years ago.”


But to others, including one of Mr. Callaway’s relatives, the apology was a step toward healing.


“I speak your name, Austin Callaway, and ask God for forgiveness for the people that did this

inhumane thing to you,” Deborah Tatum, a descendant of Mr. Callaway, told the congregation. “Some

might say ‘forgiveness’? And I say to you that I believe God when he tells us that there is power and

freedom in forgiveness.”


Alan Blinder reported from LaGrange, and Richard Fausset from Atlanta.
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From: McCord, Mary (NSD)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 12:49 PM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG); Axelrod, Matthew (ODAG)


Subject: please call when available
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From: Tomney, Brian (ODAG)


Sent: Friday, January 27, 2017 8:25 AM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Subject: FW: Photos 3


Attachments: P011817PS-0820.jpg; P011817PS-0821.jpg; P011817PS-0829.jpg; P011817PS-0836.jpg;


P011817PS-0840.jpg; P011817PS-0844.jpg; P011817PS-0846.jpg; P011817PS-0847.jpg;


P011817PS-0850.jpg


Good morning, I won’t send you all the photos, but I thought you might like a few in this set. Thank you for


everything! Brian


From: Claire McComb ]


Sent: Thursday, January 26, 2017 8:51 AM


To: Robert.A.Zauzmer@usdoj.gov; Brian.Tomney2@usdoj.gov


Subject: Photos 3


Please note that these photos are being sent to you for personal use only. If you share them with friends or


family, make sure to include the disclaimer below. Thank you.


President Barack Obama greets clemency staff including representatives from the Pardon Attorney's Office, the


Deputy Attorney General's Office and the White House Counsel's Office, and joins them for a group photo on


the Rose Garden Colonnade steps of the White House, Jan. 18, 2017. (Official White House Photo by Pete


Souza)


This photograph is provided by THE WHITE HOUSE as a courtesy and may be printed by the subject(s) in the


photograph for personal use only. The photograph may not be manipulated in any way and may not otherwise


be reproduced, disseminated or broadcast, without the written permission of the White House Photo Office.


This photograph may not be used in any commercial or political materials, advertisements, emails, products,


promotions that in any way suggests approval or endorsement of the President, the First Family, or the White


House.
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 2:54 PM


To: 


Subject: letter


Attachments: letter.docx
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From: Gamble, Nathaniel (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 7:00 PM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Subject: Before you leave for the day


If you want to say hello, Josh is here cleaning out some of his files. But he knows you are busy/on the phone


and can see you another time.
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 9:00 PM


To: 


Subject: FW: Channing Phillips  (cell)


From: Gamble, Nathaniel (ODAG)

Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 6:31 PM

To: Yates, Sally (ODAG) <sayates@jmd.usdoj.gov>

Subject: Channing Phillips  (cell)
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG) <sayates@jmd.usdoj.gov>


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 11:08 PM


To: 


Subject: Test
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From: Gamble, Nathaniel (ODAG)


Sent: Tuesday, January 31, 2017 1:05 PM


To: Brinkley, Winnie (ODAG); Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Subject: Calls:


If any legitimate calls come in for former AG Yates, you can send them to me and I will make sure she gets


them.


Thanks in advance,
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 10:16 PM


To: 


Subject: FW: To best serve the nation and the world


From  On Behalf Of L Sommerfeld

Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 9:10 PM

To: Yates, Sally (ODAG) <Sally.Yates2@usdoj.gov>

Subject: Fwd: To best serve the nation and the world


Hi Sally,


Some night.


I received the following and thought you might be interested, if you find time and have the inclination

to read it.


Be well!


Larry


---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: President L. Rafael Rei 

Date: Monday, January 30, 2017

Subject: To best serve the nation and the world

To 


http://mit.imodules.com/s/1314/images/gid13/editor/institute president/10-07-
2015 emailheader reif.jpg


To the members of the MIT community,
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For those of you who have been following the developments at MIT since Friday, I was hoping to

write to you today with some uplifting news. Yet, as I write, we continue to push hard to bring back to

MIT those members of our community, including two undergraduates, who were barred from the US

because of the January 27 Executive Order on immigration. We are working personally with all the

affected individuals we are aware of. If you know of other students, faculty or staff who are directly

affected, please inform us immediately so we can try to help:


 International Students Office  [international-students@mit.edu]


 International Scholars Offic r [international-scholars@mit.edu]


Over and over since the order was issued, I have been moved by the outpouring of support from

hundreds across our community. I could not be more proud, and I am certain that you join me in

thanking everyone inside and outside of MIT whose extraordinary efforts have helped us address this

difficult situation. We hope we can welcome everyone back to MIT very soon.


MIT, the nation and the world

I found the events of the past few days deeply disturbing. The difficulty we have encountered in

seeking to help the individuals from our community heightens our overall sense of concern. I would

like to reflect on the situation we find ourselves in, as an institution and as a country.


MIT is profoundly American. The Institute was founded deliberately to accelerate the nation’s

industrial revolution. With classic American ingenuity and drive, our graduates have invented

fundamental technologies, launched new industries and created millions of American jobs. Our

history of national service stretches back to World War I; especially through the work of Lincoln Lab,

we are engaged every day in keeping America safe. We embody the American passion for boldness,

big ideas, hard work and hands-on problem-solving. Our students come to us from every faith, culture

and background and from all fifty states. And, like other institutions rooted in science and engineering,

we are proud that, for many of our students, MIT supplies their ladder to the middle class, and

sometimes beyond. We are as American as the flag on the Moon.


At the same time, and without the slightest sense of contradiction, MIT is profoundly global. Like the

United States, and thanks to the United States, MIT gains tremendous strength by being a magnet for

talent from around the world. More than 40% of our faculty, 40% of our graduate students and 10% of

our undergraduates are international. Faculty, students, post-docs and staff from 134 other nations

join us here because they love our mission, our values and our community. And  as I have  a great

many stay in this country for life, repaying the American promise of freedom with their energy and

their ideas. Together, through teaching, research, and innovation, MIT’s magnificently global,

absolutely American community pursues its mission of service to the nation and the world.
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What the moment demands of us

The Executive Order on Friday appeared to me a stunning violation of our deepest American values,

the values of a nation of immigrants: fairness, equality, openness, generosity, courage. The Statue of

Liberty is the “Mother of Exiles”; how can we slam the door on desperate refugees? Religious liberty

is a founding American value; how can our government discriminate against people of any religion? In

a nation made rich by immigrants, why would we signal to the world that we no longer welcome new

talent? In a nation of laws, how can we reject students and others who have established legal rights

to be here? And if we accept this injustice, where will it end? Which group will be singled out for

suspicion tomorrow?


On Sunday, many members of our campus community joined a protest in Boston to make plain their

rejection of these policies and their support for our Muslim friends and colleagues. As an immigrant

and the child of refugees, I join them, with deep feeling, in believing that the policies announced

Friday tear at the very fabric of our society.


I encourage anyone who shares that view to work constructively to improve the situation.

Institutionally, though we may not be vocal in every instance, you can be confident we are paying

attention; as we strive to protect our community, sustain our mission and advance our shared values,

we will speak and act when and where we judge we can be most effective.


Yet I would like us to think seriously about the fact that both within the MIT community and the nation

at large, there are people of goodwill who see the measures in the Executive Order as a reasonable

path to make the country safer. We would all like our nation to be safe. I am convinced that the

Executive Order will make us less safe. Yet all of us, across the spectrum of opinion, are Americans.


In this heated moment, I urge every one of us to avoid with all our might the forces that are driving

America into two camps. If we love America, and if we believe in America, we cannot allow those

divisions to grow worse. We need to imagine a shared future together, if we hope to have one. I am

certain our community can help work on this great problem, too, by starting right here at home.


Sincerely,


L. Rafael Reif
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MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

77 MASSACHUSETTS AVE, W98-300 | CAMBRIDGE, MA 02139


If you wish to be removed from this mailing list, click here.


http://emclick.imodules.com/wf/open?upn=YRsKMklngQfYgNhgARByUJGyVWV-
2BVvgbiytF8fV82AWsNlpJcNJ7MpQIc0Eo8zENkVsfrZ79ALkJsx8XUuXcQZVhaebMIhmN4q2EOl5Jj


DGsX4t26XpzQkVQwQC2kxk-2BVWN6pfgCXDrgZT9JNIZ9zlr-
2FuXVgvXKu9LiMAw1rZSq62sxpJmFN8jugftJveSFCDvhbRYCrmVIpm3GBLr2wGG2lrGHJvbnFaoX


YLBbnxuTEWh0r52XDbMdoRL8qRSI-
2BinOjC4BMG2VI3oKxXqTqxYCJnPdJfzIZ5TakmKsurgFJqagq0YJCgBu9XnTRqAurph3MveffoPW4


N5TUsEviGOEoTiaNrH6A2m-2F66ja581gX-2BVYz-2BzvaCnhl3f1r7B4j-2FE-
2BbWpVt1jISjdJCXurcd5Ku9-2B8CQkryia6H4SLXNwjp1L-2BU8yGmF9LExsopP0sg8ZPI4C31Qz-

2FmEh2OKvOVklApvHvXUa93oFjg6ZEwC9E-3D
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From: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 10:16 PM


To: 


Subject: FW: Notice of Removal


Attachments: [Untitled].pdf; ATT00001.txt


-----Original Message-----

From: DeStefano, John J. EOP/WH 


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 9:05 PM


To: sally.yates2@usdoj.gov


Subject: Notice of Removal


Please see attached.


John J. DeStefano


Assistant to the President


Director, Presidential Personnel


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5032

(b)(6) former Acting Attorney General Yates 
personal email
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On Jan 28, 2017, at 4:18 PM, Carr, Peter (OPA) <pcarr@jmd.usdoj.gov> wrote: 

 

On Jan 28, 2017, at 3:52 PM, Axelrod, Matthew (ODAG) <maaxelrod@jmd.usdoj.gov> wrote: 

 

Issues with download - this section is 
a duplicate of above - below is the 
message that follows

(b) (5)
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Peter, what kind of incoming are we getting?   

 

 

Thanks, 

Matt 

 

On Jan 28, 2017, at 2:42 PM, Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC) > wrote: 

 

  

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC) [mailto: ] 

Sent: Saturday, January 28, 2017 1:57 PM 

To: Axelrod, Matthew (ODAG) <maaxelrod@jmd.usdoj.gov>; Carr, Peter (OPA) 

<pcarr@jmd.usdoj.gov> 

Cc: Hart, Rosemary (OLC) < >; Koffsky, Daniel L (OLC) 

< >; Raimondi, Marc (OPA) <mraimondi@jmd.usdoj.gov>; 

; Crowell, James (ODAG) <jcrowell@jmd.usdoj.gov> 

Subject: RE: EO review  

 

 

.  

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: Axelrod, Matthew (ODAG) [mailto:maaxelrod@jmd.usdoj.gov]  

Sent: Saturday, January 28, 2017 1:52 PM 

To: Carr, Peter (OPA) <pcarr@jmd.usdoj.gov> 

Cc: Hart, Rosemary (OLC) < >; Koffsky, Daniel L (OLC) 

< >; Raimondi, Marc (OPA) <mraimondi@jmd.usdoj.gov>; 

Crowell, James (ODAG) <jcrowell@jmd.usdoj.gov> 

Subject: Re: EO review  

 

Please hold.  I will send a revised version around in a little bit. 

 

On Jan 28, 2017, at 1:32 PM, Carr, Peter (OPA) <pcarr@jmd.usdoj.gov> wrote: 
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(b) (6)

(b) (6)
(b) (6)

(b) (6)
(b) (6)
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(b) (6)

(b) (5)
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(b)(6) - Curtis Gannon Email Address

(b)(6) - Curtis Gannon Email Address
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On Jan 28, 2017, at 12:49 PM, Axelrod, Matthew (ODAG) <maaxelrod@jmd.usdoj.gov> wrote: 

 

 

 

On Jan 28, 2017, at 12:46 PM, Axelrod, Matthew (ODAG) <maaxelrod@jmd.usdoj.gov> wrote: 

 

OLC, 

 

We've been getting media inquiries about the EO process.   

 

 

 

Thanks, 

Matt 
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(b) (5)

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



1


From: Axelrod, Matthew (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 5:53 PM


To: Yates, Sally (ODAG)


Subject: FW: Message from the Acting Attorney General


Attachments: Message from the Acting Attorney General.pdf


From: Axelrod, Matthew (ODAG)


Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 5:53 PM


To: Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC) <cegannon@jmd.usdoj.gov>; Parker, Rachel (ASG) <racparker@jmd.usdoj.gov>; Whitaker,


Henry (ASG) <hwhitaker@jmd.usdoj.gov>; Schools, Scott (ODAG) <sschools@jmd.usdoj.gov>; Aminfar, Amin (ODAG)


<amaminfar@jmd.usdoj.gov>; Swartz, Bruc @CRM.USDOJ.GOV>; Branda, Joyce (CIV)


<JBranda@CIV.USDOJ.GOV>; Flentje, August (CIV) <AFlentje@CIV.USDOJ.GOV>; Readler, Chad A. (CIV)


<creadler@CIV.USDOJ.GOV>; Terwilliger, Zachary (ODAG) <zterwilliger@jmd.usdoj.gov>; Crowell, James (ODAG)


<jcrowell@jmd.usdoj.gov>; Murray, Michael (ODAG) <mmurray@jmd.usdoj.gov>


Subject: Message from the Acting Attorney General


All,


Thanks so much for meeting with the Acting Attorney General earlier today. Attached, please find a message from


her. Please make sure that others who are working on these matters are made aware of her direction as well.


Thanks,


Matt


Matthew S. Axelrod


Office of the Deputy Attorney General


U.S. Department of Justice


Desk: (202) 514-2105


Cell: 


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5116
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Carmen Iguina (CA SBN #277369)

Jennifer Pasquarella (CA SBN #263241)

Ahilan Arulanantham (CA SBN# 237841)
Peter Bibring (CA SBN #223981)

ACLU of Southern California

1313 West 8th Street
Los Angeles, CA 90017
Telephone: (213) 977-9500

Facsimile: (213) 977-5297

Email: ciguina@aclusocal.org
Email: jpasquarella@aclusocal.org
Email: aarulanantham@aclusocal.org
Email: pbibring@aclusocal.org

Stacy Tolchin (CA SBN #217431)

Megan Brewer (CA SBN#268248)

Law Offices of Stacy Tolchin
634 S. Spring St., Suite 500A
Los Angeles, CA 90014
Telephone: (213) 622-7450

Facsimile: (213) 622-7233

Email: Stacy@Tolchinimmigration.com
Email: Megan@Tolchinimmigration.com

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

FATEMA FARMAD, MARZIEH 
MOOSAVIZADEH YAZDI, 
 
 Petitioners, 
  
v. 
 
DONALD TRUMP, President of the United 
States; JOHN F. KELLY, Secretary, 
Department of Homeland Security; U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND 
SECURITY (“DHS”); U.S. CUSTOMS AND

BORDER PROTECTION (“CBP”); KEVIN

K. MCALEENAN, Acting Commissioner of

CBP; and MITCHELL MERRIAM, Los
Angeles Field Director, CBP,

           Respondents. 

Case No. 2:17-cv-706

PETITION FOR WRIT OF

HABEAS CORPUS AND

COMPLAINT FOR

DECLARATORY AND

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
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  INTRODUCTION

1. Petitioners are forced to file this action on short notice because


Respondents have unlawfully detained Petitioners at Los Angeles International


Airport (“LAX Airport”) and are coercing them in an attempt to forcibly expel them


from the United States. 

2. Petitioner Fatema Farmad is a native of Iran, but has been a lawful


permanent resident of the United States for about the last five years. She has applied

for United States citizenship and her application has been granted. Her swearing-in


as a United States citizen is scheduled for February 13, 2017. She arrived at LAX


Airport on January 28, 2017 on a flight from Amsterdam, accompanied by her infant


son, who is a United States citizen, and her mother-in-law, who is also a lawful


permanent resident of the United States. Petitioner Farmad was returning from Iran


after visiting her family, whom she had not seen in about four years. Petitioner and


her mother in law have both been refused entry and are being detained at LAX.


Petitioner Farmad was outside the United States for approximately 44 days. 

3. Petitioner Marzieh Moosavizadeh Yazdi is an Iranian citizen and has

been a lawful permanent resident of the United States since 1997. She is seventy-

two years old. She suffers from poor health, having suffered two heart attacks, two

triple bypass surgeries, and chronic pulmonary obstructive disorder. She was

returning to the United States from Iran via Turkey. Her flight landed at 4:15 p.m.

on January 28, 2017. CBP officials refused to admit her to the United States, and

detained her. Her grandson received a phone call from her around 6:00 pm when

her wheelchair attendant allowed her to place a call to him and translate for her


what was happening. Petitioner does not speak English. Her grandson has not heard

from her or received any other information about her situation since.

4. Even though Petitioners were returning home to the United States as 

lawful permanent resident, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”) blocked
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Petitioners from exiting LAX Airport and detained Petitioners therein. No magistrate


has determined that there is sufficient justification for the continued detention of


Petitioners. Instead, CBP is holding Petitioners at LAX Airport solely pursuant to an


executive order issued by President Donald Trump on January 27, 2017. Although


the executive order never authorized officials to deny them re-entry, it was in any


event stayed by a federal district court on January 28, 2017. See infra. Upon

information and belief, Respondents are coercing Petitioner Farmad and other

individuals in their custody to sign a form to relinquish their lawful permanent


resident status and return to their home countries. Petitioners have been denied access


to counsel while being sequestered at LAX Airport for hours on end.

5. Because the executive order is unlawful as applied to Petitioners, their


continued detention based solely on the executive order violates the Immigration and


Nationality Act, their Fifth Amendment procedural and substantive due process


rights, the First Amendment Establishment Clause, and the Administrative Procedure


Act and Religious Freedom Restoration Act. Further, Petitioners’ continued unlawful


detention is part of a widespread policy, pattern, and practice applied to many


refugees and arriving noncitizens detained after the issuance of the January 27, 2017


executive order. Therefore, Petitioners respectfully apply to this Court for a writ of


habeas corpus to remedy their unlawful detention by Respondents, and for


declaratory and injunctive relief to prevent such harms from recurring.


6. On January 28, 2017, the Honorable Ann M. Donnelly of the U.S.


District Court for the Eastern District of New York issued a nationwide stay of


removal which provides that the federal government is “enjoined and restrained


from, in any manner, removing individuals with refugee applications approved by


U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services as part of the U.S. Refugee Admissions


Program, holders of valid immigrant and non-immigrant visas, and other individuals


from Iraq, Syria, Iran, Sudan, Libya, Somalia, and Yemen legally authorized to enter
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the United States.” The court found that the “petitioners have a strong likelihood of


success in establishing that the removal of the petitioner and other similarly situation


violates their rights to Due Process and Equal Protection guaranteed by the United


States Constitution.” A copy of the order is attached as Exhibit A.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

7. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28


U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1361, 2241, 2243, and the Habeas Corpus Suspension Clause of the


U.S. Constitution. This court has further remedial authority pursuant to the


Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 et seq.


8. Venue properly lies within the Central District of California because a


substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to this action occurred in the


District. 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).

9. No petition for habeas corpus has previously been filed in any court to


review Petitioner’s case.


PARTIES

10. Petitioner Fatema Farmad is a native of Iran, but is a lawful permanent

resident of the United States. Upon information and belief, she has held that status

for about the last five years. She is currently detained at LAX Airport and is being


denied entry into the United States, despite her returning lawful permanent resident

status.


11. Petitioner Marzieh Moosavizadeh Yazdi is a native of Iran and has been


a lawful permanent since 1997. She is currently detained at LAX Airport and is being

denied entry into the United States solely on the basis of the January 27, 2017


Executive Order issued by Respondent Donald Trump.


12. The U.S. Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) is a cabinet


department of the United States federal government with the primary mission of


securing the United States.
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13. U.S. Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”) is an agency within DHS


with the primary mission of detecting and preventing the unlawful entry of persons


and goods into the United States.


14. Respondent John Kelly is the Secretary of DHS. Secretary Kelly has


immediate custody of Petitioner. He is sued in his official capacity.

15. Respondent Kevin K. McAleenan is the Acting Commissioner of CBP.

Acting Commissioner McAleenan has immediate custody of Petitioner. He is sued


in his official capacity.

16. Respondent Mitchell Merriam is the Director of the Los Angeles Field


Office of CBP, which has immediate custody of. He is sued in his official capacity.

17. Respondent Donald Trump is the President of the United States. He is


sued in his official capacity.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

President Trump’s January 27, 2017 Executive Order

18. On January 20, 2017, Donald Trump was inaugurated as the forty-fifth


President of the United States. During his campaign, he stated that he would ban


Muslims from entering the United States. 

19. On January 27, one week after his inauguration, President Trump signed


an executive order entitled, “Protecting the Nation from Foreign Terrorist Entry into


the United States,” which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and is hereinafter referred


to as the “EO.” 

20. In statements to the press in connection with his issuance of the EO,


President Trump stated that his order would help Christian refugees to enter the


United States. 

21. Citing the threat of terrorism committed by foreign nationals, the EO


directs a variety of changes to the manner and extent to which non-citizens may seek


and obtain entry to the United States. Among other things, the EO imposes a 120-
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day moratorium on the refugee resettlement program as a whole; proclaims that “that


the entry of nationals of Syria as refugees is detrimental to the interests of the United


States”; and therefore singles out Syrian refugees for an indefinite “suspension” on


their admission to the country.

22. Most relevant to the instant action is Section 3(c) of the EO, in which


President Trump proclaims “that the immigrant and nonimmigrant entry into the


United States of aliens from countries referred to in section 217(a)(12) of the INA, 8


U.S.C. 1187(a)(12), would be detrimental to the interests of the United States,” and


that he is therefore “suspend[ing] entry into the United States, as immigrants and


nonimmigrants, of such persons for 90 days from the date of this order,” with narrow


exceptions not relevant here.

23. There are seven countries that fit the criteria in 8 U.S.C. § 1187(a)(12):

Iraq, Iran, Libya, Somalia, Sudan, Syria, and Yemen. According to the terms of the


EO, therefore, the “entry into the United States” of non-citizens from those countries

is “suspended” from 90 days from the date of the EO.

Petitioner Fatema Farmad

24. Petitioner Fatema Farmad is a native of Iran, but lives in Minnesota with


her husband and infant son. She is a lawful permanent resident of the United States,


and has held her green card for about the past five years. She has applied for U.S.


citizenship, and the United States has granted her citizenship application. Her


swearing-in as a United States citizen has been set for February 13, 2017. Petitioner


Farmad is Muslim.

25. Petitioner Farmad arrived at LAX at about noon on January 28, 2017 on


a flight from Amsterdam on KLM airlines. She is traveling with her 11-month-old


son, who is a United States citizen, and her mother-in-law, Latifeh Mashayekh. 

26. Upon their arrival at LAX, CBP officers detained Petitioner Farmad, her


son, and her mother-in-law. 
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27. After a district court in Darweesh v. Trump, No. 17-cv-0480 (E.D.N.Y.,

filed Jan. 28, 2017), issued a temporary order barring the removal of individuals


pursuant to the Executive Order, and after Petitioner Farhad had been detained for


numerous hours, CBP officials in Los Angeles attempted to get Petitioner Farmad to


sign a form I-407, by which she would have abandoned her lawful permanent resident


status.


28. Petitioner is not being permitted to meet with her attorneys who are


present at LAX Airport and have made multiple attempts to meet with her.

29. Upon knowledge and belief, Petitioner remains in the custody of CBP


at LAX Airport.


30. Petitioner remains detained at LAX Airport and has not been permitted


to go home to Minnesota. 

Petitioner Marzieh Moosavizadeh Yazdi

31. Petitioner Marzieh Moosavizadeh Yazdi is an Iranian citizen and has

been a lawful permanent resident of the United States since 1997.  She is seventy-

two years old.

32. Petitioner Moosavizadeh Yazdi suffers from poor health, having

suffered two heart attacks, two triple bypass surgeries, and chronic pulmonary


obstructive disorder.

33. She was returning to the United States from Iran via Turkey.  Her


flight landed at 4:15pm on January 28, 2017 and she was detained by CBP.  Her


grandson received a phone call from her around 6:00 pm when her wheelchair


attendant allowed her to place a call to him and translate for her what was

happening.

34. Petitioner Moosavizadeh Yazdi does not speak English and was born

into the Muslim faith. Her grandson has not heard from her or received any other


information about her situation since. 
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35. Moosavizadeh Yazdi has not had access to counsel during her


detention, and upon information and belief she is being coerced into abandoning

her permanent residency, by signing a Form I-407.

36. Congress has provided that lawful permanent residents in Petitioner’s


situation are entitled to enter the United States. Under 8 U.S.C. § 1101(a)(13)(C), a


lawful permanent resident is regarded as seeking an admission into the United States


for purposes of the immigration laws” only if he or she “has abandoned or


relinquished that status,” id. § 1101(a)(13)(C)(i), has been absent from the United


States for more than 180 days continuously, is in removal proceedings, has


committed one of a class of enumerated offenses, or has attempted to enter without

inspection. 

37. None of the foregoing circumstances applies to Petitioners and therefore


they are not deemed to be seeking admission and have a right to enter. In In


re Collado Munoz, 21 I. & N. Dec. 1061, 1065-1066 (1998) (en banc) (requiring


immigration judge to look to 8 U.S.C. § 1101(a)(13)(C) in determining whether


lawful permanent resident was applicant for admission); Vartelas v. Holder, 566 U.S.


257, 132 S. Ct. 1479, 1484, 182 L. Ed. 2d 473 (2012) (citing In re Collado-Munoz

and recognizing that the definition supersedes previous statute’s definition of entry). 

38. Respondents are also detaining Petitioners in violation of the Due


Process Clause. In Rosenberg v. Fleuti, 374 U.S. 449, 462 (1963), the Supreme Court


held that “an innocent, casual, and brief excursion by a resident alien outside this


country's borders may not have been intended as a departure disruptive of his resident


alien status and therefore may not subject him to the consequences of an entry into


the country on his return.” (internal quotation marks and citations omitted); see also

Kwong Hai Chew v. Colding, 344 U.S. 590, 601-02 (1953) (assimilating status, for


constitutional purposes, of lawful permanent resident who had been abroad for five


months to that of one continuously present). The Supreme Court reaffirmed this
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constitutional principle in Landon v. Plasencia, 459 U.S. 21, 31 (1982) (describing


Chew as standing for the proposition that “a resident alien returning from a brief trip


has a right to due process just as would a continuously present resident alien”). 

39. As longtime lawful permanent residents of the United States, Petitioners


are attempting to return to their homes. They have been left in limbo while detained


by the Respondents for no reason other than the discriminatory and unconstitutional


EO.

CAUSES OF ACTION 

COUNT ONE

IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT 8 U.S.C. § 1101(a)(13)

40. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every


allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

41.  Respondents’ actions in denying Petitioners entry into the United


States, attempting to coerce them into relinquishing their lawful permanent resident


status, and continuing to detain them under color of the immigration laws violate 8


U.S.C. § 1101(a)(13), which requires that returning lawful permanent residents be


granted admission unless they satisfy one of the criteria set forth in the statute, which


Petitioners do not. 

COUNT TWO


FIFTH AMENDMENT  SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS

42.  Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every


allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

43. Respondents’ actions in denying Petitioners entry into the United States,


attempting to coerce them into relinquishing their lawful permanent resident status,


and continuing to detain them under color of the immigration laws violate their right


to substantive due process, because Petitioners cannot be denied the benefits of


lawful permanent resident status in an arbitrary manner. 
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COUNT THREE

FIFTH AMENDMENT  PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS

44. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every


allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

45. Procedural due process requires that the government be constrained


before it acts in a way that deprives individuals of liberty interests protected under


the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment. 

46. In particular, returning lawful permanent residents have constitutional


due process rights with respect to their return to the United States. In evaluating the


due process rights available to a lawful permanent resident, “courts must consider


the interest at stake for the individual, the risk of an erroneous deprivation of the


interest through the procedures used as well as the probable value of additional or


different procedural safeguards, and the interest of the government in using the


current procedures rather than additional or different procedures.” Landon v.


Plasencia, 459 U.S. 21, 34 (1982).


47. Respondents’ actions in denying Petitioners entry into the United States,


attempting to coerce them into relinquishing their lawful permanent resident status,


and continuing to detain them without any hearing or other process, violate the


procedural due process rights guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment. 

COUNT FOUR

FIRST AMENDMENT  ESTABLISHMENT CLAUSE 

48. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every


allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

49. The EO exhibits hostility to a specific religious faith, Islam, and gives


preference to other religious faiths, principally Christianity. The EO therefore


violates the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment by not pursuing a course


of neutrality with regard to different religious faiths.
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COUNT FIVE

FIFTH AMENDMENT  EQUAL PROTECTION

50. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every


allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

51. The EO discriminates against Petitioners on the basis of their country of


origin and religion without sufficient justification, and therefore violates the equal


protection component of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment. 

52. Additionally, the EO was substantially motivated by animus toward 


and has a disparate effect on Muslims, which also violates the equal protection


component of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment. Jana-Rock Const.,


Inc. v. N.Y. State Dep’t of Econ. Dev. , 438 F.3d 195, 204 (2d Cir. 2006); Hunter v.


Underwood, 471 U.S. 222 (1985).

53. Respondents have demonstrated an intent to discriminate against


Petitioners on the basis of religion through repeated public statements that make clear


the EO was designed to prohibit the entry of Muslims to the United States. See


Michael D. Shear & Helene Cooper, Trump Bars Refugees and Citizens of 7 Muslim


Countries, N.Y. Times (Jan. 27, 2017), (“[President Trump] ordered that Christians


and others from minority religions be granted priority over Muslims.”); Carol


Morello, Trump Signs Order Temporarily Halting Admission of Refugees, Promises

Priority for Christians, Wash. Post (Jan. 27, 2017).

54. Applying a general law in a fashion that discriminates on the basis of


religion violates Petitioner’s rights to equal protection under the Fifth Amendment


Due Process Clause. Hayden v. County of Nassau, 180 F.3d 42, 48 (2d Cir. 1999);


Yick Wo v. Hopkins, 118 U.S. 356, 373-74 (1886). Petitioners satisfy the Supreme

Court’s test to determine whether a facially neutral law  in this case, the EO and


federal immigration law  has been applied in a discriminatory fashion. The Supreme


Court requires an individual bringing suit to challenge the application of a law bear
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the burden of demonstrating a “prima facie case of discriminatory purpose.”Vill. of

Arlington Heights v. Metro. Hous. Dev. Corp., 429 U.S. 252, 266-7 (1977). This test


examines the impact of the official action, whether there has been a clear pattern


unexplainable on other grounds besides discrimination, the historical background of


the decision, the specific sequence of events leading up to the challenged decision,


and departures from the normal procedural sequence. Id.

55. Here, President Donald Trump and senior staff have made clear that EO


will be applied to primarily exclude individuals on the basis of their national origin


and religion. See, e.g., Donald J. Trump, Donald J. Trump Statement On Preventing


Muslim Immigration, (Dec. 7, 2015), https://www.donaldjtrump.com/press-

releases/donald-j.-trump-statement-on-preventing-muslim-immigration (“Donald J.


Trump is calling for a total and complete shutdown of Muslims entering the United


States until our country's representatives can figure out what is going on.”); Abby


Phillip and Abigail Hauslohner, Trump on the Future of Proposed Muslim Ban,


Registry: ‘You know my plans’, Wash. Post (Dec. 22, 2016). Further, the President

has promised that preferential treatment will be given to Christians, unequivocally


demonstrating the special preferences and discriminatory impact that the EO has


upon Petitioner. See supra. 

56. Thus, Respondents have applied the EO with forbidden animus and


discriminatory intent in violation of the equal protection component of the Fifth


Amendment.

COUNT SIX

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT

57. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every


allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
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58. Respondents detained and mistreated Petitioners solely pursuant to the


EO, which expressly discriminates against Petitioners on the basis of their country


of origin and was substantially motivated by animus toward Muslims. See supra. 

59. The EO exhibits hostility to a specific religious faith, Islam, and gives


preference to other religious faiths, principally Christianity.

60. The INA forbids discrimination in issuance of visas based on a person’s


race, nationality, place of birth, or place of residence. 8 U.S.C. § 1152(a)(1)(A).

61. Respondents’ actions in detaining and mistreating Petitioners were


arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law,


in violation of APA § 706(2)(A); contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege,


or immunity, in violation of APA § 706(2)(B); in excess of statutory jurisdiction,


authority, or limitations, or short of statutory right, in violation of APA § 706(2)(C);


and without observance of procedure required by law, in violation of § 706(2)(D).

COUNT SEVEN

RELIGIOUS FREEDOM RESTORATION ACT

62. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every


allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

63. The EO will have the effect of imposing a special disability on the basis


of religious views or religious status, by withdrawing an important immigration


benefit principally from Muslims on account of their religion. In doing so, the EO


places a substantial burden on Petitioners’ exercise of religion in a way that is not the


least restrictive means of furthering a compelling governmental interest. 

COUNT EIGHT

COERCION TO ABANDON PERMANENT RESIDENCY

64. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every


allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 
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65. Due process and governing regulations specifically prevent Petitioners


from being coerced into abandoning their permanent resident status.  See 8 C.F.R. §


287.8(c)(2)(vii) (“The use of threats, coercion, or physical abuse by the designated


immigration officer to induce a suspect to waive his or her rights or to make a


statement is prohibited.”).

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Petitioners pray that this Court grant the following relief:

1) Issue a Writ of Habeas Corpus requiring Respondents to release Petitioners;


2) Issue an injunction ordering Respondents not to detain Petitioners solely on

the basis of the EO;

3) Enter an Order declaring that Respondents’ detention of Petitioners is and

will be unauthorized by statute and contrary to law;

4) Issue an injunction prohibiting Respondents from accepting a voluntary


withdrawal of an application for admission or a voluntary relinquishment of


legal status in the United States;

5) Issue an injunction requiring Respondents to inform Petitioners that they are


legally entitled to enter the United States as lawful permanent residents, and

that no federal official can or will take retaliatory action in response to

Petitioners’ refusal to withdraw their applications for admission or refusal to

relinquish legal status in the United States;

6) Issue declaratory relief holding that Respondents have an obligation under


the governing law to inform all individuals detained within their custody that

the Executive Order has been stayed, and that there can be no retaliatory


action taken in response to Petitioners’ refusal to withdraw application for


admission or refusal to relinquish legal status in the United States;
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7) Issue an Order prohibiting Respondents from denying Petitioners admission

to the United States pursuant to their status as lawful permanent residents and

the terms of the Immigration and Nationality Act;

8) Award Petitioners reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees; and

9) Grant any other and further relief that this Court may deem fit and proper.

DATED: January 28, 2017 Respectfully submitted,

 ACLU FOUNDATION OF SOUTHERN

CALIFORNIA


LAW OFFICES OF STACY TOLCHIN

 /s/ Carmen Iguina


 CARMEN IGUINA
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+1*6*<392@ W=12=3<. .- 2,+.*-< >B>R)S -) ./, %HJ@ T 'U (U DU


BBT>R)S @ % /,1,O4 W1-+93*6 ./3. ./, *66*Q13<. 3<7 <-<*66*Q13<.


,<.14 *<.- ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2 -) 39*,<2 )1-6 +-=<.1*,2 1,),11,7


.- *< 2,+.*-< >B?R3S RB>S -) ./, %HJ@ T 'U (U DU BBT?R3S RB>S @ P-=97


O, 7,.1*6,<.39 .- ./, *<.,1,2.2 -) ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2@ 3<7 %


/,1,O4 2=2W,<7 ,<.14 *<.- ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2@ 32 *66*Q13<.2 3<7


<-<*66*Q13<.2@ -) 2=+/ W,12-<2 )-1 [A 7342 )1-6 ./, 73., -) ./*2


-17,1 R,]+9=7*<Q ./-2, )-1,*Q< <3.*-<392 .13N,9*<Q -< 7*W9-63.*+


N*232@ H-1./ J.93<.*+ !1,3.4 &1Q3<*Z3.*-< N*232@ DG> N*232 )-1


.13N,9 .- ./, '<*.,7 H3.*-<2@ 3<7 IGB@ IG>@ IGV@ 3<7 IGb N*232S U


R7S %66,7*3.,94 =W-< 1,+,*W. -) ./, 1,W-1. 7,2+1*O,7 *<


2=O2,+.*-< ROS -) ./*2 2,+.*-< 1,Q317*<Q ./, *<)-163.*-< <,,7,7


)-1 37_=7*+3.*-<2@ ./, (,+1,.314 -) (.3., 2/399 1,a=,2. 399


)-1,*Q< Q-N,1<6,<.2 ./3. 7- <-. 2=WW94 2=+/ *<)-163.*-< .- 2.31.


W1-N*7*<Q 2=+/ *<)-163.*-< 1,Q317*<Q ./,*1 <3.*-<392 P*./*<


cA 7342 -) <-.*)*+3.*-<U


R,S J).,1 ./, cAG734 W,1*-7 7,2+1*O,7 *< 2=O2,+.*-< R7S -)


./*2 2,+.*-< ,]W*1,2@ ./, (,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4@ *<


+-<2=9.3.*-< P*./ ./, (,+1,.314 -) (.3.,@ 2/399 2=O6*. .- ./,


01,2*7,<. 3 9*2. -) +-=<.1*,2 1,+-66,<7,7 )-1 *<+9=2*-< -< 3


01,2*7,<.*39 W1-+9363.*-< ./3. P-=97 W1-/*O*. ./, ,<.14 -)


)-1,*Q< <3.*-<392 R,]+9=7*<Q ./-2, )-1,*Q< <3.*-<392 .13N,9*<Q


-< 7*W9-63.*+ N*232@ H-1./ J.93<.*+ !1,3.4 &1Q3<*Z3.*-< N*232@


DG> N*232 )-1 .13N,9 .- ./, '<*.,7 H3.*-<2@ 3<7 IGB@ IG>@ IGV@


3<7 IGb N*232S )1-6 +-=<.1*,2 ./3. 7- <-. W1-N*7, ./,


*<)-163.*-< 1,a=,2.,7 W=12=3<. .- 2=O2,+.*-< R7S -) ./*2 2,+.*-<


=<.*9 +-6W9*3<+, -++=12U


R)S J. 3<4 W-*<. 3).,1 2=O6*..*<Q ./, 9*2. 7,2+1*O,7 *<


2=O2,+.*-< R,S -) ./*2 2,+.*-<@ ./, (,+1,.314 -) (.3., -1 ./,


(,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 634 2=O6*. .- ./, 01,2*7,<. ./,


<36,2 -) 3<4 377*.*-<39 +-=<.1*,2 1,+-66,<7,7 )-1 2*6*931


.1,3.6,<.U


RQS H-.P*./2.3<7*<Q 3 2=2W,<2*-< W=12=3<. .- 2=O2,+.*-<


R+S -) ./*2 2,+.*-< -1 W=12=3<. .- 3 01,2*7,<.*39 W1-+9363.*-<


7,2+1*O,7 *< 2=O2,+.*-< R,S -) ./*2 2,+.*-<@ ./, (,+1,.31*,2 -)


(.3., 3<7 "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 634@ -< 3 +32,GO4G+32, O32*2@ 3<7


P/,< *< ./, <3.*-<39 *<.,1,2.@ *22=, N*232 -1 -./,1 *66*Q13.*-<


O,<,)*.2 .- <3.*-<392 -) +-=<.1*,2 )-1 P/*+/ N*232 3<7 O,<,)*.2


31, -./,1P*2, O9-+X,7U
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R/S !/, (,+1,.31*,2 -) (.3., 3<7 "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 2/399


2=O6*. .- ./, 01,2*7,<. 3 _-*<. 1,W-1. -< ./, W1-Q1,22 *<


*6W9,6,<.*<Q ./*2 -17,1 P*./*< VA 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2


-17,1@ 3 2,+-<7 1,W-1. P*./*< cA 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2 -17,1@


3 ./*17 1,W-1. P*./*< [A 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2 -17,1@ 3<7 3


)-=1./ 1,W-1. P*./*< B>A 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2 -17,1U


(,+U bU %6W9,6,<.*<Q '<*)-16 (+1,,<*<Q (.3<73172 )-1 J99


%66*Q13.*-< 01-Q1362% R3S !/, (,+1,.314 -) (.3.,@ ./,


(,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4@ ./, F*1,+.-1 -) H3.*-<39


%<.,99*Q,<+,@ 3<7 ./, F*1,+.-1 -) ./, 5,7,139 M=1,3= -)


%<N,2.*Q3.*-< 2/399 *6W9,6,<. 3 W1-Q136@ 32 W31. -) ./,


37_=7*+3.*-< W1-+,22 )-1 *66*Q13.*-< O,<,)*.2@ .- *7,<.*)4


*<7*N*7=392 2,,X*<Q .- ,<.,1 ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2 -< 3 )13=7=9,<.


O32*2 P*./ ./, *<.,<. .- +3=2, /316@ -1 P/- 31, 3. 1*2X -)


+3=2*<Q /316 2=O2,a=,<. .- ./,*1 376*22*-<U !/*2 W1-Q136 P*99


*<+9=7, ./, 7,N,9-W6,<. -) 3 =<*)-16 2+1,,<*<Q 2.3<7317 3<7


W1-+,7=1,@ 2=+/ 32 *<GW,12-< *<.,1N*,P2^ 3 73.3O32, -) *7,<.*.4


7-+=6,<.2 W1-)),1,7 O4 3WW9*+3<.2 .- ,<2=1, ./3. 7=W9*+3.,


7-+=6,<.2 31, <-. =2,7 O4 6=9.*W9, 3WW9*+3<.2^ 36,<7,7


3WW9*+3.*-< )-162 ./3. *<+9=7, a=,2.*-<2 3*6,7 3. *7,<.*)4*<Q


)13=7=9,<. 3<2P,12 3<7 639*+*-=2 *<.,<.^ 3 6,+/3<*26 .- ,<2=1,


./3. ./, 3WW9*+3<. *2 P/- ./, 3WW9*+3<. +93*62 .- O,^ 3 W1-+,22


.- ,N39=3., ./, 3WW9*+3<.` 2 9*X,9*/--7 -) O,+-6*<Q 3 W-2*.*N,94


+-<.1*O=.*<Q 6,6O,1 -) 2-+*,.4 3<7 ./, 3WW9*+3<.` 2 3O*9*.4 .-

63X, +-<.1*O=.*-<2 .- ./, <3.*-<39 *<.,1,2.^ 3<7 3 6,+/3<*26 .-

322,22 P/,./,1 -1 <-. ./, 3WW9*+3<. /32 ./, *<.,<. .- +-66*.


+1*6*<39 -1 .,11-1*2. 3+.2 3).,1 ,<.,1*<Q ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2U


ROS !/, (,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4@ *< +-<_=<+.*-<


P*./ ./, (,+1,.314 -) (.3.,@ ./, F*1,+.-1 -) H3.*-<39


%<.,99*Q,<+,@ 3<7 ./, F*1,+.-1 -) ./, 5,7,139 M=1,3= -)


%<N,2.*Q3.*-<@ 2/399 2=O6*. .- ./, 01,2*7,<. 3< *<*.*39 1,W-1.


-< ./, W1-Q1,22 -) ./*2 7*1,+.*N, P*./*< cA 7342 -) ./, 73., -)


./*2 -17,1@ 3 2,+-<7 1,W-1. P*./*< BAA 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2


-17,1@ 3<7 3 ./*17 1,W-1. P*./*< >AA 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2


-17,1U


(,+U dU 8,39*Q<6,<. -) ./, 'U (U 8,)=Q,, J76*22*-<2 01-Q136


)-1 5*2+39 L,31 >AB?% R3S !/, (,+1,.314 -) (.3., 2/399 2=2W,<7


./, 'U (U 8,)=Q,, J76*22*-<2 01-Q136 R'(8J0S )-1 B>A


7342U F=1*<Q ./, B>AG734 W,1*-7@ ./, (,+1,.314 -) (.3.,@ *<


+-<_=<+.*-< P*./ ./, (,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 3<7 *<


+-<2=9.3.*-< P*./ ./, F*1,+.-1 -) H3.*-<39 %<.,99*Q,<+,@ 2/399


1,N*,P ./, '(8J0 3WW9*+3.*-< 3<7 37_=7*+3.*-< W1-+,22 .-

7,.,16*<, P/3. 377*.*-<39 W1-+,7=1,2 2/-=97 O, .3X,< .- ,<2=1,


./3. ./-2, 3WW1-N,7 )-1 1,)=Q,, 376*22*-< 7- <-. W-2, 3 ./1,3.
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.- ./, 2,+=1*.4 3<7 P,9)31, -) ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2@ 3<7 2/399


*6W9,6,<. 2=+/ 377*.*-<39 W1-+,7=1,2U 8,)=Q,, 3WW9*+3<.2 P/-

31, 391,374 *< ./, '(8J0 W1-+,22 634 O, 376*..,7 =W-< ./,


*<*.*3.*-< 3<7 +-6W9,.*-< -) ./,2, 1,N*2,7 W1-+,7=1,2U 'W-< ./,


73., ./3. *2 B>A 7342 3).,1 ./, 73., -) ./*2 -17,1@ ./,


(,+1,.314 -) (.3., 2/399 1,2=6, '(8J0 376*22*-<2 -<94 )-1


<3.*-<392 -) +-=<.1*,2 )-1 P/*+/ ./, (,+1,.314 -) (.3.,@ ./,


(,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4@ 3<7 ./, F*1,+.-1 -) H3.*-<39


%<.,99*Q,<+, /3N, _-*<.94 7,.,16*<,7 ./3. 2=+/ 377*.*-<39


W1-+,7=1,2 31, 37,a=3., .- ,<2=1, ./, 2,+=1*.4 3<7 P,9)31, -)


./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2U


ROS 'W-< ./, 1,2=6W.*-< -) '(8J0 376*22*-<2@ ./, (,+1,.314


-) (.3.,@ *< +-<2=9.3.*-< P*./ ./, (,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7


(,+=1*.4@ *2 )=1./,1 7*1,+.,7 .- 63X, +/3<Q,2@ .- ./, ,].,<.


W,16*..,7 O4 93P@ .- W1*-1*.*Z, 1,)=Q,, +93*62 637, O4


*<7*N*7=392 -< ./, O32*2 -) 1,9*Q*-=2GO32,7 W,12,+=.*-<@


W1-N*7,7 ./3. ./, 1,9*Q*-< -) ./, *<7*N*7=39 *2 3 6*<-1*.4


1,9*Q*-< *< ./, *<7*N*7=39` 2 +-=<.14 -) <3.*-<39*.4U $/,1,


<,+,22314 3<7 3WW1-W1*3.,@ ./, (,+1,.31*,2 -) (.3., 3<7 "-6,93<7


(,+=1*.4 2/399 1,+-66,<7 9,Q*293.*-< .- ./, 01,2*7,<. ./3. P-=97


322*2. P*./ 2=+/ W1*-1*.*Z3.*-<U


R+S 0=12=3<. .- 2,+.*-< >B>R)S -) ./, %HJ@ T 'U (U DU


BBT>R)S @ % /,1,O4 W1-+93*6 ./3. ./, ,<.14 -) <3.*-<392 -) (41*3


32 1,)=Q,,2 *2 7,.1*6,<.39 .- ./, *<.,1,2.2 -) ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2


3<7 ./=2 2=2W,<7 3<4 2=+/ ,<.14 =<.*9 2=+/ .*6, 32 % /3N,


7,.,16*<,7 ./3. 2=))*+*,<. +/3<Q,2 /3N, O,,< 637, .- ./, '(8J0


.- ,<2=1, ./3. 376*22*-< -) (41*3< 1,)=Q,,2 *2 +-<2*2.,<. P*./


./, <3.*-<39 *<.,1,2.U


R7S 0=12=3<. .- 2,+.*-< >B>R)S -) ./, %HJ@ T 'U (U DU


BBT>R)S @ % /,1,O4 W1-+93*6 ./3. ./, ,<.14 -) 6-1, ./3< dA@ AAA


1,)=Q,,2 *< )*2+39 4,31 >AB? P-=97 O, 7,.1*6,<.39 .- ./,


*<.,1,2.2 -) ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2@ 3<7 ./=2 2=2W,<7 3<4 2=+/ ,<.14


=<.*9 2=+/ .*6, 32 % 7,.,16*<, ./3. 377*.*-<39 376*22*-<2 P-=97


O, *< ./, <3.*-<39 *<.,1,2.U


R,S H-.P*./2.3<7*<Q ./, .,6W-1314 2=2W,<2*-< *6W-2,7


W=12=3<. .- 2=O2,+.*-< R3S -) ./*2 2,+.*-<@ ./, (,+1,.31*,2 -)


(.3., 3<7 "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 634 _-*<.94 7,.,16*<, .- 376*.


*<7*N*7=392 .- ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2 32 1,)=Q,,2 -< 3 +32,GO4G+32,


O32*2@ *< ./,*1 7*2+1,.*-<@ O=. -<94 2- 9-<Q 32 ./,4 7,.,16*<,


./3. ./, 376*22*-< -) 2=+/ *<7*N*7=392 32 1,)=Q,,2 *2 *< ./,


<3.*-<39 *<.,1,2. GG *<+9=7*<Q P/,< ./, W,12-< *2 3 1,9*Q*-=2


6*<-1*.4 *< /*2 +-=<.14 -) <3.*-<39*.4 )3+*<Q 1,9*Q*-=2


W,12,+=.*-<@ P/,< 376*..*<Q ./, W,12-< P-=97 ,<3O9, ./, '<*.,7
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(.3.,2 .- +-<)-16 *.2 +-<7=+. .- 3 W1,,]*2.*<Q *<.,1<3.*-<39


3Q1,,6,<.@ -1 P/,< ./, W,12-< *2 391,374 *< .13<2*. 3<7 7,<4*<Q


376*22*-< P-=97 +3=2, =<7=, /3172/*W GG 3<7 *. P-=97 <-. W-2, 3


1*2X .- ./, 2,+=1*.4 -1 P,9)31, -) ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2U


R)S !/, (,+1,.314 -) (.3., 2/399 2=O6*. .- ./, 01,2*7,<.


3< *<*.*39 1,W-1. -< ./, W1-Q1,22 -) ./, 7*1,+.*N, *< 2=O2,+.*-<


ROS -) ./*2 2,+.*-< 1,Q317*<Q W1*-1*.*Z3.*-< -) +93*62 637, O4


*<7*N*7=392 -< ./, O32*2 -) 1,9*Q*-=2GO32,7 W,12,+=.*-< P*./*<


BAA 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2 -17,1 3<7 2/399 2=O6*. 3 2,+-<7


1,W-1. P*./*< >AA 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2 -17,1U


RQS %. *2 ./, W-9*+4 -) ./, ,],+=.*N, O13<+/ ./3.@ .- ./,


,].,<. W,16*..,7 O4 93P 3<7 32 W13+.*+3O9,@ (.3., 3<7 9-+39


_=1*27*+.*-<2 O, Q13<.,7 3 1-9, *< ./, W1-+,22 -) 7,.,16*<*<Q


./, W93+,6,<. -1 2,..9,6,<. *< ./,*1 _=1*27*+.*-<2 -) 39*,<2


,9*Q*O9, .- O, 376*..,7 .- ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2 32 1,)=Q,,2U !-

./3. ,<7@ ./, (,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 2/399 ,]36*<,


,]*2.*<Q 93P .- 7,.,16*<, ./, ,].,<. .- P/*+/@ +-<2*2.,<. P*./


3WW9*+3O9, 93P@ (.3., 3<7 9-+39 _=1*27*+.*-<2 634 /3N, Q1,3.,1


*<N-9N,6,<. *< ./, W1-+,22 -) 7,.,16*<*<Q ./, W93+,6,<. -1


1,2,..9,6,<. -) 1,)=Q,,2 *< ./,*1 _=1*27*+.*-<2@ 3<7 2/399


7,N*2, 3 W1-W-239 .- 93P)=994 W1-6-., 2=+/ *<N-9N,6,<.U


(,+U cU 8,2+*22*-< -) #],1+*2, -) J=./-1*.4 8,93.*<Q .-

./, !,11-1*26 I1-=<72 -) %<376*22*O*9*.4% !/, (,+1,.31*,2 -)


(.3., 3<7 "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 2/399@ *< +-<2=9.3.*-< P*./ ./,


J..-1<,4 I,<,139@ +-<2*7,1 1,2+*<7*<Q ./, ,],1+*2,2 -) 3=./-1*.4


*< 2,+.*-< >B> -) ./, %HJ@ T 'U (U DU BBT>@ 1,93.*<Q .- ./,


.,11-1*26 Q1-=<72 -) *<376*22*O*9*.4@ 32 P,99 32 3<4 1,93.,7


*6W9,6,<.*<Q 6,6-13<73U


(,+U ?U #]W,7*.,7 D-6W9,.*-< -) ./, M*-6,.1*+ #<.14G#]*.


!13+X*<Q (42.,6U R3S !/, (,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 2/399


,]W,7*., ./, +-6W9,.*-< 3<7 *6W9,6,<.3.*-< -) 3 O*-6,.1*+ ,<.14G


,]*. .13+X*<Q 242.,6 )-1 399 .13N,9,12 .- ./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2@ 32


1,+-66,<7,7 O4 ./, H3.*-<39 D-66*22*-< -< !,11-1*2. J..3+X2 'W-<


./, '<*.,7 (.3.,2U


ROS !/, (,+1,.314 -) "-6,93<7 (,+=1*.4 2/399 2=O6*. .- ./,


01,2*7,<. W,1*-7*+ 1,W-1.2 -< ./, W1-Q1,22 -) ./, 7*1,+.*N,


+-<.3*<,7 *< 2=O2,+.*-< R3S -) ./*2 2,+.*-<U !/, *<*.*39 1,W-1.


2/399 O, 2=O6*..,7 P*./*< BAA 7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2 -17,1@ 3


2,+-<7 1,W-1. 2/399 O, 2=O6*..,7 P*./*< >AA 7342 -) ./, 73., -)


./*2 -17,1@ 3<7 3 ./*17 1,W-1. 2/399 O, 2=O6*..,7 P*./*< Vcd


7342 -) ./, 73., -) ./*2 -17,1U 5=1./,1@ ./, (,+1,.314 2/399


2=O6*. 3 1,W-1. ,N,14 BTA 7342 ./,1,3).,1 =<.*9 ./, 242.,6 *2


)=994 7,W9-4,7 3<7 -W,13.*-<39U


/4@7 %.%+"5C"$$(,$ 0?5B=7>A & 1;<76 $%#&,#%+ 3497 + ?8 %$ 349720 !. &+
Case 2:17 cv 00706   Document 1 1   Filed 01/29/17   Page 12 of 15   Page ID #:27

Document ID: 0.7.10904.5221-000005

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



(,+U TU E*23 %<.,1N*,P (,+=1*.4% R3S !/, (,+1,.314 -)


(.3., 2/399 *66,7*3.,94 2=2W,<7 ./, E*23 %<.,1N*,P $3*N,1


01-Q136 3<7 ,<2=1, +-6W9*3<+, P*./ 2,+.*-< >>> -) ./, %HJ@


T 'U (U DU B>>>@ P/*+/ 1,a=*1,2 ./3. 399 *<7*N*7=392 2,,X*<Q 3


<-<*66*Q13<. N*23 =<7,1Q- 3< *<GW,12-< *<.,1N*,P@ 2=O_,+. .-

2W,+*)*+ 2.3.=.-14 ,]+,W.*-<2U


ROS !- ./, ,].,<. W,16*..,7 O4 93P 3<7 2=O_,+. .- ./,


3N3*93O*9*.4 -) 3WW1-W1*3.*-<2@ ./, (,+1,.314 -) (.3., 2/399


*66,7*3.,94 ,]W3<7 ./, D-<2=931 5,99-P2 01-Q136@ *<+9=7*<Q O4


2=O2.3<.*3994 *<+1,32*<Q ./, <=6O,1 -) 5,99-P2@ 9,<Q./,<*<Q -1


63X*<Q W,163<,<. ./, W,1*-7 -) 2,1N*+,@ 3<7 63X*<Q 93<Q=3Q,


.13*<*<Q 3. ./, 5-1,*Q< (,1N*+, %<2.*.=., 3N3*93O9, .- 5,99-P2


)-1 322*Q<6,<. .- W-2.2 -=.2*7, -) ./,*1 31,3 -) +-1, 9*<Q=*2.*+


3O*9*.4@ .- ,<2=1, ./3. <-<G*66*Q13<. N*23G*<.,1N*,P P3*. .*6,2


31, <-. =<7=94 3)),+.,7U


(,+U [U E*23 E39*7*.4 8,+*W1-+*.4% !/, (,+1,.314 -) (.3.,


2/399 1,N*,P 399 <-<*66*Q13<. N*23 1,+*W1-+*.4 3Q1,,6,<.2 .-

,<2=1, ./3. ./,4 31,@ P*./ 1,2W,+. .- ,3+/ N*23 +9322*)*+3.*-<@
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

DALLAS DIVISION

SHAHIN HASSANPOUR, §
§


 Petitioner,    § 
§


v. § No.  3:17-cv-270
§                            

DONALD TRUMP, President of the  §

United States; U.S. DEPARTMENT OF § 
HOMELAND SECURITY (“DHS”);  §

U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER  § 
PROTECTION (“CBP”); JOHN KELLY,§
Secretary of DHS; KEVIN K.  § 
MCALEENAN, Acting Commissioner of  §

CBP; and CLEATUS P. HUNT, JR.,  §

Dallas/Ft. Worth International Airport  §

Port Director, CBP,    §

      §


Respondents.    §


PETITIONER’S EMERGENCY MOTION FOR TEMPORARY
RESTRAINING ORDER AND PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION;

DEPORTATION FLIGHT SCHEDULED FOR 11:00AM TODAY

Petitioner, by and through counsel, submits this Emergency Motion for a Temporary

Restraining Order and Preliminary Injunction, pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure

65(a) and (b).  Petitioner tried to file a habeas petition last night, but the ECF site was down. She


was able to file a habeas petition at 7:20 this morning. She and others similarly situated

immigrant and nonimmigrant visa holders who are detained by Respondents at the Dallas/Ft.


Worth International Airport (“DFW”) pursuant to the President’s January 27, 2017 executive


order were coerced into withdrawing their applications for admissions.  Although a federal court

has enjoined Respondents from removing Petitioner and class members, Petitioner is concerned

that Respondents will disregard the nationwide stay on the ground that Petitioner and class
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members involuntarily withdrew their applications for admission and waived their statutory and

constitutional rights. Upon information and belief, Petitioner is scheduled to be deported on a


flight at 11AM this morning. She seeks an emergency stay of removal.

In support of their motion, Petitioner and others similarly situated would show the


following:

1.  Petitioner Shahin Hassanpour is a 70 year-old Iranian national who landed in the


Dallas/Ft. Worth International Airport (“DFW”) on or about January 28, 2017.  In September

2016, the United States Department of State (DOS) approved Ms. Hassanpour's application for

an immigrant visa to come and live in the United States with her United States citizen son, who


petitioned for her visa. Prior to the issuance of her visa, the DOS reviewed Ms. Hassanpour's

criminal and immigration background and found her eligible for an immigrant visa.


2.  On or about January 27, 2017, Ms. Hassanpour departed from Esfahan on

Emirates Airlines.

3.  On or about January 28, 2017, Ms. Hassanpour landed at DFW Airport.

4.  Pursuant to the January 27, 2017 executive order, Respondents are not allowing


Ms. Hassanpour to exit DFW Airport. 

5.  Respondents are not permitting Ms. Hassanpour to meet with her attorneys who


are in Dallas or her United States citizen son was at the DFW Airport.

6.  Ms. Hassanpour is an elderly woman who must take cancer and heart medication

on a regular basis.  The long flight, the stress of detention, and the lack of her medication present

unnecessary health risks to Ms. Hassanpour.

7.  Upon information and belief, Respondents coerced Ms. Hassanpour to withdraw

her application for admission. Respondents told Ms. Hassanpour that she would be permanently
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banned from the United States and sent to jail if she did not sign the form withdrawing her

admission. Respondents did not translate or interpret the waiver form. Ms. Hassanpour, however,

does not speak English, has no knowledge of United States laws, and was denied the opportunity


to communicate with her attorneys.

8.  Ms. Hassanpour has valid documents to enter the United States.  She was

previously interviewed and investigated by the State Department. The State Department and the


U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services previously determined that Ms. Hassanpour was not a


national security risk.  Respondents are detaining Ms. Hassanpour solely because of her national

origin and her religion as required by the January 27, 2017 executive order.

9.  Upon information and belief, Respondents intend to remove her and others and

other similarly situated immigrant and nonimmigrant visa holders from Iran, Iraq, Syria, Yemen,

Somalia, Sudan or Libya landed in the United States at the DFW Airport and presented


themselves for inspection and admission, notwithstanding the nationwide stay issued in


Darweesh and Alshawi v. Trump et. al., Cause No. 17 Civ. 480 (AMD) in the U.S. District Court

for the Eastern District of New York on January 28, 2017, relying upon the illegal waivers

obtained from class members.

10.  Because the executive order is unlawful as applied to Ms. Hassanpour and class

members, their continued detention and the denial of admission based solely on the executive


order violates their Fifth Amendment procedural and substantive due process, violates the First

Amendment Establishment Clause, is ultra vires under the immigration statutes, and violates the

Administrative Procedure Act and Religious Freedom Restoration Act. See Petitioner’s Habeas

Petition, ¶¶ 40  57.  Further, Ms. Hassanpour's and class members continued unlawful detention

is part of a widespread policy, pattern and practice applied to many refugees and arriving


 Case 3:17-cv-00270-K   Document 3   Filed 01/29/17    Page 3 of 6   PageID 20


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5221-000006

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



4


noncitizens detained after the issuance of the January 27, 2017 executive order. Therefore, on

behalf of herself and a class of similarly situated immigrant and nonimmigrant holders, Ms.


Hassanpour respectfully applies to this Court for a stay of removal. 

11.  As indicated by the nationwide stay issued in Darweesh and Alshawi v. Trump et.

al., Cause No. 17 Civ. 480 (AMD) in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of New


York on January 28, 2017, Petitioner has a strong likelihood of success in establishing that the

removal of Petitioner and others similarly situated violates their rights to Due Process and Equal

Protection guaranteed by the U.S. Constitution.


12.  As indicated by the nationwide stay, there is imminent danger that, absent the stay


of removal, there will be substantial and irreparable injury to Petitioner and others similarly


situated.


13.  As indicated by the nationwide stay, the issuance of the stay of removal will not


injure the other parties interested in the proceeding.

14.   A preliminary injunction is appropriate if the potential harm to the plaintiff


outweighs the cost of the injunction, and the injunction “does not disserve the public interest.”

Jackson Women’s Health Org. Ctr., 760 F.3d 448, 452 (5th Cir. 2014).  In this case, the potential

harm to the Petitioner is clearly outweighed by any harm to the defendants.

Conclusion


15. Petitioner and others similarly situated face imminent removal in a few hours. The United


States District Court in Hameed Khalid Darweesh and Haider Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi v.


Donald Trump, et. al., Case No. 17 Civ. 480, has determined that Petitioner and class members

have a strong likelihood of success in the litigation, that there is imminent danger that, absent a


stay of removal, there will be substantial and irreparable injury to Petitioner and class members
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Therefore, , the Court should grant her Motion for a Temporary Preliminary Injunction.

Emergency Hearing 

 16. Petitioner considers that the facts and law in this matter permit resolution of the


Petition without an evidentiary hearing.  In the alternative, Petitioner asks for an emergency


hearing this morning to have her arguments heard.

Prayer

WHEREFORE, premises considered, Petitioner respectfully ask this court to GRANT her


Motion for a Temporary Preliminary Injunction and to issue a preliminary injunction

ordering Defendants to:

1. Stay her removal which would be contrary to law;

2. Grant any other and further relief that this Court may deem fit and proper.

Petitioner further requests that they be awarded reasonable attorney’s fees and costs

associated with the litigation of this motion.


Respectfully submitted,

JAVIER N. MALDONADO

LAW OFFICE OF JAVIER N. MALDONADO, PC

8918 Tesoro Dr., Ste. 575

San Antonio, Texas 78217

Tel.: 210-277-1603

Fax: 210-587-4001


Email:  jmaldonado.law@gmail.com

      SEJAL R. ZOTA 

NATIONAL IMMIGRATION PROJECT OF THE

   NATIONAL LAWYERS GUILD

14 Beacon Street, Suite 602 

Boston, Massachusetts 02108

Tel.:  617-227-9727
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Fax:  617-227-5497


Email:  sejal@nipnlg.org

VINESH PATEL

2730 N. Stemmons Freeway, Ste. 1103


Dallas, TX 75207

Tel.: (972) 310-3835

Fax: (214) 960-4151

Email: vinesh@vpatellaw.com

DONALD E. ULOTH

18208 Preston Rd. Suite D-9 # 261

Dallas, TX 75252

Tel.: (214) 725-0260

Fax: (866) 462-6179

Email: don.uloth@uloth.pro

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONERS

     By:  /s/ Javier N. Maldonado 

                      Javier N. Maldonado

       Texas State Bar No. 00794216

By:  /s/ Seja R. Zota  

                      Sejal R. Zota

                                 North Carolina State Bar No. 36535


By:  /s/ Vinesh Patel  

 Vinesh Patel

                                       Texas State Bar No. 24068668 

 

By:  /s/ Donald E. Uloth  

                      Donald E. Uloth

       Texas State Bar No. 20374200
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

DALLAS DIVISION

SHAHIN HASSANPOUR, §
§


 Petitioner,    § 
§


v. § No.  3:17-cv-270
§                            

DONALD TRUMP, President of the  §

United States; U.S. DEPARTMENT OF § 
HOMELAND SECURITY (“DHS”);  §

U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER  § 
PROTECTION (“CBP”); JOHN KELLY,§
Secretary of DHS; KEVIN K.  § 
MCALEENAN, Acting Commissioner of  §

CBP; and CLEATUS P. HUNT, JR.,  §

Dallas/Ft. Worth International Airport  §

Port Director, CBP,    §

      §


Respondents.    §


ORDER

 Pending before the Court is Petitioner's Motion for Temporary Restraining Order and


Preliminary Injunction to stay the removal of Petitioner and persons similarly situated who are


detained at DFW International Airport pursuant to the President's January 27, 2017. 

 On January 28, 2017, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New

York issued a nationwide stay in Hameed Khalid Darweesh and Haider Sameer Abdulkhaleq

Alshawi v. Donald Trump, et. al., Case No. 17 Civ. 480, that appears to apply to Petitioner and


class members detained in the DFW Airport.  That Court has determined that Petitioner and class

members have a strong likelihood of success in the litigation, that there is imminent danger that,


absent a stay of removal, there will be substantial and irreparable injury to Petitioner and class

members subject to the January 27, 2017, and that issuance of the stay will not injure the parties.

 Out of an abundance of caution, the Court will stay Petitioner's and class members'
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removal in this case pending completion of the proceedings in the Eastern District of New York.

 WHEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Respondents, their officers,

agents, servants, employees, attorneys and all persons acting in concert or participation with

them will comply with the nationwide stay issued in Hameed Khalid Darweesh and Haider

Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi v. Donald Trump, et. al., Case No. 17 Civ. 480.


 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that to assure compliance with the Court's order, the

Court directs service of this Order upon the United States Marshal for the Northern District of


Texas, and further directs the United States Marshals Services to take those actions deemed

necessary to enforce the provisions and prohibitions set forth in this Order.

So ordered this  day of January, 2017.

       

       UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
DALLAS DIVISION

SHAHIN HASSANPOUR and   §

A Class of Similarly Situated Persons, §
§

 Petitioners,    § 
§

v. § No.  3:17-cv-270
§                            

DONALD TRUMP, President of the   §
United States; U.S. DEPARTMENT OF §  

HOMELAND SECURITY (“DHS”);   §
U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER  §  

PROTECTION (“CBP”); JOHN KELLY,§
Secretary of DHS; KEVIN K.  §  

MCALEENAN, Acting Commissioner of  §
CBP; and CLEATUS P. HUNT, JR.,   §

Dallas/Ft. Worth International Airport   §
Port Director, CBP,    §

      §
Respondents.     §

CLASS PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS AND

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

This class habeas petition is filed by Petitioner Shahin Hassanpour and others similarly

situated immigrant and nonimmigrant visa holders who are detained by Respondents at the

Dallas/Ft. Worth International Airport (“DFW”) pursuant to the President’s January 27, 2017

executive order and who were coerced into withdrawing their applications for admissions.

Although a federal court has enjoined Respondents from removing Petitioner and class members,

Petitioner is concerned that Respondents will disregard the nationwide stay on the ground that

Petitioner and class members involuntarily withdrew their applications for admission and waived

their statutory and constitutional rights.  This class petition is filed to safeguard Petitioner’s and

class members’ constitutional and statutory rights.
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Petitioner Shahin Hassanpour is a 70 year-old Iranian national who landed in the

Dallas/Ft. Worth International Airport (“DFW”) on or about January 28, 2017.   In September

2016, the United States Department of State (DOS) approved Ms. Hassanpour's application for

an immigrant visa to come and live in the United States.  Her United States citizen son had

petitioned for her to immigrate to the United States as a permanent resident.  Prior to the issuance

of her visa, the DOS reviewed Ms. Hassanpour's criminal and immigration background and

found her eligible for an immigrant visa.

On or about January 28, 2017, Ms. Hassanpour and other similarly situated immigrant

and nonimmigrant visa holders landed in the United States at the DFW Airport and presented

themselves for inspection and admission.  U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) blocked

Ms. Hassanpour and class members from exiting DFW Airport even though they presented valid

entry documents.  CBP continues to detain Ms. Hassanpour and class members and deny them

admission.  CBP is holding Ms. Hassanpour and class members at DFW Airport solely pursuant

to an executive order issued by President Donald Trump on January 27, 2017.

Because the executive order is unlawful as applied to Ms. Hassanpour and class

members, their continued detention and the denial of admission based solely on the executive

order violates their Fifth Amendment procedural and substantive due process, violates the First

Amendment Establishment Clause, is ultra vires under the immigration statutes, and violates the

Administrative Procedure Act and Religious Freedom Restoration Act.  Further, Ms.

Hassanpour's and class members continued unlawful detention is part of a widespread policy,

pattern and practice applied to many refugees and arriving noncitizens detained after the issuance

of the January 27, 2017 executive order.  Therefore, on behalf of herself and a class of similarly

situated immigrant and nonimmigrant holders, Ms. Hassanpour respectfully applies to this Court
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for a writ of habeas corpus to remedy their unlawful detention, and for declaratory and injunctive

relief to prevent such harms from recurring.

CUSTODY

1. Ms. Hassanpour is in the physical custody of Respondent Cleatus P. Hunt, Jr., DFW

International Airport Port Director, U.S. Customs and Border Protection, the Department of

Homeland Security (DHS).  At the time of the filing of this petition, Petitioner is detained at the

DFW Airport.  Ms. Hassanpour is under the direct control of Respondents and their agents.

2. Class members are immigrant and nonimmigrant holders who are from Iran, Iraq, Syria,

Yemen, Somalia, Sudan or Libya,  who are detained at DFW Airport pursuant to the January 27,

2017 executive order, and who were coerced into withdrawing their applications for admission.

JURISDICTION

3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1361,

2241, 2243, and the Habeas Corpus Suspension Clause of the U.S. Constitution. This court has

further remedial authority pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 et seq.

VENUE

4. Venue lies in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, the

judicial district in which Respondent Cleatus P. Hunt, Jr. resides and where Petitioner is

detained.  28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).

5. No petition for habeas corpus has previously been filed in any court to review Petitioner's

case.

PARTIES

6. Petitioner Shahin Hassanpour is a national and citizen of Iran who was granted an

immigrant visa so that she can come to the United States as a lawful permanent resident.  She is
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detained by Respondents pursuant to President Trump's January 27, 2017 executive order.  

7. Class members are immigrant and nonimmigrant holders who are from Iran, Iraq, Syria,

Yemen, Somalia, Sudan or Libya and who are detained at DFW Airport pursuant to the January

27, 2017 executive order and who were coerced into withdrawing their applications for

admission.

8. Donald Trump is the President of the United States and is charged with enforcing the

immigration laws.  He is sued in his official capacity.

9. The U.S. Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) is a cabinet department of the

United States federal government with the primary mission of securing the United States.

10. U.S. Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”) is an agency within DHS with the primary

mission of detecting and preventing the unlawful entry of persons and goods into the United

States.

11. Respondent John Kelly is the Secretary of DHS.   Secretary Kelly has immediate custody

of Petitioner.   He is sued in his official capacity.

12. Respondent Kevin K. McAleenan is the Acting Commissioner of CBP. Acting

Commissioner McAleenan has immediate custody of Petitioner. He is sued in his official

capacity.

13. Respondent Cleatus P. Hunt, Jr. is the Port Director of the Dallas/Ft. Worth International

Airport.  He has immediate custody of Ms. Hassanpour.  He is sued in his official capacity.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

President Trump’s January 27, 2017 Executive Order
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14. On January 20, 2017, Donald Trump was inaugurated as the forty-fifth President of the

United States.  During his campaign, he stated that he would ban Muslims from entering the


United States.  

15. On January 27, one week after his inauguration, President Trump signed an executive


order entitled, “Protecting the Nation from Foreign Terrorist Entry into the United States,” which


is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is hereinafter referred to as the “EO.”  

16. In statements to the press in connection with his issuance of the EO, President Trump


stated that his order would help Christian refugees to enter the United States.  

17. Citing the threat of terrorism committed by foreign nationals, the EO directs a variety of


changes to the manner and extent to which noncitizens may seek and obtain entry to the United


States.  Among other things, the EO imposes a 120-day moratorium on the refugee resettlement


program as a whole; proclaims that “that the entry of nationals of Syria as refugees is detrimental


to the interests of the United States”; and therefore singles out Syrian refugees for an indefinite


“suspension” on their admission to the country.

18. Most relevant to the instant action is Section 3(c) of the EO, in which President Trump


proclaims “that the immigrant and nonimmigrant entry into the United States of aliens from


countries referred to in section 217(a)(12) of the INA, 8 U.S.C. 1187(a)(12), would be


detrimental to the interests of the United States,” and that he is therefore “suspend[ing] entry into


the United States, as immigrants and nonimmigrants, of such persons for 90 days from the date


of this order,” with narrow exceptions not relevant here.

19. There are seven countries that fit the criteria in 8 U.S.C. § 1187(a)(12): Iraq, Iran, Libya,


Somalia, Sudan, Syria, and Yemen.  According to the terms of the EO, therefore, the “entry into
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the United States” of noncitizens from those countries is “suspended” from 90 days from the date


of the EO.

Petitioner Hassanpour

20. Petitioner Shahin Hassanpour is a 70 year-old Iranian national who is Muslim.

21. Ms. Hassanpour has a United States citizen son who petitioned for Ms. Hassanpour to


immigrate to the United States as a lawful permanent resident.

22. In September 2016, the State Department interviewed Ms. Hassanpour in connection with


her application for an immigrant visa. After reviewing her application and investigating her


criminal background, the State Department determined that Ms. Hassanpour qualified for an


immigrant visa.  In issuing Ms. Hassanpour an immigrant visa, the State Department determined


that Ms. Hassanpour was not a threat to this country's national security but rather that she was


worthy of residing here permanently.

23. On or about January 27, 2017, Ms. Hassanpour departed from Esfahan on Emirates


Airlines.

24. On or about January 28, 2017, Ms. Hassanpour landed at DFW Airport.

25. Pursuant to the January 27, 2017 executive order, Respondents are not allowing Ms.


Hassanpour to exit DFW Airport. 

26. Respondents are not permitting Ms. Hassanpour to meet with her attorneys who are in


Dallas.  Her United States citizen son was at the DFW Airport ready to meet her.

27. Ms. Hassanpour is an elderly woman who must take cancer and heart medication on a


regular basis.  The long flight, the stress of detention, and the lack of her medication present


unnecessary health risks to Ms. Hassanpour.
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28. Upon information and belief, Respondents coerced Ms. Hassanpour to withdraw her


application for admission.  Respondents told Ms. Hassanpour that she would be permanently


banned from the United States if she did not sign the form withdrawing her admission.


Respondents did not translate or interpret the waiver form.  Ms. Hassanpour, however, does not


speak English, has no knowledge of United States laws, and was denied the opportunity to


communicate with her attorneys.

29. Ms. Hassanpour has valid documents to enter the United States.  She was previously


interviewed and investigated by the State Department.  The State Department and the U.S.


Citizenship and Immigration Services previously determined that Ms. Hassanpour was not a


national security risk.  Respondents are detaining Ms. Hassanpour solely because of her national


origin and her religion as required by the January 27, 2017 executive order.

30. Upon information and belief, Respondents intend to remove class members


notwithstanding the nationwide stay issued in Darweesh and Alshawi v. Trump et. al., Cause No.


17 Civ. 480 (AMD) in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of New York on January


28, 2017, relying upon the illegal waivers obtained from class members.

31. Respondents’ decisions to detain Ms. Hassanpour are not unlawfuland are capricious and


arbitrary.  There is no better time for the Court to consider the merits of Ms. Hassanpour’s

request for release.

Class

32. Class members are immigrant and nonimmigrant visa holders currently detained by


Respondents at the DFW Airport.

33. Class members are in the possession of entry documents that were lawfully issued by the


State Department and/or the Department of Homeland Security.
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34. Prior to issuing entry documents to class members, the State Department and/or the


Department of Homeland Security interviewed and investigated class members.  The State


Department and/or the Department of Homeland Security determined that class members were


admissible and were not a threat to the national security.

35. Upon landing at DFW Airport, Respondents detained class members pursuant to the


President’s January 27, 2017 executive order.  Upon information and belief, Respondents denied


class members an opportunity to speak with their lawyers.  

36. Upon information and belief, Respondents then proceeded to coerce class members to


withdraw their applications for admission. 

37. Class members do not speak English fluently, are not lawyers, and are not familiar with


United States laws.

38. Upon information and belief, Respondents intend to remove class members


notwithstanding the nationwide stay issued in Darweesh and Alshawi v. Trump et. al., Cause No.


17 Civ. 480 (AMD) in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of New York on January


28, 2017, relying upon the illegal waivers obtained from class members.

39. Respondents’ decisions to detain class members are not legally justifiable and are


capricious and arbitrary.  There is no better time for the Court to consider the merits of the class


members’ request for release.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

COUNT ONE
CONSTITUTIONAL CLAIM--DUE PROCESS

40. Petitioner alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 39 above.

41. Petitioner’s and the class members’ detention violates her right to substantive and


procedural due process guaranteed by the Fifth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.
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COUNT TWO
FIRST AMENDMENT--ESTABLISHMENT CLAUSE

42. Petitioner alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 39 above.

43. The EO exhibits hostility to a specific religious faith, Islam, and gives preference to other


religious faiths, principally Christianity.  The EO therefore violates the Establishment Clause of

the First Amendment by not pursuing a course of neutrality with regard to different religious


faiths.  

COUNT THREE

FIFTH AMENDMENT--EQUAL PROTECTION

44. Petitioner alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 39 above.

45. The EO discriminates against Petitioner and the class on the basis of their country of


origin and religion, without sufficient justification, and therefore violates the equal protection


component of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment.

46. Additionally, the EO was substantially motivated by animus toward and has a disparate


effect on Muslims, which also violates the equal protection component of the Due Process


Clause of the Fifth Amendment.

47. Respondents have demonstrated an intent to discriminate against Petitioner and the class


members on the basis of religion through repeated public statements that make clear the EO was


designed to prohibit the entry of Muslims to the United States. See Michael D. Shear & Helene


Cooper, Trump Bars Refugees and Citizens of 7 Muslim Countries, N.Y. Times (Jan. 27, 2017),


(“[President Trump] ordered that Christians and others from minority religions be granted


priority over Muslims.”); Carol Morello, Trump Signs Order Temporarily Halting Admission of


Refugees, Promises Priority for Christians, Wash. Post (Jan. 27, 2017).
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48. Applying a general law in a fashion that discriminates on the basis of religion in this way


violates Petitioner's and class members’ right to equal protection under the Fifth Amendment


Due Process Clause.  Petitioner and the class satisfy the Supreme Court’s test to determine


whether a facially neutral law  in the case, the EO and federal immigration law  has been


applied in a discriminatory fashion. Vill. of Arlington Heights v. Metro. Hous. Dev. Corp., 429


U.S. 252, 266-7 (1977).  

49. Here, President Donald Trump and senior staff have made clear that EO will be applied


to primarily exclude individuals on the basis of their national origin and being Muslim. See, e.g.,


Donald J. Trump, Donald J. Trump Statement On Preventing Muslim Immigration, (Dec. 7,


2015), https://www.donaldjtrump.com/press-releases/donald-j.-trump-statement-on-preventing-

muslim-immigration (“Donald J. Trump is calling for a total and complete shutdown of Muslims


entering the United States until our country's representatives can figure out what is going on.”);


Abby Phillip and Abigail Hauslohner, Trump on the Future of Proposed Muslim Ban, Registry:


‘You know my plans’, Wash. Post (Dec. 22, 2016). Further, the President has promised that


preferential treatment will be given to Christians, unequivocally demonstrating the special


preferences and discriminatory impact that the EO has upon Petitioner. See supra.

50. Thus, Respondents have applied the EO with forbidden animus and discriminatory intent


in violation of the equal protection of the Fifth Amendment and violated Petitioner’s and the

class members’ equal protection rights.

COUNT FOUR
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT

51. Petitioner alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 27 above.

52. Respondents detained and mistreated Petitioner and class members solely pursuant to an


executive order issued on January 27, 2017, which expressly discriminates against Petitioner and
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the class on the basis of her country of origin and was substantially motivated by animus toward


Muslims.

53. The EO exhibits hostility to a specific religious faith, Islam, and gives preference to other


religious faiths, principally Christianity.

54. The INA forbids discrimination in issuance of visas based on a person’s race, nationality,


place of birth, or place of residence. 8 U.S.C. § 1152(a)(1)(A).

55. Respondents’ actions in detaining and mistreating Petitioner and class members were


arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law, in violation

of APA § 706(2)(A); contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity, in violation


of APA § 706(2)(B); in excess of statutory jurisdiction, authority, or limitations, or short of


statutory right, in violation of APA § 706(2)(C); and without observance of procedure required


by law,  in violation of § 706(2)(D).

COUNT FIVE

RELIGIOUS FREEDOM RESTORATION ACT

56. Petitioner alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 27 above.

57. The EO will have the effect of imposing a special disability on the basis of religious


views or religious status, by withdrawing an important immigration benefit principally from


Muslims on account of their religion. In doing so, the EO places a substantial burden on


Petitioner’s and class members’ exercise of religion in a way that is not the least restrictive


means of furthering a compelling governmental interest. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays that this Court grant the following relief:

1. Assume jurisdiction over this matter;

2. Issue an order directing Respondents to show cause why the writ should not be
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granted;

3. Issue an order certifying a class of immigrant and nonimmigrant visa holders detained

at DFW Airport pursuant to the President’s January 27, 2017 executive order and who

were coerced into withdrawing their applications for admission and other rights;

4. Issue an injunction ordering Respondents not to detain Petitioner on the basis of the

EO;

5. Issue a writ of habeas corpus ordering Respondents to release Ms. Hassanpour;

6. Award Petitioner reasonable costs and attorney’s fees; and,

7. Grant any other relief which this Court deems just and proper.
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Respectfully submitted,

JAVIER N. MALDONADO
LAW OFFICE OF JAVIER N. MALDONADO, PC

8918 Tesoro Dr., Ste. 575
San Antonio, Texas 78217

Tel.: 210-277-1603
Fax: 210-587-4001

Email:  jmaldonado.law@gmail.com

      SEJAL R. ZOTA 

NATIONAL IMMIGRATION PROJECT OF THE

   NATIONAL LAWYERS GUILD

14 Beacon Street, Suite 602 

Boston, Massachusetts 02108
Tel.:  617-227-9727

Fax:  617-227-5497
Email:  sejal@nipnlg.org

DONALD E. ULOTH

18208 Preston Rd. Suite D-9 # 261
Dallas, TX 75252

Tel.: (214) 725-0260
Fax: (866) 462-6179

Email: don.uloth@uloth.pro

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONERS

     By:   /s/ Javier N. Maldonado 
                      Javier N. Maldonado

       Texas State Bar No. 00794216

By:   /s/ Seja R. Zota  
                      Sejal R. Zota

                                 North Carolina State Bar No. 36535
       

By:   /s/ Donald E. Uloth  

                      Donald E. Uloth
       Texas State Bar No. 20374200
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
DALLAS DIVISION

SHAHIN HASSANPOUR and §

A Class of Similarly Situated Persons, §
§

 Petitioners,    § 
§

v. § No.  3:17-cv-270
§                            

DONALD TRUMP, President of the  §
United States; U.S. DEPARTMENT OF § 

HOMELAND SECURITY (“DHS”);  §
U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER  § 

PROTECTION (“CBP”); JOHN KELLY,§
Secretary of DHS; KEVIN K.  § 

MCALEENAN, Acting Commissioner of  §
CBP; and CLEATUS P. HUNT, JR.,  §

Dallas/Ft. Worth Port Director, CBP, §
      §

Respondents.     §

PETITIONER’S CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 7.1 and LR 3.1(c), LR 3.2(e), LR 7.4, LR 81.1(a)(4)(D), and


LR 81.2, Petitioner Shahin Hassanpour provides the following information:

Petitioner is a natural person.

There are no nongovernmental corporate parties in this case.  

The persons, associations of persons, firms, partnerships, corporations, guarantors,


insurers, affiliates, parent or subsidiary corporations, or other legal entities that are financially


interested in the outcome of the case are:  

1. Shahin Hassanpour, Petitioner

2. Class members are immigrant and nonimmigrant holders who are from


Iran, Iraq, Syria, Yemen, Somalia, Sudan or Libya and who are detained at DFW Airport
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pursuant to the January 27, 2017 and who were coerced into withdrawing their


applications for admission.

3. Donald J. Trump, President of the United States.

4. The U.S. Department of Homeland Security.

5. U.S. Customs and Border Protection.

6. John Kelly, the Secretary of the he U.S. Department of Homeland


Security.

7. Kevin K. McAleenan, the Acting Commissioner of U.S. Customs and


Border Protection.

8. Cleatus P. Hunt, Jr., the Port Director of the Dallas/Ft. Worth International


Airport.

      

Date: January 29, 2016    Respectfully submitted,

       /s/ Javier N. Maldonado 
Javier N. Maldonado

State Bar No. 00794216
Law Office of Javier N. Maldonado, PC

8918 Tesoro Dr., Ste. 575
San Antonio, TX  78217

Tel. (210) 277-1603
Fax (210 587-4001

Email:  jmaldonado.law@gmail.com
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East Bay Law

Andrew W. Shalaby sbn 206841

1417 Solano Avenue

Albany, CA 94706

Tel. 510-551-8500

Fax: 510-725-4950

email: andrew@eastbaylaw.com


Attorneys for Plaintiffs

The People of the State of California, and

The People of the United States of America


IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO


People of the United States of 
America and the State of California,


                    Plaintiffs, 

vs.


Donald Trump; United States of 
America, 

Defendants. 

Case Number:  3:17-cv-451


(Fee Exempt: 28 U.S.C. § 1914(b), by

Judicial Conference effective 12/2016)


COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTION

AND REPEAL OF PRESIDENTIAL

EXECUTIVE ORDER DATED

JANUARY 27, 2017 SUSPENDING

VISAS AND IMMIGRATION

BENEFITS WITHOUT

CONGRESSIONAL APPROVAL


U.S. Const. art. I, § 1;

U.S. Const. art. II, § 1, cl. 1


I.  FEE EXEMPTION


This action is brought on behalf of the People of the State of California and


United States, and exempted from filing fees under 28 U.S.C. § 1914(b):


Effective on: December 1, 2016


Complaint For Injunction of Executive Order Dated 1/27/17 Suspending Visas and Immigration


Benefits Without Congressional Approval 1 No.  3:17-cv-451
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The United States should not be charged fees under this schedule, with

the exception of those specifically prescribed in Items 2, 4 and 5, when

the information requested is available through remote electronic access.


Reference:

http://www.uscourts.gov/services-forms/fees/district-court-miscellane

ous-fee-schedule


I.  JURISDICTION


This action arises under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United States,


conferring Federal Question jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331.


VENUE


Defendant is the United States.  Venue is proper in any judicial district pursuant


to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).


PARTIES


 1. Plaintiffs are the People of the United States of America and the State of


California, by way of the Private Attorney General statutes of the State of California


and United States, for this civil action.   The action is for the protection of all persons


in the United States in their civil rights and for their vindication pursuant to brought


pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.


 2. Defendant, Donald Trump, aka Donald John Trump (“Mr. Trump”), is


the forty fifth president of the united states, inaugurated eight days ago, on January


20, 2017.  He is named as an indispensable party with regard to this action to enjoin


enforcement of his executive order issued one day before the filing of this action, on


January 27, 2017, purporting to suspend visas and immigration benefits of a


seemingly undefined class of persons, apparently based on ethnicity and/or religious


beliefs.


3. Defendant, the United States of America, is the United States
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Government, generally, and is named as a defendant for the purpose of enjoining


enforcement of the Executive Order of Mr. Trump.


FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION FOR INUNCTION OF

EXECUTIVE ORDER DATED JANUARY 27, 2017

4. On January 27, 2017, one day before the filing of this Complaint, Mr.


Trump signed an executive order purporting to suspend visas and immigration


benefits of a seemingly undefined class of persons, apparently based on ethnicity


and/or religious beliefs.  The order is captioned:


“EXECUTIVE ORDER

PROTECTING THE NATION FROM FOREIGN TERRORIST


ENTRY INTO THE UNITED STATES”

A copy of the Executive Order is attached as Exhibit A hereto.


5. The Executive Order purports to suspend the issuance of visas and


benefits, with it’s stated goal being the prevention of entry of citizens and/or residents


of largely unspecified countries, and appears to erroneously reference a statute which


does not appear to exist: “section 217(a)(12) of the INA.”  While there is a “section


217,” there does not appear to be a section “217(a)(12)” identifying the countries from


which “immigrant and nonimmigrant” persons are to be denied entry to the United


States:


I hereby proclaim that the immigrant and nonimmigrant entry into the

United States of aliens from countries referred to in section 217(a)(12)

of the INA, 8 U.Ss.C. 1187(a)(12), would be detrimental to the interests

of the United States, and I hereby suspend entry into the United States,

as immigrants and nonimmigrants, of such persons for 90 days from the

date of this order...”


The People are not able to readily identify which countries the President intended


because there does not appear to be a “section 217(a)(12),” and therefore does not


appear to be any publication defining the “countries referred” in “section 217(a)(12).


6. The Executive Order violates the separation of powers doctrine without


statutory exception, because U.S. Const. art. I, § 1 vests Congress with all legislative


powers:
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U.S. Const. art. I, § 1


All legislative Powers herein granted shall be vested in a Congress of the

United States, which shall consist of a Senate and House of

Representatives.


The President is vested with the executive power pursuant to U.S. Const. art. II, § 1,


cl. 1:


Section 1. The executive Power shall be vested in a President of the United

States of America.


The Judiciary, this Court, is vested with the judicial powers to interpret the laws


pursuant to is vested with U.S. Const. art. III, § 1:


Section 1. The judicial Power of the United States, shall be vested in one

supreme Court, and in such inferior Courts as the Congress may from

time to time ordain and establish. The Judges, both of the supreme and

inferior Courts, shall hold their Offices during good Behaviour, and

shall, at stated Times, receive for their Services, a Compensation, which

shall not be diminished during their Continuance in Office.


No Statutory Exception Exists


There has been no change of any kind so as to warrant departure from the


Separation of Powers doctrine and permit Mr. Trump to legislate the Executive Order


at issue.  There has been on increase of threat of terrorist attacks at all since the event


referenced in the second paragraph of Mr. Trump’s Executive Order, the “terrorist


attacks of September 11, 2001.”  To the contrary, the threat of terrorist attacks has


declined steadily since September 2001, therefore Congress and the previous two


presidential administrations never considered enacting such a prohibition of entry of


persons to the United States based on their countries of origin and/or religious beliefs.


There is no exigent circumstance exception to warrant an executive order, while the


legislature and previous two presidents served through the several years following


September 11, 2001 and had years to enact legislation barring entry into the United


States by the classes of persons identified on Mr. Trump’s Executive Order, but


clearly determined such legislation would be detrimental to the interests of the People


of the United States of America.
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THE EXECUTIVE ORDER WOULD DAMAGE U.S. REPUTATION


Mr. Trump’s intent is commendable and appreciated insofar as he identifies


persons who inflict “gender-based violence against women, including honor killings,”


as well as persons “who have been radicalized after entry into the United States and


engaged in terrorism-related acts, or who have provided material support to terrorism-

related organizations in countries that pose a threat to the United States.”  However,


Mr. Trump’s Executive Order is overly broad and misses it’s mark.  If not stricken,


the Executive Order would facially damage the reputation of the United States


worldwide, because it discriminates against a very large class of persons based on


either their foreign citizenship or residency, or religious beliefs, based on an erroneous


beliefs of one individual (Mr. Trump).  While the several countries Mr. Trump


attempted to identify on his Executive Order are not actually specified, and apparently


cannot even be ascertained from the document or it’s references, nevertheless a ban


on entry to the United States based solely on foreign citizenship or residency, or


religion, facially evidences inhumane discrimination.


CONGRESS MAY ENACT THE LEGISLATION IF NECESSARY


The Legislative branch is charged with enactment of the laws.  Mr. Trump can


therefore tender his Executive Order as a bill to Congress, so that the legislature can


decide whether such a law should be enacted for the benefit of the People of the


United States of America.  However, no statute or authority exists to support the


issuance of this particular Executive Order.


SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION TO STRIKE EXECUTIVE

ORDER AS UNCONSTITUTIONAL INFRINGEMENT ON

ESTABLISHMENT CLAUSE

7. The First Amendment to the United States Constitution is the cornerstone
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of democracy.  The first sentence of the First Amendment provides:


“Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion...”


Mr. Trump’s Executive Order presents a proposed “law” facially prohibiting entry of


persons to the United States based on their adherence to religious beliefs shared in


certain countries.  The Executive Order therefore is facially unconstitutional and must


be stricken as an infringement on the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment.


INJUNCTIVE RELIEF PENDING ADJUDICATION


Plaintiffs respectfully move for an immediate injunction of enforcement of Mr.


Trump’s Executive Order until it’s validity and constitutionality is adjudicated.


Dated:  January 28, 2017 s/Andrew W. Shalaby

Andrew W. Shalaby, Attorney for

Plaintiffs
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PROOF OF SERVICE


I, Andrew W. Shalaby, declare as follows:


I am a citizen of the United States, over the age of eighteen years and not a


party to the within entitled action.  I am employed at 7525 Leviston Ave, El


Cerrito, CA.  On January 28, 2017 I served the attached:


COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTION AND REPEAL OF

PRESIDENTIAL EXECUTIVE ORDER DATED

JANUARY 27, 2017 SUSPENDING VISAS AND

IMMIGRATION BENEFITS WITHOUT

CONGRESSIONAL APPROVAL


on the interested parties in said action, by placing a true copy thereof in sealed

envelope(s) addressed as follows:


Office of the Attorney General

455 Golden Gate, Suite 11000

San Francisco, CA 94102-7004


and served the named document in the manner indicated below:


BY MAIL:   I am familiar with the practices of the U.S. Postal Service, and I


caused true and correct copies of the above documents, by following ordinary


business practices, to be placed and sealed in envelopes(s) addressed to the


addressees, at an office of the U.S. Postal Service in El Cerrito,  California, for


collection and mailing by first class mail with the United States Postal Service.


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California


that the foregoing is true and correct.  Executed January 28, 2017, at El Cerrito,


California.


        s/Andrew W. Shalaby


                   Andrew W. Shalaby    
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From: Muneer Ahmad
[mailto:muneer.ahmad@ylsclinics.org] 
Sent: Saturday, January 28, 2017 5:12 PM
To: Evans, Sarah (USANYE)
<SEvans@usa.doj.gov>; Sasso, Jennifer
(USANYE) <JSasso@usa.doj.gov>; Riley, Susan
(USANYE) <SRiley@usa.doj.gov>
Cc: Mike Wishnie <michael.wishnie@yale.edu>;
Elora Mukherjee
<elora.mukherjee@YLSClinics.org>; Omar
Jadwat <OJadwat@aclu.org>; David Hausman
<dhausman@aclu.org>;
jkornfeld@refugeerights.org; Lee Gelernt
<LGELERNT@aclu.org>
Subject: EMERGENCY Motion in Darweesh et
al. v. Trump et al., No. 1:17-cv-480 (EDNY)
 
Dear Susan, Sarah and Jennifer,
 
Please find attached an emergency motion and
memorandum of law in support thereof in the
above-referenced case.  We are asking the Court
to consider the motion as soon as possible.
 
Sincerely,
Muneer Ahmad
 
Muneer I. Ahmad
Clinical Professor of Law
Yale Law School
P.O. Box 209090
New Haven, CT 06520-9090
tel. (203) 432-4716
fax (203) 432-1426
email: muneer.ahmad@yale.edu
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL
This e-mail message is intended only for the
use of the individual or entity to which it is

(b) (5)
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addressed and may contain information that is
privileged, confidential and exempt from
disclosure.   If you are not the intended
recipient, please do not disseminate, distribute
or copy this communication, by e-mail or
otherwise.  Instead, please notify me
immediately by return e-mail (including the
original message in your reply) and by
telephone and then delete and discard all
copies of the e-mail. 
 

From: Lee Gelernt
Date: Saturday, January 28, 2017 at 9:02 AM
To: "sevans@usa.doj.gov"
Cc: "jennifer.sasso@usdoj.gov", Muneer
Ahmad, Mike Wishnie, Elora Mukherjee, Omar
Jadwat, David Hausman,
"jkornfeld@refugeerights.org"
Subject: Fwd: Darweesh et al. v. Trump et al.,
No. 1:17-cv-480 (EDNY)
 
Papers 

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Wishnie, Michael"
<michael.wishnie@yale.edu>
To: "Scott.eeDunn@usdoj.gov"
<Scott.Dunn@usdoj.gov>
Cc: "Lee Gelernt"
<LGELERNT@aclu.org>, "Karen
Tumlin" <tumlin@nilc.org>, "Justin
Cox" <cox@nilc.org>, "Omar Jadwat"
<OJadwat@aclu.org>, "Cecillia
Wang" <Cwang@aclu.org>, "Muneer
Ahmad"
<muneer.ahmad@ylsclinics.org>,
"Elora Mukherjee"
<elora.mukherjee@YLSClinics.org>,
"Becca Heller"
<bheller@refugeerights.org>,
"spoellot@refugeerights.org"
<spoellot@refugeerights.org>
Subject: Darweesh et al. v. Trump
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et al., No. 1:17-cv-480 (EDNY)

 
Dear Scott,
 
  Attached are courtesy copies of
the habeas petition and motion
for class certification in the above-
captioned case, which we filed
this morning.  The named
petitioners are Iraqi nationals who
arrived at JFK Airport yesterday
evening and were detained there
overnight by CBP, solely pursuant
to an executive order issued hours
earlier. As of the time of filing, the
petitioners were still at JFK in the
custody of respondents.  I have
copied co-counsel on this
message.  Please contact us as
soon as possible, as petitioners
may have no choice but to seek
judicial intervention over the
weekend.
 
  Best,
 
  Mike
 
Michael J. Wishnie
William O. Douglas Clinical
Professor of Law and
  Deputy Dean for Experiential
Education
Yale Law School
(203) 436-4780
michael.wishnie@ylsclinics.org
 
 
________________________________
 
This transmittal is intended for a particular
addressee(s); please do not distribute
further without permission from the
sender. It may constitute a confidential
and privileged attorney-client
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communication or attorney work product.
If it is not clear that you are the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that you
have received this transmittal in error; any
review, copying, distribution, or
dissemination is strictly prohibited. If you
suspect that you have received this
transmittal in error, please notify me
immediately by telephone at (203) 436-
4780, or by email by replying to the
sender, and delete the transmittal and any
attachments from your inbox and data
storage systems. Thank you.
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1. My name is Shahin Fallah. I am a registered attorney in Virginia, and am barred

in New York, bar #5374426. My office address is 8200 Greensboro Dr. Suite 900,

McLean, Virginia.

2. I am an international and immigration attorney and am fluent in Farsi.

3. Because I am able to speak in Farsi, I was able to speak with two individuals who

arrived at Dulles Airport from Iran this afternoon. Both individuals are legal

permanent residents of the United States.

4. Both individuals recounted nearly identical experiences when attempting to enter

the United States this afternoon. As an officer of the court, I swear that the

following is accurate to the best of my knowledge. Neither individual was

comfortable identifying themselves out of fear of retribution.

5. When these legal permanent residents passed through customs, they did not

receive the customary stamp on their materials. Instead, after they collected their

luggage, they were diverted to an open area and had their passport and green card

confiscated.

6. They reported that approximately 50-60 other green card holders were similarly

diverted and held in the same waiting area. They reported that the vast majority

of these legal permanent residents appeared to be of middle eastern descent. They

reported that the people in this holding area showed signs of distress, including

open crying. They reported that they were not allowed to ask questions and were

instructed that they were not allowed to speak on their telephones. 

7. They reported that when interviewed, they were only asked general questions

such as where they were from and where they were going. 

8. One reported also being asked questions about how he had obtained the

approximately $5000 that he was lawfully brining into the country. 

9. After approximately two hours of waiting, these two individuals were released,

however the rest are being held without legal counsel and without explanation as

to what their legal recourse may be.

I swear the foregoing is true, as recounted to me on this 27th of January, 2017.
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THE WHITE HOUSE


Office of the Press Secretary


For Immediate Release


January 27,  2017


EXECUTIVE ORDER


- - - - - - -

PROTECTING THE NATION FROM FOREIGN TERRORIST


ENTRY INTO THE UNITED STATES


     By the authority vested in me as President by the


Constitution and laws of the United States of America,  including


the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) ,  8 U. S. C.  1101


et seq. ,  and section 301 of title 3,  United States Code,  and to


protect the American people from terrorist attacks by foreign


nationals admitted to the United States,  it is hereby ordered as


follows:


     Section 1.   Purpose.   The visa-issuance process plays a


crucial role in detecting individuals with terrorist ties and


stopping them from entering the United States.   Perhaps in no


instance was that more apparent than the terrorist attacks of


September 11,  2001,  when State Department policy prevented


consular officers from properly scrutinizing the visa


applications of several of the 19 foreign nationals who went on


to murder nearly 3, 000 Americans.   And while the visa-issuance


process was reviewed and amended after the September 11 attacks


to better detect would-be terrorists from receiving visas,  these


measures did not stop attacks by foreign nationals who were


admitted to the United States. 


     Numerous foreign-born individuals have been convicted or


implicated in terrorism-related crimes since September 11,  2001, 


including foreign nationals who entered the United States after


receiving visitor,  student,  or employment visas,  or who entered


through the United States refugee resettlement program.


Deteriorating conditions in certain countries due to war, 


strife,  disaster,  and civil unrest increase the likelihood that


terrorists will use any means possible to enter the United


States.   The United States must be vigilant during the visa-
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issuance process to ensure that those approved for admission


do not intend to harm Americans and that they have no ties to


terrorism.


     In order to protect Americans,  the United States must


ensure that those admitted to this country do not bear hostile


attitudes toward it and its founding principles.   The United


States cannot,  and should not,  admit those who do not support


the Constitution,  or those who would place violent ideologies


over American law.   In addition,  the United States should not


admit those who engage in acts of bigotry or hatred (including


"honor" killings,  other forms of violence against women,  or the


persecution of those who practice religions different from their


own)  or those who would oppress Americans of any race,  gender, 


or sexual orientation. 


     Sec.  2.   Policy.   It is the policy of the United States to


protect its citizens from foreign nationals who intend to commit


terrorist attacks in the United States;  and to prevent the


admission of foreign nationals who intend to exploit United


States immigration laws for malevolent purposes. 


     Sec.  3.   Suspension of Issuance of Visas and Other


Immigration Benefits to Nationals of Countries of Particular


Concern.   (a)   The Secretary of Homeland Security,  in


consultation with the Secretary of State and the Director of


National Intelligence,  shall immediately conduct a review to


determine the information needed from any country to adjudicate


any visa,  admission,  or other benefit under the INA


(adjudications)  in order to determine that the individual


seeking the benefit is who the individual claims to be and is


not a security or public-safety threat.


     (b)   The Secretary of Homeland Security,  in consultation


with the Secretary of State and the Director of National


Intelligence,  shall submit to the President a report on the


results of the review described in subsection (a)  of this


section,  including the Secretary of Homeland Security' s


determination of the information needed for adjudications and a


list of countries that do not provide adequate information, 


within 30 days of the date of this order.   The Secretary of


Homeland Security shall provide a copy of the report to the


Secretary of State and the Director of National Intelligence. 


     (c)   To temporarily reduce investigative burdens on


relevant agencies during the review period described in


subsection (a)  of this section,  to ensure the proper review and
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maximum utilization of available resources for the screening of


foreign nationals,  and to ensure that adequate standards are


established to prevent infiltration by foreign terrorists or


criminals,  pursuant to section 212(f)  of the INA,  8 U. S. C.


1182(f) ,  I hereby proclaim that the immigrant and nonimmigrant


entry into the United States of aliens from countries referred


to in section 217(a) (12)  of the INA,  8 U. S. C.  1187(a) (12) ,  would


be detrimental to the interests of the United States,  and I


hereby suspend entry into the United States,  as immigrants and


nonimmigrants,  of such persons for 90 days from the date of this


order (excluding those foreign nationals traveling on diplomatic


visas,  North Atlantic Treaty Organization visas,  C-2 visas for


travel to the United Nations,  and G-1,  G-2,  G-3,  and G-4 visas) .


     (d)   Immediately upon receipt of the report described in


subsection (b)  of this section regarding the information needed


for adjudications,  the Secretary of State shall request all


foreign governments that do not supply such information to start


providing such information regarding their nationals within


60 days of notification. 


     (e)   After the 60-day period described in subsection (d)  of


this section expires,  the Secretary of Homeland Security,  in


consultation with the Secretary of State,  shall submit to the


President a list of countries recommended for inclusion on a


Presidential proclamation that would prohibit the entry of


foreign nationals (excluding those foreign nationals traveling


on diplomatic visas,  North Atlantic Treaty Organization visas, 


C-2 visas for travel to the United Nations,  and G-1,  G-2,  G-3, 


and G-4 visas)  from countries that do not provide the


information requested pursuant to subsection (d)  of this section


until compliance occurs. 


     (f)   At any point after submitting the list described in


subsection (e)  of this section,  the Secretary of State or the


Secretary of Homeland Security may submit to the President the


names of any additional countries recommended for similar


treatment.


     (g)   Notwithstanding a suspension pursuant to subsection


(c)  of this section or pursuant to a Presidential proclamation


described in subsection (e)  of this section,  the Secretaries of


State and Homeland Security may,  on a case-by-case basis,  and


when in the national interest,  issue visas or other immigration


benefits to nationals of countries for which visas and benefits


are otherwise blocked. 
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     (h)   The Secretaries of State and Homeland Security shall


submit to the President a joint report on the progress in


implementing this order within 30 days of the date of this


order,  a second report within 60 days of the date of this order, 


a third report within 90 days of the date of this order,  and a


fourth report within 120 days of the date of this order. 


     Sec.  4.   Implementing Uniform Screening Standards for All


Immigration Programs.   (a)   The Secretary of State,  the


Secretary of Homeland Security,  the Director of National


Intelligence,  and the Director of the Federal Bureau of


Investigation shall implement a program,  as part of the


adjudication process for immigration benefits,  to identify


individuals seeking to enter the United States on a fraudulent


basis with the intent to cause harm,  or who are at risk of


causing harm subsequent to their admission.  This program will


include the development of a uniform screening standard and


procedure,  such as in-person interviews;  a database of identity


documents proffered by applicants to ensure that duplicate


documents are not used by multiple applicants;  amended


application forms that include questions aimed at identifying


fraudulent answers and malicious intent;  a mechanism to ensure


that the applicant is who the applicant claims to be;  a process


to evaluate the applicant' s likelihood of becoming a positively


contributing member of society and the applicant' s ability to


make contributions to the national interest;  and a mechanism to


assess whether or not the applicant has the intent to commit


criminal or terrorist acts after entering the United States.


     (b)   The Secretary of Homeland Security,  in conjunction


with the Secretary of State,  the Director of National


Intelligence,  and the Director of the Federal Bureau of


Investigation,  shall submit to the President an initial report


on the progress of this directive within 60 days of the date of


this order,  a second report within 100 days of the date of this


order,  and a third report within 200 days of the date of this


order.


     Sec.  5.   Realignment of the U. S.  Refugee Admissions Program


for Fiscal Year 2017.   (a)   The Secretary of State shall suspend


the U. S.  Refugee Admissions Program (USRAP)  for 120


days.   During the 120-day period,  the Secretary of State,  in


conjunction with the Secretary of Homeland Security and in


consultation with the Director of National Intelligence,  shall


review the USRAP application and adjudication process to


determine what additional procedures should be taken to ensure


that those approved for refugee admission do not pose a threat
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to the security and welfare of the United States,  and shall


implement such additional procedures.   Refugee applicants who


are already in the USRAP process may be admitted upon the


initiation and completion of these revised procedures.   Upon the


date that is 120 days after the date of this order,  the


Secretary of State shall resume USRAP admissions only for


nationals of countries for which the Secretary of State,  the


Secretary of Homeland Security,  and the Director of National


Intelligence have jointly determined that such additional


procedures are adequate to ensure the security and welfare of


the United States. 


     (b)   Upon the resumption of USRAP admissions,  the Secretary


of State,  in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland


Security,  is further directed to make changes,  to the extent


permitted by law,  to prioritize refugee claims made by


individuals on the basis of religious-based persecution, 


provided that the religion of the individual is a minority


religion in the individual' s country of nationality.   Where


necessary and appropriate,  the Secretaries of State and Homeland


Security shall recommend legislation to the President that would


assist with such prioritization. 


     (c)   Pursuant to section 212(f)  of the INA,  8 U. S. C.


1182(f) ,  I hereby proclaim that the entry of nationals of Syria


as refugees is detrimental to the interests of the United States


and thus suspend any such entry until such time as I have


determined that sufficient changes have been made to the USRAP


to ensure that admission of Syrian refugees is consistent with


the national interest.


     (d)   Pursuant to section 212(f)  of the INA,  8 U. S. C.


1182(f) ,  I hereby proclaim that the entry of more than 50, 000


refugees in fiscal year 2017 would be detrimental to the


interests of the United States,  and thus suspend any such entry


until such time as I determine that additional admissions would


be in the national interest. 


     (e)   Notwithstanding the temporary suspension imposed


pursuant to subsection (a)  of this section,  the Secretaries of


State and Homeland Security may jointly determine to admit


individuals to the United States as refugees on a case-by-case


basis,  in their discretion,  but only so long as they determine


that the admission of such individuals as refugees is in the


national interest -- including when the person is a religious


minority in his country of nationality facing religious


persecution,  when admitting the person would enable the United
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States to conform its conduct to a preexisting international


agreement,  or when the person is already in transit and denying


admission would cause undue hardship -- and it would not pose a


risk to the security or welfare of the United States.


     (f)   The Secretary of State shall submit to the President


an initial report on the progress of the directive in subsection


(b)  of this section regarding prioritization of claims made by


individuals on the basis of religious-based persecution within


100 days of the date of this order and shall submit a second


report within 200 days of the date of this order.


     (g)   It is the policy of the executive branch that,  to the


extent permitted by law and as practicable,  State and local


jurisdictions be granted a role in the process of determining


the placement or settlement in their jurisdictions of aliens


eligible to be admitted to the United States as refugees.   To


that end,  the Secretary of Homeland Security shall examine


existing law to determine the extent to which,  consistent with


applicable law,  State and local jurisdictions may have greater


involvement in the process of determining the placement or


resettlement of refugees in their jurisdictions,  and shall


devise a proposal to lawfully promote such involvement. 


     Sec.  6.   Rescission of Exercise of Authority Relating to


the Terrorism Grounds of Inadmissibility.   The Secretaries of


State and Homeland Security shall,  in consultation with the


Attorney General,  consider rescinding the exercises of authority


in section 212 of the INA,  8 U. S. C.  1182,  relating to the


terrorism grounds of inadmissibility,  as well as any related


implementing memoranda. 


     Sec.  7.   Expedited Completion of the Biometric Entry-Exit


Tracking System.   (a)   The Secretary of Homeland Security shall


expedite the completion and implementation of a biometric entry-

exit tracking system for all travelers to the United States,  as


recommended by the National Commission on Terrorist Attacks Upon


the United States. 


     (b)   The Secretary of Homeland Security shall submit to the


President periodic reports on the progress of the directive


contained in subsection (a)  of this section.   The initial report


shall be submitted within 100 days of the date of this order,  a


second report shall be submitted within 200 days of the date of


this order,  and a third report shall be submitted within 365


days of the date of this order.   Further,  the Secretary shall


submit a report every 180 days thereafter until the system is


fully deployed and operational. 
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     Sec.  8.   Visa Interview Security.   (a)   The Secretary of


State shall immediately suspend the Visa Interview Waiver


Program and ensure compliance with section 222 of the INA, 


8 U. S. C.  1222,  which requires that all individuals seeking a


nonimmigrant visa undergo an in-person interview,  subject to


specific statutory exceptions. 


     (b)   To the extent permitted by law and subject to the


availability of appropriations,  the Secretary of State shall


immediately expand the Consular Fellows Program,  including by


substantially increasing the number of Fellows,  lengthening or


making permanent the period of service,  and making language


training at the Foreign Service Institute available to Fellows


for assignment to posts outside of their area of core linguistic


ability,  to ensure that non-immigrant visa-interview wait times


are not unduly affected. 


     Sec.  9.   Visa Validity Reciprocity.   The Secretary of State


shall review all nonimmigrant visa reciprocity agreements to


ensure that they are,  with respect to each visa classification, 


truly reciprocal insofar as practicable with respect to validity


period and fees,  as required by sections 221(c)  and 281 of the


INA,  8 U. S. C.  1201(c)  and 1351,  and other treatment.   If a


country does not treat United States nationals seeking


nonimmigrant visas in a reciprocal manner,  the Secretary of


State shall adjust the visa validity period,  fee schedule,  or


other treatment to match the treatment of United States


nationals by the foreign country,  to the extent practicable. 


     Sec.  10.   Transparency and Data Collection.   (a)   To


be more transparent with the American people,  and to more


effectively implement policies and practices that serve the


national interest,  the Secretary of Homeland Security,  in


consultation with the Attorney General,  shall,  consistent with


applicable law and national security,  collect and make publicly


available within 180 days,  and every 180 days thereafter: 


(i)    information regarding the number of foreign


nationals in the United States who have been charged


with terrorism-related offenses while in the United


States;  convicted of terrorism-related offenses while


in the United States;  or removed from the United


States based on terrorism-related activity, 


affiliation,  or material support to a terrorism-

related organization,  or any other national security
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reasons since the date of this order or the last


reporting period,  whichever is later; 


(ii)    information regarding the number of foreign


nationals in the United States who have been


radicalized after entry into the United States and


engaged in terrorism-related acts,  or who have


provided material support to terrorism-related


organizations in countries that pose a threat to the


United States,  since the date of this order or the


last reporting period,  whichever is later;  and


(iii)   information regarding the number and types of


acts of gender-based violence against women,  including


honor killings,  in the United States by foreign


nationals,  since the date of this order or the last


reporting period,  whichever is later;  and


(iv)    any other information relevant to public safety


and security as determined by the Secretary of


Homeland Security and the Attorney General,  including


information on the immigration status of foreign


nationals charged with major offenses. 


     (b)   The Secretary of State shall,  within one year of the


date of this order,  provide a report on the estimated long-term


costs of the USRAP at the Federal,  State,  and local levels. 


     Sec.  11.   General Provisions.   (a)   Nothing in this order


shall be construed to impair or otherwise affect:


(i)    the authority granted by law to an executive


department or agency,  or the head thereof;  or


(ii)   the functions of the Director of the Office of


Management and Budget relating to budgetary, 


administrative,  or legislative proposals.


     (b)   This order shall be implemented consistent with


applicable law and subject to the availability of


appropriations.


     (c)   This order is not intended to,  and does not,  create


any right or benefit,  substantive or procedural,  enforceable at


law or in equity by any party against the United States,  its


departments,  agencies,  or entities,  its officers,  employees,  or


agents,  or any other person. 
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                             DONALD J.  TRUMP


THE WHITE HOUSE, 


    January 27,  2017. 


                             # # #
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 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

Alexandria Division

 

 

 

 

 

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS AND COMPLAINT FOR


DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

 

 

Tareq Aqel Mohammed Aziz

and

Ammar Aqel Mohammed Aziz,

 by their next friend,

Aqel Muhammad Aziz,

 and

JOHN DOES 1-60,

Petitioners,

v.

 

DONALD TRUMP, President of the United


States; U.S. DEPARTMENT OF


HOMELAND SECURITY (“DHS”); U.S. 

CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION


(“CBP”); JOHN KELLY, Secretary of DHS;


KEVIN K. MCALEENAN, Acting


Commissioner of CBP; and WAYNE


BIONDI, Customs and Border Protection 

(CBP) Port Director of the Area Port of 

Washington Dulles, 

 

Respondents.

Case No. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: January 28, 2017
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INTRODUCTION

1. Petitioners Tareq Aqel Mohammed Aziz and Ammar Aqel Mohammed Aziz are


two brothers of Yemeni nationality, who were granted Lawful Permanent Resident (“LPR”)


status by virtue of their status as immediate relatives of their father, a US citizen.  Petitioners


landed at Washington-Dulles International Airport  (“IAD”) on the morning of January 28, 2017,


with plans to continue on to Michigan where their father was awaiting them.  After conducting


standard procedures of administrative processing and security checks, the federal government


has deemed both Petitioners to be admissible to the United States as immigrants. 

2. Despite these findings and Petitioner’s valid entry documents, U.S. Customs and


Border Protection (“CBP”) blocked Petitioners from exiting IAD and detained Petitioners

therein. No magistrate has determined that there is sufficient justification for the continued


detention of either Petitioner.  Instead, CBP is holding Petitioners at IAD  along with


approximately 50-60 other LPRs, who are named herein as John Does 1-60  solely pursuant to

an executive order issued on January 27, 2017. 

3. Because the executive order is unlawful as applied to Petitioners, their continued


detention based solely on the executive order violates their Fifth Amendment procedural and

substantive due process rights, violates the First Amendment Establishment Clause, is ultra vires

to the immigration statutes, and violates the Administrative Procedure Act and Religious


Freedom Restoration Act.   Therefore, Petitioners respectfully apply to this Court for a writ of


habeas corpus to remedy their unlawful detention by Respondents, and for declaratory and

injunctive relief to prevent such harms from recurring.
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4. Petitioners JOHN DOES 1-60 are approximately 50-60 lawful permanent


residents of the United States, most of whom are returning from trips abroad, all of whom are


nationals of one of the following seven countries: Lybia, Iraq, Iran, Yemen, Syria, Sudan,

Somalia.  All are presently being held against their will by CBP officers in the international


arrivals area of Dulles Airport.  All are being held in an area where other passengers

disembarking from international flights can see and hear them; accordingly, there is no reason


that their attorneys could not be permitted to meet with them.

5. There are currently at least twelve attorneys waiting outside the international


arrivals area at Dulles Airport.  They are not being allowed back to see John Does 1-60.  Nor are


they being allowed to see Petitioners, despite being retained by Petitioners’ father to represent


the Petitioners.  The undersigned attorney Simon Sandoval-Moshenberg called a CBP

supervisor, and accurately represented himself to be Petitioners’ attorney, but was not given any


information about Petitioners.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. Jurisdiction is conferred on this court by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1361, 2241, 2243,


and the Habeas Corpus Suspension Clause of the U.S. Constitution. This court has further

remedial authority pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 et seq.

7. Venue properly lies within the Eastern District of Virginia, Alexandria Division


because a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to this action occurred in the


District. 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).
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8. No petition for habeas corpus has previously been filed in any court to review

Petitioners’ cases.

PARTIES

9. Petitioner Tareq Aqel Mohammed Aziz is a 21-year-old citizen and national of

Yemen.  He was granted lawful permanent resident (LPR) status by the US Embassy in Djibouti,


by virtue of being an immediate relative of a US citizen.

10. Petitioner Ammar Aqel Mohammed Aziz, is a 19-year-old citizen and national of


Yemen.  He was granted lawful permanent resident (LPR) status by the US Embassy in Djibouti,


by virtue of being an immediate relative of a US citizen.

11. Aqel Muhammad Aziz is a US citizen.  He is a resident of Flint, Michigan.

12. Petitioners JOHN DOES 1-60 are approximately 60 lawful permanent residents of


the United States, all nationals of Syria, Lybia, Iran, Iraq, Somalia, Yemen or Sudan, who landed

at Dulles Airport in the last 24 hours and are not being allowed to pass through international


arrivals.  They are being held at international arrivals against their will.

13. The U.S. Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) is a cabinet department of


the United States federal government with the primary mission of securing the United States.

14. U.S. Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”) is an agency within DHS with the


primary mission of detecting and preventing the unlawful entry of persons and goods into the


United States.
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15. Respondent John Kelly is the Secretary of DHS.  Secretary Kelly has immediate


custody of Petitioners and other members of the proposed class. He is sued in his official


capacity.

16. Respondent Kevin K. McAleenan is the Acting Commissioner of CBP. Acting


Commissioner McAleenan has immediate custody of Petitioners and other members of the


proposed class. He is sued in his official capacity.

17. Respondent Wayne Biondi is the Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Port


Director of the Area Port of Washington Dulles, which has immediate custody of Petitioners.  He


is sued in his official capacity.

18. Respondent Donald Trump is the President of the United States.  He is sued in his


official capacity.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

President Trump’s January 27, 2017 Executive Order

19. On January 20, 2017, Donald Trump was inaugurated as the forty-fifth President


of the United States.

20. One week later, on January 27, at about 4:30pm, President Trump signed an


executive order entitled, “Protecting the Nation from Foreign Terrorist Entry into the United

States,” which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is hereinafter referred to as the “EO.”   

21. Citing the threat of terrorism committed by foreign nationals, the EO directs a

variety of changes to the manner and extent to which non-citizens may seek and obtain


admission to the United States, particularly (although not exclusively) as refugees.  Among other
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things, the EO imposes a 120-day moratorium on the refugee resettlement program as a whole;

proclaims that “that the entry of nationals of Syria as refugees is detrimental to the interests of


the United States,” and therefore “suspend[s]” indefinitely their entry to the country; similarly


proclaims that “the entry of more than 50,000 refugees in fiscal year 2017 would be detrimental


to the interests” of the country.

22. Most relevant to the instant action is Section 3(c) of the EO, in which President


Trump proclaims “that the immigrant and nonimmigrant entry into the United States of aliens


from countries referred to in section 217(a)(12) of the INA, 8 U.S.C. 1187(a)(12), would be


detrimental to the interests of the United States,” and that he is therefore “suspend[ing] entry into


the United States, as immigrants and nonimmigrants, of such persons for 90 days from the date


of this order,” with narrow exceptions not relevant here.

23. There are seven countries that fit the criteria in 8 U.S.C. § 1187(a)(12): Iraq, Iran,

Libya, Somalia, Sudan, Syria, and Yemen.  According to the terms of the EO, therefore, the


“entry into the United States” of non-citizens from those countries is “suspended” from 90 days


from the date of the EO.

Petitioners’ claim to lawful permanent resident status  

24. The Aziz brothers were granted immigrant visas by the U.S. Embassy in Djibouti,


by virtue of their status as immediate relatives of their father, who is a US citizen.

25. They departed Addis Ababa, Ethiopia on a flight to Washington Dulles


International Airport (“IAD”) about two hours before President Trump signed the EO.  The flight
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made a stop in Dublin, Ireland, and then landed at IAD at around 8:00am on Saturday, January


28.

26. Upon information and belief, on arriving at IAD, the Aziz brothers were taken by


unknown CBP agents at international arrivals, where they were held for the entire day and where

they are still held. 

27. In the afternoon of January 28, various attorneys retained by the Aziz brothers’


father attempted to ascertain the whereabouts of Petitioners and to advocate for their release from


CBP custody, but none of the attorneys were given any information or allowed to speak to


Petitioners.

28. Petitioners are not being permitted to meet with their attorneys who are present at


IAD and have made multiple attempts to meet with them.

29. Upon knowledge and belief, Petitioners remain in the custody of CBP, either at


IAD or elsewhere in this District.

30. No grounds of inadmissibility under the Immigration and Nationality Act applies


to either Petitioner, nor is there any reason under Title 8 of U.S. Code or Title 8 of the Code of


Federal Regulations not to allow Petitioners to enter the United States as lawful permanent

residents.

31. Congress has provided that lawful permanent residents in Petitioners’ situation are


entitled to enter the United States.  Under 8 U.S.C. § 1101(a)(13)(C), a lawful permanent

resident is regarded as seeking an admission into the United States for purposes of the

immigration laws” only if he or she “has abandoned or relinquished that status,” id. §


1101(a)(13)(C)(i), has been absent from the United States for more than 180 days continuously,

Document ID: 0.7.10904.5251-000008

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



8

is in removal proceedings, has committed one of a class of enumerated offenses, or has


attempted to enter without inspection.  

32. None of the foregoing circumstances applies to Petitioners and therefore they are

not deemed to be seeking admission and have a right to enter.  In re Collado Munoz, 21 I.


& N. Dec. 1061, 1065-1066 (1998) (en banc) (requiring immigration judge to look to 8 U.S.C. §


1101(a)(13)(C) in determining whether lawful permanent resident was applicant for admission);


Vartelas v. Holder, 566 U.S. 257, 132 S. Ct. 1479, 1484, 182 L. Ed. 2d 473 (2012) (citing In re

Collado-Munoz and recognizing that the definition supersedes previous statute’s definition of


entry). 

33. Respondents are also detaining Petitioners in violation of the Due Process Clause. 

In Rosenberg v. Fleuti, 374 U.S. 449, 462 (1963), the Supreme Court held that “an innocent,


casual, and brief excursion by a resident alien outside this country's borders may not have been

intended as a departure disruptive of his resident alien status and therefore may not subject him

to the consequences of an entry into the country on his return.” (internal quotation marks and


citations omitted); see also Kwong Hai Chew v. Colding, 344 U.S. 590, 601-02 (1953)


(assimilating status, for constitutional purposes, of lawful permanent resident who had been

abroad for five months to that of one continuously present). The Supreme Court reaffirmed this

constitutional principle in Landon v. Plasencia, 459 U.S. 21, 31 (1982) (describing Chew as

standing for the proposition that “a resident alien returning from a brief trip has a right to due


process just as would a continuously present resident alien”). 

34. As lawful permanent residents of the United States, Petitioners are attempting to


return home.  
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35. John Does 1-60 are, on information and belief, approximately 50-60 lawful


permanent residents of the United States situated similarly to the Aziz brothers.  None is being


allowed access to counsel, notwithstanding the fact that there are over a dozen barred attorneys

on the scene and willing to represent them pro bono.  All are being denied entry into the United

States and all are being told that they will be put on an airplane imminently.

CAUSES OF ACTION 

COUNT ONE

FIFTH AMENDMENT – PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS 

DENIAL OF RIGHT TO ENTER UNITED STATES

36. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation


contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

37. Procedural due process requires that the government be constrained before it acts


in a way that deprives individuals of liberty interests protected under the Due Process Clause of


the Fifth Amendment. Additionally, due process requires that arriving immigrants be afforded


those statutory rights granted by Congress and the principle that “[m]inimum due process rights


attach to statutory rights.” Dia v. Ashcroft, 353 F.3d 228, 239 (3d Cir. 2003) (alteration in

original) (quoting Marincas v. Lewis, 92 F.3d 195, 203 (3d Cir. 1996)).

38. The United States government is obligated by United States law to allow LPRs


admission into the United States, unless those LPRs are for some reason inadmissible.

39. Petitioners and John Does 1-60 were unlawfully denied the right to enter the


United States as LPRs, without due process, in violation of the due process rights guaranteed by


the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments.
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40. In addition, they are being denied their right to counsel, by not being allowed to


meet with attorneys who are present on the scene and willing to represent them pro bono.

COUNT TWO

FIRST AMENDMENT – ESTABLISHMENT CLAUSE 

41. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation


contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

42. The EO exhibits hostility to a specific religious faith, Islam, and gives preference

to other religious faiths, principally Christianity. The EO therefore violates the Establishment


Clause of the First Amendment by not pursuing a course of neutrality with regard to different

religious faiths.

COUNT THREE

THE IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT

43. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation


contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

44. The Immigration and Nationality Act and implementing regulations entitle


Petitioners to enter the United States as LPRs. Respondents’ actions in seeking to return

Petitioners to Yemen, taken pursuant to the EO, deprive Petitioners of their statutory and

regulatory rights.

COUNT FOUR

FIFTH AMENDMENT – EQUAL PROTECTION
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45. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation


contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

46. The EO discriminates against Petitioners on the basis of their country of origin


and religion, without sufficient justification, and therefore violates the equal protection

component of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment. 

47. Additionally, the EO was substantially motivated by animus toward and has a

disparate effect on Muslims, which also violates the equal protection component of the Due

Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment. Jana-Rock Const., Inc. v. N.Y. State Dep’t of Econ.


Dev., 438 F.3d 195, 204 (2d Cir. 2006); Hunter v. Underwood, 471 U.S. 222 (1985).

48. Respondents have demonstrated an intent to discriminate against Plaintiffs on the


basis of religion through repeated public statements that make clear the EO was designed to


prohibit the entry of Muslims to the United States. See Michael D. Shear & Helene Cooper,

Trump Bars Refugees and Citizens of 7 Muslim Countries, N.Y. Times (Jan. 27, 2017),

(“[President Trump] ordered that Christians and others from minority religions be granted


priority over Muslims.”); Carol Morello, Trump Signs Order Temporarily Halting Admission of


Refugees, Promises Priority for Christians, Wash. Post (Jan. 27, 2017).

49. Applying a general law in a fashion that discriminate on the basis of religion in


this way violates Petitioner’s rights to equal protection the Fifth Amendment Due Process


Clause. Hayden v. County of Nassau, 180 F.3d 42, 48 (2d Cir. 1999); Yick Wo v. Hopkins, 118

U.S. 356, 373-74 (1886). Petitioner satisfies the Supreme Court’s test to determine whether a


facially neutral law  in the case, the EO and federal immigration law  has been applied in a


discriminatory fashion. The Supreme Court requires an individual bringing suit to challenge the
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application of a law bear the burden of demonstrating a “prima facie case of discriminatory


purpose.”Vill. of Arlington Heights v. Metro. Hous. Dev. Corp., 429 U.S. 252, 266-7 (1977). This


test examines the impact of the official action, whether there has been a clear pattern

unexplainable on other grounds besides discrimination, the historical background of the decision,


the specific sequence of events leading up to the challenged decision, and departures from the


normal procedural sequence. Id.

50. Here, President Donald Trump and senior staff have made clear that EO will be


applied to primarily exclude individuals on the basis of their national origin and being Muslim.


See, e.g., sources cited, supra ¶ 48, See, e.g., Donald J. Trump, Donald J. Trump Statement On


Preventing Muslim Immigration, (Dec. 7, 2015), https://www.donaldjtrump.com/press-

releases/donald-j.-trump-statement-on-preventing-muslim-immigration (“Donald J. Trump is


calling for a total and complete shutdown of Muslims entering the United States until our


country's representatives can figure out what is going on.”); Abby Phillip and Abigail


Hauslohner, Trump on the Future of Proposed Muslim Ban, Registry: ‘You know my plans’,


Wash. Post (Dec. 22, 2016). Further, the President has promised that preferential treatment will

be given to Christians, unequivocally demonstrating the special preferences and discriminatory


impact that the EO has upon Petitioners. See sources cited, supra ¶ 48.

51. Thus, Respondents have applied the EO with forbidden animus and


discriminatory intent in violation of the equal protection of the Fifth Amendment and violated


Petitioners’ equal protection rights.
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COUNT FIVE

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT

52. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation


contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

53. Respondents detained and mistreated Petitioners solely pursuant to an executive

order issued on January 27, 2017, which expressly discriminates against Petitioners on the basis

of their country of origin and was substantially motivated by animus toward Muslims. See supra

Count Four. 

54. The EO exhibits hostility to a specific religious faith, Islam, and gives preference

to other religious faiths, principally Christianity.

55. The INA forbids discrimination in issuance of visas based on a person’s race,


nationality, place of birth, or place of residence. 8 U.S.C. § 1152(a)(1)(A).

56. The INA and implementing regulations entitle Petitioners to enter the United


States as LPRs.

57. Respondents’ actions in detaining and mistreating Petitioners were arbitrary,


capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law, in violation of APA


§ 706(2)(A); contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity, in violation of APA


§ 706(2)(B); in excess of statutory jurisdiction, authority, or limitations, or short of statutory


right, in violation of APA § 706(2)(C); and without observance of procedure required by law,  in


violation of § 706(2)(D).

COUNT SIX

RELIGIOUS FREEDOM RESTORATION ACT
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58. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation


contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

59. The EO will have the effect of imposing a special disability on the basis of


religious views or religious status, by withdrawing an important immigration benefit principally


from Muslims on account of their religion. In doing so, the EO places a substantial burden on

Petitioners’ exercise of religion in a way that is not the least restrictive means of furthering a


compelling governmental interest. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Petitioners pray that this Court grant the following relief:

(1)   Issue a Writ of Habeas Corpus requiring Respondents to release Petitioners


forthwith;

(2)   Issue an injunction ordering Respondents not to detain any Petitioners solely on the

basis of the EO;

(3)   Enter a judgment declaring that Respondents’ detention of Petitioners is and will be


unauthorized by statute and contrary to law;

(4)   Award Petitioners reasonable costs and attorney’s fees; and

(5)   Grant any other and further relief that this Court may deem fit and proper.
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Respectfully submitted,

//s//  Date: 1/28/2017

Simon Y. Sandoval-Moshenberg (VA 77110)

LEGAL AID JUSTICE CENTER

6066 Leesburg Pike #520

Falls Church, VA 22041

(703) 720-5605 / cell (434) 218-9376

simon@justice4all.org

Andrew J. Pincus (pro hac vice motion forthcoming)

Paul W. Hughes

MAYER BROWN LLP

1999 K Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20006

(202) 263-2000

apincus@mayerbrown.com

phughes@mayerbrown.com
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 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS AND COMPLAINT FOR


DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

 

 

HAMEED KHALID DARWEESH and


HAIDER SAMEER ABDULKHALEQ


ALSHAWI,

on behalf of themselves and others similarly


situated,

Petitioners,

v.

 

DONALD TRUMP, President of the United


States; U.S. DEPARTMENT OF


HOMELAND SECURITY (“DHS”); U.S.


CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION


(“CBP”); JOHN KELLY, Secretary of DHS;


KEVIN K. MCALEENAN, Acting


Commissioner of CBP; and JAMES T.

MADDEN, New York Field Director, CBP,

 

Respondents.

Case No. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: January 28, 2017
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INTRODUCTION

Petitioners Hameed Khalid Darweesh, an Iraqi husband and father of three, and Haider


Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi,
1
 an Iraqi husband and father, landed at John F. Kennedy


International Airport (“JFK Airport”) on the evening of January 27, 2017.   Petitioner Darweesh


was granted a Special Immigrant Visa (“SIV”) on January 20, 2017 as a result of his service to the


United States as an interpreter, engineer and contractor.  Petitioner Alshawi was granted a Follow


to Join Visa on January 11, 2017 to rejoin his wife and son, who were granted refugee status due


to their family’s association with the United States military.   After conducting standard procedures


of administrative processing and security checks, the federal government has deemed both


Petitioners not to pose threats to the United States. 

Despite these findings and Petitioners’ valid entry documents, U.S. Customs and Border


Protection (“CBP”) blocked both Petitioners from exiting JFK Airport and detained Petitioners

therein. No magistrate has determined that there is sufficient justification for the continued


detention of either Petitioner.  Instead, CBP is holding Petitioners at JFK Airport solely pursuant


to an executive order issued on January 27, 2017.  

Because the executive order is unlawful as applied to Petitioners, their continued detention


based solely on the executive order violates their Fifth Amendment procedural and substantive due


process rights, and is ultra vires the immigration statutes. Further, Petitioners’ continued unlawful


detention is part of a widespread pattern applied to many refugees and arriving aliens detained


after the issuance of the January 27, 2017 executive order. Therefore, on behalf of themselves and


                                               

1
 There are multiple English spellings of Mr. Alshawi’s name.
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all others similarly situated, Petitioners respectfully apply to this Court for a writ of habeas corpus


to remedy their unlawful detention by Respondents, and for declaratory and injunctive relief to


prevent such harms from recurring.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. Jurisdiction is conferred on this court by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1361, 2241, 2243, and


the Habeas Corpus Suspension Clause of the U.S. Constitution. This court has further remedial


authority pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 et seq.

2. Venue properly lies within the Eastern District of New York because a substantial


part of the events or omissions giving rise to this action occurred in the District. 28 U.S.C. §


1391(b).

3. No petition for habeas corpus has previously been filed in any court to review either


of Petitioners’ cases.

PARTIES

4. Hameed Khalid Darweesh, named Petitioner, is a citizen of Iraq and recipient of an


Iraqi Special Immigrant Visa (SIV).  As an interpreter, electrical engineer and contractor, Mr.


Darweesh performed valuable work on behalf of the U.S. government in Iraq from roughly 2003


to 2013.   Despite being issued a valid visa on January 20, 2017 to relocate to the United States,


Mr. Darweesh is presently detained at JFK Airport.  As of the filing of this complaint, the sole


basis for Defendants’ continued custody of Mr. Darweesh is the January 27, 2017 executive order


issued by President Donald J. Trump.
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5. Haider Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi, named Petitioner, is a citizen of Iraq and


recipient of a Follow to Join (FTJ) Visa.  His wife and child are lawful permanent residents residing


in Houston, Texas.  Despite being issued valid travel documentation on January 11, 2017, to


relocate to the United States, Mr. Alshawi is presently detained at JFK Airport.   As of the filing of


this complaint, the sole basis for Defendants’ continued custody of Mr. Alshawi is the January 27,


2017 executive order issued by President Donald J. Trump.

6. The U.S. Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) is a cabinet department of the


United States federal government with the primary mission of securing the United States.

7. U.S. Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”) is an agency within DHS with the


primary mission of detecting and preventing the unlawful entry of persons and goods into the


United States.

8. Respondent John Kelly is the Secretary of DHS.  Secretary Kelly has immediate


custody of Petitioners and other members of the proposed class. He is sued in his official capacity.

9. Respondent Kevin K. McAleenan is the Acting Commissioner of CBP. Acting


Commissioner McAleenan has immediate custody of Petitioners and other members of the


proposed class. He is sued in his official capacity.

10. Respondent James T. Madden is the Director of the New York Field Office of CBP,


which has immediate custody of Petitioners and other members of the proposed class.  He is sued


in his official capacity.

11. Respondent Donald Trump is the President of the United States.  He is sued in his


official capacity.
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

President Trump’s January 27, 2017 Executive Order

12. On January 20, 2017, Donald Trump was inaugurated as the forty-fifth President of


the United States.

13. One week later, on January 27, President Trump signed an executive order entitled,


“Protecting the Nation from Foreign Terrorist Entry into the United States,” which is attached


hereto as Exhibit A and is hereinafter referred to as the “EO.”   

14. Citing the threat of terrorism committed by foreign nationals, the EO directs a


variety of changes to the manner and extent to which non-citizens may seek and obtain admission


to the United States, particularly (although not exclusively) as refugees.  Among other things, the


EO imposes a 120-day moratorium on the refugee resettlement program as a whole; proclaims that


“that the entry of nationals of Syria as refugees is detrimental to the interests of the United States,”


and therefore “suspend[s]” indefinitely their entry to the country; similarly proclaims that “the


entry of more than 50,000 refugees in fiscal year 2017 would be detrimental to the interests” of


the country.

15. Most relevant to the instant action is Section 3(c) of the EO, in which President


Trump proclaims “that the immigrant and nonimmigrant entry into the United States of aliens from


countries referred to in section 217(a)(12) of the INA, 8 U.S.C. 1187(a)(12), would be detrimental


to the interests of the United States,” and that he is therefore “suspend[ing] entry into the United


States, as immigrants and nonimmigrants, of such persons for 90 days from the date of this order,”


with narrow exceptions not relevant here.
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16. There are seven countries that fit the criteria in 8 U.S.C. § 1187(a)(12): Iraq, Iran,


Libya, Somalia, Sudan, Syria, and Yemen.  According to the terms of the EO, therefore, the “entry


into the United States” of non-citizens from those countries is “suspended” from 90 days from the


date of the EO.

Petitioner Hameed Khalid Darweesh  

17. Hameed Khalid Darweesh is a 53-year-old citizen of Iraq, married with three


children (twenty years, fifteen years, and seven years of age). 

18. Mr. Darweesh was trained and worked as an electrical engineer in Iraq. Between


March 20, 2003 and September 30, 2013, he was contracted by the U.S. government to work in a


variety of positions that placed him in substantial risk of being targeted, attacked and killed by


anti-American militias and insurgents. 

19. Mr. Darweesh’s services included: working as an interpreter for the U.S. Army


101st Airborne in Baghdad and Mosul from April 1, 2003 to January 15, 2004; working as an


interpreter for the 91st Engineering Unit at the Baghdad Airport from January 20, 2004 to August


4, 2004; working as a Project Engineer for the U.S. Government Projects Contracting Office Oil


sector of North Iraq from December 5, 2005 to December 1, 2006; and, working for Vessar


contractors of the U.S. government from 2006 to 2011.

20. Mr. Darweesh was directly targeted twice for his association with the U.S. Armed


Forces. While working at the Baghdad Airport between 2004 and 2005, the Baghdad Police


entered his house, claiming they were searching for a terrorist.  The Baghdad Police are widely


known to be closely affiliated with anti-American militias. Shortly after this incident, two of Mr.
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Darweesh’s colleagues were killed as soon as they arrived at work. As a result of these attacks,


Mr. Darweesh feared for his safety and decided to leave Baghdad for Kirkuk. 

21. In the second instance, in July 2009, Mr. Darweesh was stopped at a market in


Kirkuk where he was informed by a local shopkeeper that men were driving around in a BMW


asking for him by name and the location of his house.  These men returned a second time the


following week, and Mr. Darweesh had strong reasons to suspect that the men searching for him


were terrorists.   As a result, Mr. Darweesh and his family were forced to flee to a different area of


Iraq, Erbil.  

22. Based on these threats and his over ten years of service to the U.S. government, Mr.


Darweesh applied for an Iraqi Special Immigrant Visa (SIV) status on or around October 1, 2014.  

23. Congress created the Iraqi and Afghan Special Immigrant Visa (SIV) programs to


provide safety and refuge in the United States for Iraqis and Afghans who face or have faced


serious threats on account of their faithful and valuable service to the United States.   The programs


were established pursuant to the Refugee Crisis in Iraq Act of 2007, 8 U.S.C. § 1157 note at 1241-

49 and the Afghan Allies Protection Act of 2008, 8 U.S.C. § 1101 note at 601-02.

24. The first step in pursuing a SIV is obtaining Chief of Mission (COM) Approval


from the Embassy.  The Chief of Mission determines whether the applicant has “provided faithful


and valuable service to the United States” and “has experienced or is experiencing a serious threat”

as a “consequence” of that service.   

25. After obtaining COM Approval, a SIV Applicant files the Form I-360 petition to


USCIS to apply for an SIV.   Once the petition is approved, the applicant submits a DS-260 visa
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application, along with accompanying documents, to the National Visa Center. After the DS-260


is processed, the applicant undergoes an interview at a U.S. consulate or embassy.   

26. After the interview, SIV applications go into administrative processing during


which the U.S. government conducts various security checks as well as a medical


examination.   Once an applicant is cleared, they are issued a SIV to travel to the United States.   

27. Several weeks after the applicant enters the United States, the applicant receives a


green card in the mail and can naturalize five years later.

28. Mr. Darweesh received COM Approval for the visa on January 26, 2015, in a signed


statement from Lena Levitt, Refugee Coordinator of the Designee of the Chief of Mission, noting


that Mr. Darweesh had provided “faithful and valuable service to the United States Government.”

29. Despite receiving COM approval in January 2015, it took over two years for Mr.


Darweesh’s visa and visas for his family to be processed. After petitioning for a SIV through the


U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services, which was approved conditionally on March 25, 2015,


Mr. Darweesh appeared for an in-person interview at the U.S. Embassy in Baghdad on April 12,


2016 and went through administrative processing, including security background checks as well


as medical exams.

30. Five Special Immigrant Visas were issued to Mr. Darweesh and his family on


January 20, 2017, and they received them by DHL on January 25, 2017. Because of the sensitive


and dangerous nature of Mr. Darweesh’s situation, the family immediately boarded a flight from


Erbil to New York City, via Istanbul, and arrived in the United States on January 27, 2017, around


6:00 PM EST.

Case 1:17 cv 00480   Document 1   Filed 01/28/17   Page 8 of 20 PageID #: 8


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5268-000002

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



9

31. Mr. Darweesh and his family were expecting to travel on to Charlotte, North


Carolina, where they were to receive refugee benefits. However, after de-planing in John F.


Kennedy Airport in Queens, New York, Mr. Darweesh was held by U.S. Customs and Border


Protection (CBP) and remains in their custody.

32. Mr. Darweeh’s attorney was present at the Arrivals section of Terminal 1 but did


not enter the CBP area.  Mr. Darweesh and his family waited to be processed by CBP for about an


hour.  Approximately one hour later, Mr. Darweesh himself was moved into “secondary


screening.”    The family waited for over an hour before a CBP officer and Mr. Darweesh emerged


to return passports for every member of Mr. Darweesh’s family except for Mr. Darweesh himself.


Mr. Darweesh was then taken back into secondary screening.  

33. At approximately 11:30pm, two CBP officers, upon information and belief, Officer


Scott Maurel and Officer Ray Sinacola, requested that the family return to the CBP-controlled


security zone for additional questioning of Mr. Darweesh’s wife.  CBP refused to conduct the


questioning of Mrs. Darweesh in the Arrivals area despite requests of counsel.  When asked by


counsel, the officers confirmed that they were making a request, not giving an order at that time.


Through counsel, the family declined the request and left the airport.    

34. Mr. Darweesh is not being permitted to meet with his attorneys who are present at


JFK and have made multiple attempts to meet with him.

35. When Mr. Darweesh’s attorneys approached CBP requesting to speak with Mr.


Darweesh, CBP indicated that they were not the ones to talk to about seeing their client.  When


the attorneys asked “Who is the person to talk to?” the CBP agents responded, “Mr. President.


Call Mr. Trump.”
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36. Upon knowledge and belief, Mr. Darweesh remains in the custody of CBP at JFK


Airport.

37. Upon knowledge and belief, Mr. Darweesh is not being permitted to apply for


asylum or other forms of protection from removal.

38. Upon knowledge and belief, Mr. Darweesh is at imminent risk of being returned


to Iraq against his will, and despite the grave danger he faces there.

Petitioner Haider Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi

39. Haider Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi is an Iraqi national born on April 29, 1983


in Baghdad, Iraq.   He studied accounting at Baghdad University, graduating in 2006.  

40. Mr. Alshawi possesses the requisite documentation to enter the U.S.: an


immigrant visa in his passport.

41. Upon information and belief, Mr. Alshawi was deemed admissible for a Follow to


Join (FTJ) visa category F2A (joining spouse and child) awarded by the U.S. Department of


State on January 11, 2017.  See generally 8 U.S.C. § 1157(c)(2)(A); 8 C.F.R. § 207.7(a) (spouse


or child of refugee “shall be granted refugee status if accompanying or following-to-join the


principal alien”).  Upon information and belief, the visa was authorized by USCIS and the State


Department, documenting its approval of Mr. Alshawi’s admissibility to the United States as an


FTJ Visa recipient.   Upon information and belief, The U.S. Embassy in Stockholm also


determined that Mr. Alshawi does not pose a security threat to the United States, and, as a result,


is admissible to the United States.
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42. The FTJ visa was granted to reunite Mr. Alshawi with his wife, Duniyya Alshawi,


and their seven-year-old son in the United States.  Mr. Alshawi and his wife have been married


since 2008.

43. Ms. Alshawi worked for Falcon Security Group, a U.S. contractor, from 2006 to


2007 as an accountant. Upon information and belief, her brother also worked for Falcon Security


Group in Human Resources. Mr. Alshawi heard through neighbors in the family’s community in


Baghdad that, due to the family’s association with the U.S. military, insurgents thought that they


were collaborators. 

44. In 2010, insurgents attempted to kidnap Ms. Alshawi’s brother.  A month later, an


IED placed on Mr. Alshawi’s sister-in-law’s car detonated, killing her husband and severely


injuring her and her daughter.  Fearing for their safety, Mr. Alshawi and his wife moved from


Baghdad to Erbil, Iraq.

45. Ms. Alshawi and her son applied for refugee status in January 2011.   Upon


information and belief, in January of 2014 Ms. Alshawi and her son were approved to travel to


Houston through the Priority 2-Direct Access Program (P2-DAP).  Upon information and belief,


Ms. Alshawi and her son have since adjusted their statuses to that of lawful permanent


residents and now live in Houston, Texas.   Ms. Alshawi subsequently filed for a FTJ visa for her


husband.  On October 9, 2014, USCIS approved Ms. Alshawi’s I-730 petition for Mr. Alshawi’s

entry.   On January 11, 2017, Mr. Alshawi obtained a U.S. Visa Foil Type ZZ (Visa 93)


with a notation in his passport that the foil was prepared at DHS request. 
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46. Mr. Alshawi’s FTJ visa grants him permission to enter the United States.  Upon


information and belief, pursuant to this visa Mr. Alshawi traveled from Stockholm, Sweden on


January 27, 2017 (local time) to immigrate to the United States. 

47. Additionally, Ms. Alshawi filed an I-130 application with USCIS to petition for


Mr. Alshawi to enter as an alien relative.   Mr. Alshawi has a priority date of December 18, 2015.


Currently, the visa bulletin for February indicates that visas are being processed with final action


dates up to April 15, 2015. Mr. Alshawi thus soon will be eligible for visa processing on this I-

130 application in addition to his existing FTJ Visa.

48. Upon information and belief, Mr. Alshawi arrived in at John F. Kennedy airport


in New York City on January 27, 2017 at approximately 8:22 PM EST on Norwegian Air flight


DY 7005.

49. Upon arrival at the gate, Mr. Alshawi was blocked on the aircraft by CBP.  A


Norwegian Airline attendant confirmed that he was being held by CBP.

50. Mr. Alshawi is not being permitted to meet with his attorneys who are present at


JFK and have made multiple attempts to meet with him.

51. When Mr. Alshawi’s attorneys approached CBP requesting to speak with Mr.


Alshawi, CBP indicated that they were not the ones to talk to about seeing their client.  When the


attorneys asked “Who is the person to talk to?” the CBP agents responded, “Mr. President. Call


Mr. Trump.”
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52. Upon information and belief, Mr. Alshawi remains in the custody of CBP at JFK


Airport.

53. Upon information and belief, Mr. Alshawi is not being permitted to apply for


asylum or other forms of protection from removal.

54. Upon information and belief, Mr. Alshawi is at imminent risk of being returned to


Iraq against his will, despite the grave danger he faces there.

REPRESENTATIVE HABEAS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

55. In addition to Petitioners Darweesh and Alshawi, there are numerous other


individuals detained nationwide who are either refugees admitted via USRAP or visa holders


from Iraq, Syria, Iran, Sudan, Libya, Somalia, and Yemen. Each of these similarly situated


individuals has been detained and questioned by CBP officials, denied entry to the United States,


and subject to the threat of return to the country from which their travel originated, regardless of


their presentation of valid entry documents, their status in the prior country, and possible claims


qualifying them for protection under 8 USC 1101(a)(42) and 8 U.S.C. § 1225(b)(1)(A)(ii).

56. Each of these similarly situated individuals is entitled to bring a petition for a writ


of habeas corpus or, in the alternative a complaint for declaratory and injunctive relief, to


prohibit the policy, pattern, and practice of Respondents detaining class members and prohibiting


class members from entering the United States when they arrive at U.S. borders with valid entry


documents.   As set out in further detail in the concurrently filed Motion for Class Certification,


these similarly situated individuals satisfy the numerosity, typicality, commonality, and
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adequacy of representation requirements established by United States ex rel. Sero v. Preiser, 506


F.2d 1115, 1125-26 (2d Cir. 1974) and Fed. R. Civ. P. 23, and respectfully move this Court for


an order certifying a representative class of Petitioners consisting of all individuals with refugee


applications approved by U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services as part of the U.S. Refugee


Admissions Program, holders of valid immigrant and non-immigrant visas, and other individuals


from Iraq, Syria, Iran, Sudan, Libya, Somalia, and Yemen legally authorized to enter the United


States, but who have been or will be denied entry to the United States on the basis of the January


27, 2017 Executive Order.

CAUSES OF ACTION 

COUNT ONE

FIFTH AMENDMENT – PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS 

DENIAL OF RIGHT TO APPLY FOR ASYLUM

57. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation contained


in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

58. Procedural due process requires that the government be constrained before it acts


in a way that deprives individuals of liberty interests protected under the Due Process Clause of


the Fifth Amendment.  

59. The United States government is obligated by United States and international law


to hear the asylum claims of noncitizens presenting themselves at United States borders and ports


of entry.  The Immigration and Nationality Act provides that “[a]ny alien who is physically present


in the United States or who arrives in the United States. . . irrespective of such alien’s status, may
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apply for asylum in accordance with this section or, where applicable, section 235(b).”   8 U.S.C.


§ 1158(a)(1); see also id. § 1225(b)(1)(A)(ii). 

60. Consistent with these United States statutory and international law obligations,


individuals arriving at United States ports of entry must afforded an opportunity to apply for


asylum or other forms of humanitarian protection and be promptly received and processed by


United States authorities.

61. Having presented themselves at a United States port of entry, Petitioners are entitled


to apply for asylum and to be received and processed by United States authorities.

62. Respondents’ actions in denying Petitioners the opportunity to apply for asylum,


taken pursuant to the EO, violate the procedural due process rights guaranteed by the Fourteenth


Amendment.  

COUNT TWO

FIFTH AMENDMENT – PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS  

DENIAL OF RIGHT TO WITHHOLDING/CAT PROTECTION

63.  Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation contained


in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

64. Under United States law as well as human rights conventions, the United States


may not return (“refoul”) a noncitizen to a country where she may face torture or persecution. See

8 U.S.C. § 1231(b); United Nations Convention Against Torture (“CAT”), implemented in the


Foreign Affairs Reform and RestrucTturing Act of 1998 (“FARRA”), Pub. L. No. 105-277, div.


G, Title XXII, § 2242, 112 Stat. 2681, 2681-822 (1998) (codified as Note to 8 U.S.C. § 1231).  
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65. Respondents’ actions in seeking to return Petitioners to Iraq, taken pursuant to the


EO, deprive Petitioners of their rights under 8 U.S.C. § 1231(b) and the Convention Against


Torture without due process of law.

COUNT THREE

THE IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT, THE CONVENTION AGAINST


TORTURE, THE FOREIGN AFFAIRS REFORM AND RESTRUCTURING ACT OF

1998, IMPLEMENTING REGULATIONS

66. Petitioners repeat and incorporate by reference each and every allegation contained


in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

67. The Immigration and Nationality Act and implementing regulations, including 8


U.S.C. § 1225(b)(1) (expedited removal),  8 C.F.R. §§ 235.3(b)(4), 208.30, and 1003.42; 8 U.S.C.


§ 1158 (asylum), and 8 U.S.C. § 1231(b)(3) (withholding of removal), and the United Nations


Convention Against Torture (“CAT”), implemented in the Foreign Affairs Reform and


Restructuring Act of 1998 (“FARRA”), Pub.L. No. 105-277, div. G, Title XXII, § 2242, 112 Stat.


2681, 2681-822 (1998) (codified at  8 U.S.C. § 1231 note), entitle Petitioners to an opportunity to


apply for asylum, withholding of removal, and CAT relief.  These provisions also entitle


Petitioners to a grant of withholding of removal and CAT relief upon a showing that they meet the


applicable legal standards.  Respondents’ actions in seeking to return Petitioners to Iraq, taken


pursuant to the EO, deprive Petitioners of their statutory and regulatory rights.

COUNT FOUR

FIFTH AMENDMENT – EQUAL PROTECTION  
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68. Petitioners repeat and incorporates by reference each and every allegation


contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

69. The EO discriminates against Petitioners on the basis of their country of origin, and


without sufficient justification, and therefore violates the equal protection component of the Due


Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment. 

70. Additionally, the EO was substantially motivated by animus toward and has a


disparate effect on Muslims, which also violates the equal protection component of the Due


Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment.

COUNT FIVE

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT

71. Petitioners repeat and incorporates by reference each and every allegation


contained in the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

72. The INA forbids discrimination in issuance of visas based on a person's race,


nationality, place of birth, or place of residence. 8 U.S.C. § 1152(a)(1)(A).

73. Respondents’ detention and mistreatment of Petitioners and the members of the


proposed class pursuant to the January 27 EO, as set forth above, is not authorized by the INA.

74. Respondents’ actions in detaining and mistreating Petitioners and other members


of the proposed class as set forth above were arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or


otherwise not in accordance with law; contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or


immunity; in excess of statutory jurisdiction, authority, or limitations, or short of statutory right;


and without observance of procedure required by law,  in violation of the Administrative


Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 706(2)(A)-(D).
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Petitioners and other members of the proposed class pray that this Court grant


the following relief:

(1)   Issue a Writ of Habeas Corpus requiring Respondents to release Petitioners and other members


of the proposed class forthwith;

(2)   Issue an injunction ordering Respondents not to detain any individual solely on the basis of


the EO;

(3)   Enter a judgment declaring that Respondents’ detention of Petitioners and other members of


the proposed class is and will be unauthorized by statute and contrary to law;

(4)   Award Petitioners and other members of the proposed class reasonable costs and attorney’s


fees; and

(5)   Grant any other and further relief that this Court may deem fit and proper.

 

DATED: January 28, 2017

Brooklyn, New York

 

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Michael J. Wishnie

Michael J. Wishnie (MW 1952)

Elora Mukherjee

Amit Jain, Law Student Intern

Natalia Nazarewicz, Law Student Intern

My Khanh Ngo, Law Student Intern

Yusuf Saei, Law Student Intern
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Rachel Wilf, Law Student Intern

The Jerome N. Frank Legal Services Organization

P.O. Box 209090

New Haven, CT 06520-9090

Phone: (203) 432-4800

Fax: (203) 432-1426

michael.wishnie@yale.edu

Rebecca Heller

Mark Doss

Julie Kornfeld

International Refugee Assistance Project

Urban Justice Center

40 Rector St., 9th Floor

New York, NY 10006

Phone: (646) 704-3922

Karen C. Tumlin†

Nicholas Espíritu†

Melissa S. Keaney†

Esther Sung†

National Immigration Law Center

3435 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1600

Los Angeles, CA 90010

Phone: (213) 639-3900

Jonathan E. Polonsky  

Justin Cox

National Immigration Law Center

1989 College Ave. NE

Atlanta, GA 30317

Phone: (678) 404-9119

Omar C. Jadwat

Lee Gelernt

Cecillia D. Wang

American Civil Liberties Union Foundation

125 Broad Street, 18th Floor

New York, NY 10004

Tel. (212) 549-2600
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ojadwat@aclu.org

lgelernt@aclu.org

cwang@aclu.org

 

Jennifer Chang Newell
†

Cody H. Wofsy
†

American Civil Liberties Union Foundation

Immigrants’ Rights Project

39 Drumm Street

San Francisco, CA 94111

Tel. (415) 343-0770

jnewell@aclu.org

cwofsy@aclu.org

Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton LLP

1114 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 10036

Phone: (212) 775-8703

Fax: (212) 775-8819
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE


EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA


Alexandria Division


Tareq Aqel Mohammed Aziz


and


Ammar Aqel Mohammed Aziz,


by their next friend,


Aqel Muhammad Aziz,


and


John Does 1-60,


Petitioners,


v.


DONALD TRUMP, President of the United States;


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY


(“DHS”); U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER


PROTECTION (“CBP”); JOHN KELLY, Secretary


of DHS; KEVIN K. MCALEENAN, Acting


Commissioner of CBP; and WAYNE BIONDI,


Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Port Director


of the Area Port of Washington Dulles,


Respondents.


Case No. 


Date: January 28, 2017
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[PROPOSED] TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER


Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65, the Court orders that:


a) respondents shall permit lawyers access to all legal permanent residents being


detained at Dulles International Airport;


b) respondents are forbidden from removing petitioners lawful permanent residents


at Dulles International Airport for a period of 7 days from the issuance of this Order.





The Honorable Leonie M. Brinkema


U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia


Dates: January 28, 2017


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5251-000010

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



1


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE


EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA


Alexandria Division


PETITIONERS’ EMERGENCY APPLICATION FOR


A TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER


Tareq Aqel Mohammed Aziz


and


Ammar Aqel Mohammed Aziz,


by their next friend,


Aqel Muhammad Aziz,


and


John Does 1-60,


Petitioners,


v.


DONALD TRUMP, President of the United States;


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY


(“DHS”); U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER


PROTECTION (“CBP”); JOHN KELLY, Secretary


of DHS; KEVIN K. MCALEENAN, Acting


Commissioner of CBP; and WAYNE BIONDI,


Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Port Director


of the Area Port of Washington Dulles,


Respondents.
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Date: January 28, 2017


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5251-000011

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



2


INTRODUCTION


Petitioners are 50 to 60 Lawful Permanent Residents (“LPRs”) currently detained at


Dulles Airport. Respondents have detained these individuals or otherwise barred them from


exiting the airport or continuing their transit into the United States. Respondents have denied


these individuals access to lawyers. Upon information and belief, respondents imminently intend


to remove these individuals from the United States.


Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 65, petitioners respectfully request that this Court issue a


temporary restraining order that (a) orders respondents to permit undersigned counsel or other


lawyers access to petitioners, and (b) forbids respondents from removing petitioners from the


United States for a period of 7 days.


BACKGROUND


1. Petitioners Tareq Aqel Mohammed Aziz (Tareq) and Ammar Aqel Mohammed


Aziz (Ammar) are two brothers of Yemeni nationality, who were granted Lawful Permanent


Resident (“LPR”) status by virtue of their status as immediate relatives of their father, a US


citizen.


2. They landed at Washington-Dulles International Airport (“IAD”) on the morning


of January 28, 2017, with plans to continue on to Michigan where their father was awaiting


them.


3. After conducting standard procedures of administrative processing and security


checks, the federal government has deemed both Aziz brothers to be admissible to the United


States as immigrants.


4. Despite these findings and Petitioner’s valid entry documents, U.S. Customs and


Border Protection (“CBP”) blocked them from exiting IAD and detained them therein. No
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magistrate has determined that there is sufficient justification for the continued detention of


either of the Aziz brothers. Instead, CBP is holding them at IAD solely pursuant to an executive


order issued on January 27, 2017.


5. Lawyers have been denied access to Tareq and Ammar Aziz.


6. Upon information and belief, respondents intend to imminently remove Tareq


Aziz and Ammar Aziz from the United States absent injunctive relief from this Court.


7. Petitioners JOHN DOES 1-60 are approximately 50-60 lawful permanent


residents of the United States, most of whom are returning from trips abroad, all of whom are


nationals of one of the following seven countries: Lybia, Iraq, Iran, Yemen, Syria, Sudan,


Somalia. All are in the very same situation as the Aziz brothers. All are presently being held


against their will by CBP officers in the international arrivals area of Dulles Airport. All are


being held in an area where other passengers disembarking from international flights can see and


hear them; accordingly, there is no reason that their attorneys could not be permitted to meet


with them.


8. Respondents are also precluding these petitioners from access to lawyers.


9. Upon information and belief, respondents intend to imminently remove these


individuals from the United States.


10. On January 28, at approximately 8:30pm, petitioners emailed the Chief of the


Civil Division for the U.S. Attorney’s Office, Eastern District of Virginia, to provide notice of


this filing.


ARGUMENT


11. Petitioners will suffer irreparable harm if the requested temporary restraining


order does not issue.
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12. First, absent access to legal counsel, petitioners cannot meaningfully understand


they legal rights and obligations and therefore they cannot make determinations about what


legal proceedings to pursue.


13. Second, if removed from the United States, petitioners are uncertain when or


whether they will be permitted to return to the United States. Similarly, if removed from the


United States, petitioners may lose material legal rights. Respondents may later argue, for


example, that there are legal distinctions to be drawn between individuals within the United


States and those outside the United States.


14. Third, the countries to which respondents would remove petitioners are unknown.


Moreover, because lawyers have been denied access, the particular circumstances of each


individual petitioner is unknown. There therefore exists the risk that petitioners have credible


fears regarding a removal from the United States, should any petitioner be sent to a country


where he or she has previously been the subject to or threatened with persecution.


15. Fourth, because petitioners have lawful permanent residence status, they are


entitled to admission into the United States. Absent this Court’s grant of temporary relief, the


rights of these individuals to enter the United States will be irreparably denied.


16. Fifth, many petitioners have family members within the United States. The rights


of these individuals to be unified with petitioners will be denied unless this Court grants the


temporary relief requested.


17. For reasons explained more fully in the accompanying petition for habeas corpus,


petitioners have a substantial likelihood of prevailing on the merits. All petitioners have lawful


permanent residence status which entitles them to admission into the United States. No grounds


of inadmissibility under the Immigration and Nationality Act apply to any petitioner. Nor is there
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any reason under Title 8 of U.S. Code or Title 8 of the Code of Federal Regulations to prohibit


any petitioner from entering the United States as lawful permanent residents.


PRAYER FOR RELIEF


Petitioners pray that this Court grant the following relief pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 65:


Issue a temporary restraining order that (a) compels respondents to permit lawyers to


meet with the individuals currently detained at Dulles airport and (b) forbids respondents from


removing petitioners from the United States for a period of 7 days.


Respectfully submitted,


Simon Sandoval-Moshenberg (VA 77110)


LEGAL AID JUSTICE CENTER


6066 Leesburg Pike #520


Falls Church, VA 22041


(703) 720-5605 / cell (434) 218-9673


simon@justice4all.org


Andrew J. Pincus (pro hac vice motion forthcoming)


Paul W. Hughes (pro hac vice motion forthcoming)


MAYER BROWN LLP


1999 K St. NW


Washington, DC 20001


(202) 263-3147


apincus@mayerbrown.com


phughes@mayerbrown.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE


EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA


Alexandria Division


PETITIONERS’ EMERGENCY APPLICATION FOR


A TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER


Tareq Aqel Mohammed Aziz


and


Ammar Aqel Mohammed Aziz,


by their next friend,


Aqel Muhammad Aziz,


and


John Does 1-60,


Petitioners,


v.


DONALD TRUMP, President of the United States;


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY


(“DHS”); U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER


PROTECTION (“CBP”); JOHN KELLY, Secretary


of DHS; KEVIN K. MCALEENAN, Acting


Commissioner of CBP; and WAYNE BIONDI,


Customs and Border Protection (CBP) Port Director


of the Area Port of Washington Dulles,


Respondents.
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Date: January 28, 2017
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INTRODUCTION


Petitioners are 50 to 60 Lawful Permanent Residents (“LPRs”) currently detained at


Dulles Airport. Respondents have detained these individuals or otherwise barred them from


exiting the airport or continuing their transit into the United States. Respondents have denied


these individuals access to lawyers. Upon information and belief, respondents imminently intend


to remove these individuals from the United States.


Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 65, petitioners respectfully request that this Court issue a


temporary restraining order that (a) orders respondents to permit undersigned counsel or other


lawyers access to petitioners, and (b) forbids respondents from removing petitioners from the


United States for a period of 7 days.


BACKGROUND


1. Petitioners Tareq Aqel Mohammed Aziz (Tareq) and Ammar Aqel Mohammed


Aziz (Ammar) are two brothers of Yemeni nationality, who were granted Lawful Permanent


Resident (“LPR”) status by virtue of their status as immediate relatives of their father, a US


citizen.


2. They landed at Washington-Dulles International Airport (“IAD”) on the morning


of January 28, 2017, with plans to continue on to Michigan where their father was awaiting


them.


3. After conducting standard procedures of administrative processing and security


checks, the federal government has deemed both Aziz brothers to be admissible to the United


States as immigrants.


4. Despite these findings and Petitioner’s valid entry documents, U.S. Customs and


Border Protection (“CBP”) blocked them from exiting IAD and detained them therein. No
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magistrate has determined that there is sufficient justification for the continued detention of


either of the Aziz brothers. Instead, CBP is holding them at IAD solely pursuant to an executive


order issued on January 27, 2017.


5. Lawyers have been denied access to Tareq and Ammar Aziz.


6. Upon information and belief, respondents intend to imminently remove Tareq


Aziz and Ammar Aziz from the United States absent injunctive relief from this Court.


7. Petitioners JOHN DOES 1-60 are approximately 50-60 lawful permanent


residents of the United States, most of whom are returning from trips abroad, all of whom are


nationals of one of the following seven countries: Lybia, Iraq, Iran, Yemen, Syria, Sudan,


Somalia. All are in the very same situation as the Aziz brothers. All are presently being held


against their will by CBP officers in the international arrivals area of Dulles Airport. All are


being held in an area where other passengers disembarking from international flights can see and


hear them; accordingly, there is no reason that their attorneys could not be permitted to meet


with them.


8. Respondents are also precluding these petitioners from access to lawyers.


9. Upon information and belief, respondents intend to imminently remove these


individuals from the United States.


10. On January 28, at approximately 8:30pm, petitioners emailed the Chief of the


Civil Division for the U.S. Attorney’s Office, Eastern District of Virginia, to provide notice of


this filing.


ARGUMENT


11. Petitioners will suffer irreparable harm if the requested temporary restraining


order does not issue.
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12. First, absent access to legal counsel, petitioners cannot meaningfully understand


they legal rights and obligations and therefore they cannot make determinations about what


legal proceedings to pursue.


13. Second, if removed from the United States, petitioners are uncertain when or


whether they will be permitted to return to the United States. Similarly, if removed from the


United States, petitioners may lose material legal rights. Respondents may later argue, for


example, that there are legal distinctions to be drawn between individuals within the United


States and those outside the United States.


14. Third, the countries to which respondents would remove petitioners are unknown.


Moreover, because lawyers have been denied access, the particular circumstances of each


individual petitioner is unknown. There therefore exists the risk that petitioners have credible


fears regarding a removal from the United States, should any petitioner be sent to a country


where he or she has previously been the subject to or threatened with persecution.


15. Fourth, because petitioners have lawful permanent residence status, they are


entitled to admission into the United States. Absent this Court’s grant of temporary relief, the


rights of these individuals to enter the United States will be irreparably denied.


16. Fifth, many petitioners have family members within the United States. The rights


of these individuals to be unified with petitioners will be denied unless this Court grants the


temporary relief requested.


17. For reasons explained more fully in the accompanying petition for habeas corpus,


petitioners have a substantial likelihood of prevailing on the merits. All petitioners have lawful


permanent residence status which entitles them to admission into the United States. No grounds


of inadmissibility under the Immigration and Nationality Act apply to any petitioner. Nor is there
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any reason under Title 8 of U.S. Code or Title 8 of the Code of Federal Regulations to prohibit


any petitioner from entering the United States as lawful permanent residents.


PRAYER FOR RELIEF


Petitioners pray that this Court grant the following relief pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 65:


Issue a temporary restraining order that (a) compels respondents to permit lawyers to


meet with the individuals currently detained at Dulles airport and (b) forbids respondents from


removing petitioners from the United States for a period of 7 days.


Respectfully submitted,


Simon Sandoval-Moshenberg (VA 77110)


LEGAL AID JUSTICE CENTER


6066 Leesburg Pike #520


Falls Church, VA 22041


(703) 720-5605 / cell (434) 218-9673


simon@justice4all.org


Andrew J. Pincus (pro hac vice motion forthcoming)


Paul W. Hughes (pro hac vice motion forthcoming)


MAYER BROWN LLP


1999 K St. NW


Washington, DC 20001


(202) 263-3147


apincus@mayerbrown.com


phughes@mayerbrown.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PETITIONERS’ EMERGENCY MOTION FOR STAY OF REMOVAL

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 7(b)(1) and Local Rule 7.1, Petitioners


Hameed Khalid Darweesh, Haider Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi, and class members file this


emergency motion respectfully requesting that the Court immediately stay their removal from


the United States during the pendency of their habeas petition. In early January 2017, Petitioners


were both granted valid entry documents from the federal government to enter the United States.

However, on the evening of January 27, 2017, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”)


blocked both Petitioners from exiting John F. Kennedy International Airport (“JFK Airport”) and


detained Petitioners therein solely pursuant to an executive order issued on January 27, 2017 by


HAMEED KHALID DARWEESH and


HAIDER SAMEER ABDULKHALEQ

ALSHAWI,

on behalf of themselves and others similarly


situated,

Petitioners,

v.
 

DONALD TRUMP, President of the United

States; U.S. DEPARTMENT OF


HOMELAND SECURITY (“DHS”); U.S.

CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION


(“CBP”); JOHN KELLY, Secretary of DHS;

KEVIN K. MCALEENAN, Acting


Commissioner of CBP; JAMES T.

MADDEN, New York Field Director, CBP,

 
Respondents.

Emergency Motion for Stay of


Removal

 

 

 Case No. 1:17-cv-00480
 

 
 

 
Date: January 28, 2017
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President Donald J. Trump. Petitioners filed a habeas petition and motion for class certification


in the early morning on January 28, 2017, arguing that their continued detention violates their


Fifth Amendment procedural and substantive due process rights, is ultra vires under the


immigration statutes, and violates the Administrative Procedure Act. Petitioner Darweesh was

released from CBP custody subsequent to the filing of the habeas petition in this case, but, on


information and belief, CBP continues to hold Petitioner Alshawi and other members of the


proposed class, including dozens and dozens other individuals currently detained at JFK Airport.


Further, Respondents’ continued detention of members of the proposed class is part of a


widespread policy, pattern, and practice applied to many refugees, arriving aliens and other

individuals from Iraq, Syria, Iran, Sudan, Libya, Somalia, and Yemen legally authorized to enter


the United States, but who have been or will be detained at ports of entry and denied entry to the


United States on the basis of the January 27 Executive Order.  

Therefore, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated putative class


members, Petitioners respectfully move this Court to immediately grant a class-wide stay of


removal during the pendency of this habeas petition for the reasons stated in the attached


Memorandum of Law.

DATED: January 28, 2017
New Haven, Connecticut

Respectfully submitted,

       /s/ Michael J. Wishnie
       Michael J. Wishnie (MW 1952)

       Muneer I. Ahmad†  
       Elora Mukherjee (EM 4011)   
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David Chen, Law Student Intern*
Jordan Laris Cohen, Law Student Intern*

Susanna Evarts, Law Student Intern*
Aaron Korthuis, Law Student Intern*

Jordan Laris Cohen, Law Student Intern*
Zachary-John Manfredi, Law Student


Intern*
My Khanh Ngo, Law Student Intern*

Megha Ram, Law Student Intern*
Victoria Roeck, Law Student Intern*

Thomas Scott-Railton, Law Student Intern*
Emily Villano, Law Student Intern*

Elizabeth Willis, Law Student Intern*
Jerome N. Frank Legal Services


Organization
       P.O. Box 209090

       New Haven, CT 06520-9090
       Phone: (203) 432-4800     

Fax: (203) 432-1426
michael.wishnie@yale.edu

Omar C. Jadwat**     Jennifer Chang Newell†

Lee Gelernt (LG-8511)    Cody H. Wofsy†



Cecillia D. Wang (CW-8359)     AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION 


AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIEs     FOUNDATION IMMIGRANTS’ RIGHTS PROJECT 


UNION FOUNDATION     39 Drumm Street 


125 Broad Street, 18th Floor    San Francisco, CA 94111
New York, NY 10004     Tel. (415) 343-0770 


Tel. (212) 549-2600     jnewell@aclu.org 


ojadwat@aclu.org     cwofsy@aclu.org 


lgelernt@aclu.org
cwang@aclu.org



Mark Doss
Rebecca Heller

Julie Kornfeld
Stephen Poellot

INTERNATIONAL REFUGEE ASSISTANCE PROJECT

URBAN JUSTICE CENTER

40 Rector St, 9th Floor
New York, NY 10006

Tel. (646)-602-5600
mdoss@refugeerights.org

bheller@refugeerights.org
jkornfeld@refugeerights.org

spoellot@refugeerights.org  
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Karen C. Tumlin†     Justin B. Cox †

Nicholas Espíritu†     NATIONAL IMMIGRATION

Melissa S. Keaney†     LAW CENTER

Esther Sung†      1989 College Ave. NE
NATIONAL IMMIGRATION    Atlanta, GA 30317

LAW CENTER      Phone: (678) 404-9119
3435 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1600   cox@nilc.org

Los Angeles, CA 90010
Phone: (213) 639-3900

tumlin@nilc.org
espiritu@nilc.org

keaney@nilc.org
sung@nilc.org

 
Jonathan Polonsky     

Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton LLP     

1114 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY  10036-7703  
Tel. (212) 775 8703  

jpolonsky@kilpatricktownsend.com  

**Application for admission forthcoming.
* Motion for law student appearance forthcoming.

† Motion for admission pro hac vice forthcoming.
†† For identification purposes only. This motion has been prepared by a clinic operated by Yale


Law School, but does not purport to present the school’s institutional views, if any.

Counsel for Petitioners

 

Case 1:17 cv 00480   Document 6   Filed 01/28/17   Page 4 of 5 PageID #: 51


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5253-000001

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



5

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Michael Wishnie, hereby certify that on January 28, 2017 the foregoing motion for a stay of

removal and accompanying documents were filed through the CM/ECF system and will be sent


by FedEx to the parties at the addresses below.  

Attorney General 
U.S. Department of Justice

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20530-0001

U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New York

Attn: Civil Process Clerk
271 Cadman Plaza East

Brooklyn NY 11201

Office of the General Counsel
US Department of Homeland Security

Washington, D.C. 20528

Secretary of DHS John Kelly
US Department of Homeland Security

Washington, D.C. 20528

Acting CBP Commissioner Kevin K. McAleenan
US Department of Homeland Security

Washington, D.C. 20528

James T. Madden,
Field Director

New York Field Office,
US CBP

1 World Trade Center
Suite 50.800

New York, NY 10007-0101

President Donald Trump
1600 Pennsylvania Ave NW

Washington, DC 20500
s/ Michael Wishinte

Michael Wishine, Supervising Attorney
Jerome N. Frank Legal Services Organization

Yale Law School
New Haven, CT 06511

Phone: (203) 436-8971
Fax: (203) 432-1426
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PETITIONERS’ MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF

MOTION FOR EMERGENCY STAY OF REMOVAL

       

 

HAMEED KHALID DARWEESH and 

HAIDER SAMEER ABDULKHALEQ

ALSHAWI, 

on behalf of themselves and others similarly


situated,

Petitioners,

v.
 

DONALD TRUMP, President of the United

States; U.S. DEPARTMENT OF


HOMELAND SECURITY (“DHS”); U.S.

CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION


(“CBP”); JOHN KELLY, Secretary of DHS;

KEVIN K. MCALEENAN, Acting


Commissioner of CBP; JAMES T.

MADDEN, New York Field Director, CBP,

 
Respondents.

Memorandum of Law In Support Of


EMERGENCY Motion for Stay of


Removal

 

 

 Case No. 1:17-cv-00480
 

 
 

 
Date: January 28, 2017
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INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 7(b)(1) and Local Rule 7.1, Petitioners

Hameed Khalid Darweesh and Haider Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi move this Court to stay


their removal during the pendency of their habeas petition. In early January 2017, Petitioners


were both granted valid entry documents from the federal government to enter the United States.

However, on the evening of January 27, 2017, U.S. Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”)


blocked both Petitioners from exiting John F. Kennedy International Airport (“JFK Airport”) and


detained them therein. CBP’s detention of Petitioners was solely pursuant to an executive order


issued on January 27, 2017 by President Donald J. Trump. Petitioners filed a habeas petition in


the early morning on January 28, 2017, arguing that their continued detention violates their Fifth


Amendment procedural and substantive due process rights, is ultra vires the immigration statutes,


and violates the Administrative Procedure Act. Petitioner Darweesh was released from CBP


custody subsequent to the filing of the complaint in this case, but, on information and belief,


CBP continues to hold Petitioner Alshawi and dozens if not hundreds of other members of the


proposed class at JFK and other airports around the country. Further, Defendants’ continued


unlawful detention of Petitioner Alshawi and members of the proposed class is part of a


widespread pattern of unlawful detention of refugees, arriving aliens and other individuals from


Iraq, Syria, Iran, Sudan, Libya, Somalia, and Yemen legally authorized to enter the United


States, but who have been or will be denied entry to the United States on the basis of the


executive order. If removed, Petitioners face irreparable injury, including persecution and


possible death in their home countries; issuance of stay of removal would not injure the


government and is in the public interest.  

Counsel for Petitioners have contacted government attorneys for Respondents to request


Case 1:17 cv 00480   Document 6 1   Filed 01/28/17   Page 2 of 27 PageID #: 54


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5253-000002

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



 2

that the government voluntarily agree to a temporary stay of removal, but the government has not


responded and has not agreed to a temporary stay for the Petitioners or members of the class they


propose to represent.  Accordingly, Petitioners have no choice but to seek assistance from this


Court to prevent the imminent repatriation of dozens and dozens of refugees, visa-holders, and


other individuals from nations subject to the January 27 executive order. On behalf of themselves


and all others similarly situated, Petitioners respectfully move this Court to grant a class-wide


emergency stay of removal during the pendency of this habeas petition.

STATEMENT OF FACTS AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On January 27, 2017, one week after being inaugurated as the forty-fifth President of the


United States, Donald Trump signed an executive order entitled “Protecting the Nation from


Foreign Terrorist Entry into the United States” (“EO”). Citing the threat of terrorism committed


by foreign nationals, the EO directs a variety of changes to the manner and extent to which non-

citizens may seek and obtain admission to the United States, particularly (although not


exclusively) as refugees. Among other things, the EO imposes a 120-day moratorium on the


refugee resettlement program as a whole; indefinitely suspends the entry of Syrian nationals; and

suspends entry of all immigrants and nonimmigrants referred to in section 217(a)(12) of the INA,


8 U.S.C. 1187(a)(12), for 90 days. Nationals from seven countries, Iraq, Iran, Libya, Somalia,


Sudan, Syria, and Yemen, are covered under this EO.  See “Protecting the Nation from Foreign


Terrorist Entry into the United States.” See ECF No. 1, Ex. A (“January 27 EO” or “the EO”).  

Petitioner Hameed Khalid Darweesh is a 53-year-old citizen of Iraq and recipient of an


Iraqi Special Immigrant Visa (“SIV”). As an interpreter, electrical engineer and contractor, Mr.


Darweesh performed valuable work on behalf of the U.S. government in Iraq for over a decade.


From March 2003 to September 2013, Mr. Darweesh was contracted by the U.S. government to


Case 1:17 cv 00480   Document 6 1   Filed 01/28/17   Page 3 of 27 PageID #: 55


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5253-000002

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



 3

work in a variety of positions that placed him at substantial risk of being targeted, attacked and


killed by anti-American militias and insurgents. Based on direct threats to his life and his over


ten years of service, Mr. Darweesh was approved for and was issued an SIV on January 20, 2017


to relocate to the United States. The SIV programs were created by Congress precisely to provide


safety and refuge in the United States for Iraqis and Afghans who face or have faced serious


threats on account of their faithful and valuable service to the United States. See generally


Refugee Crisis in Iraq Act of 2007, 8 U.S.C. § 1157 note at 1241-49 and the Afghan Allies


Protection Act of 2008, 8 U.S.C. § 1101 note at 601-02.

Mr. Darweesh and his family, a wife and three children, received their SIV


documentation on January 25, 2017. Because of the sensitive and dangerous nature of Mr.


Darweesh’s situation, the family immediately boarded a flight from Erbil, Iraq to New York


City, via Istanbul, and arriving in the United States in the early evening of January 27, 2017.


While CBP eventually processed his family and released them with their passports, CBP


continued to hold Mr. Darweesh for additional screening, not permitting him to contact either his


family or attorneys who were present at JFK and made multiple attempts to meet with him.


Sometime around noon on January 28, 2017, CBP released Mr. Darweesh from custody,


although the terms of his release remain unknown.

Petitioner Sameer Abdulkhaleq Alshawi is a 33-year-old citizen of Iraq and recipient of a


Follow to Join (“FTJ”) visa category F2A. Mr. Alshawi was awarded with the visa by the U.S.


Department of State on January 11, 2017 to join his wife, Duniyya Alshawi, and seven-year-old


son, both lawful permanent residents residing in Houston, Texas. See generally 8 U.S.C. §


1157(c)(2)(A); 8 C.F.R. § 207.7(a) (spouse or child of refugee “shall be granted refugee status if


accompanying or following-to-join the principal alien”). From 2006 to 2007, Ms. Alshawi
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worked as an accountant for Falcon Security Group, a U.S. contractor, along with her brother in


human resources. In 2010, insurgents in Iraq targeted the family based on their association with


the U.S. military, attempting to kidnap Ms. Alshawi’s brother and detonating an IED on Mr.


Alshawi’s sister-in-law’s car, killing her husband and severely injuring her and her daughter.


Fearing for their safety, the family relocated to Erbil, Iraq, and Ms. Alshawi and her son applied


for refugee status in January 2011.

Upon information and belief, Ms. Alshawi and her son were approved to travel to


Houston through the Priority 2-Direct Access Program (P2-DAP) in January 2014, and they have


since adjusted their statuses to that of lawful permanent residents. Ms. Alshawi subsequently


filed for a FTJ visa for her husband, which was approved by U.S. Citizenship and Immigration


Services (USCIS) on October 9, 2014. Mr. Alshawi obtained a U.S. Visa Foil Type ZZ (Visa 93)


on January 11, 2017, with a notation in his passport that the foil was prepared at Department of


Homeland Security (DHS) request. Despite this visa, Mr. Alshawi was detained by CBP once he


arrived at JFK Airport the evening of January 27, 2017, and was permitted to meet with his


attorneys who were present at the airport and made multiple attempts to meet with him. Upon


information and belief, Mr. Alshawi remains in the custody of CBP at JFK Airport, is not being


permitted to apply for asylum or other forms of protection from removal, and is in imminent risk


of being returned to Iraq against his will despite the grave danger he faces there.

In addition to Petitioners Darweesh and Alshawi, upon information and belief, there are


numerous others individuals detained at JFK Airport and nationwide who are either refugees or


visa holders, including lawful permanent residents and dual citizens, from Iraq, Syria, Iran,


Sudan, Libya, Somalia, and Yemen. Each of these similarly situated individuals has been


detained and questioned by CBP officials, denied entry to the United States, and subject to the
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threat of return to the country form which their travel originated, regardless of their presentation


of valid entry documents, their status in the prior country, and possible claims qualifying them


for protections under 8 U.S.C. § 1101(a)(42) and 8 U.S.C. § 1225(b)(1)(A)(ii). The illegal


detention is based solely pursuant to the President’s January 27th EO.

In the morning of January 28, 2017, Petitioners filed a habeas petition arguing that the


January 27th EO is unlawful as applied to Petitioners and that their continued detention based


solely on the executive order violates their Fifth Amendment procedural and substantive due


process rights, is ultra vires the immigration statutes, and violates the Administrative Procedure


Act. ECF No. 1. Further, Petitioners filed a Motion for Class Certification or Representative


Habeas Action, seeking declaratory and injunctive relief to prohibit the policy, pattern, and


practice of Respondents detaining class members and prohibiting class members from entering


the United States solely on the basis of the EO despite their valid entry documents. ECF No. 4.

ARGUMENT

Adjudication of a motion for stay of removal requires that the Court consider four factors:


(1) whether the stay applicant demonstrates a strong likelihood of success on the merits; (2)


whether the applicant will be irreparably injured absent a stay; (3) whether issuance of the stay


will substantially injure the other parties interested in the proceeding; and (4) where the public


interest lies. Nken v. Holder, 556 U.S. 418, 434 (2009). With regard to the first factor, this Court


has held that Nken “did not suggest that this factor requires a showing that the movant is ‘more


likely than not’ to succeed on the merits.” Citigroup Global Mkts., Inc. v. VCG Special


Opportunities Master Fund Ltd., 598 F.3d 30, 37 (2d Cir. 2010). Rather, this ruling codified an


earlier holding that a noncitizen may obtain a stay from this Court without demonstrating that the


likelihood of ultimate success is greater than 50 percent. See Mohammed v. Reno, 309 F.3d 95,
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102 (2d Cir. 2002).  

In Petitioners’ case, all four factors counsel in favor of the granting of a stay.

I. Petitioner is Likely to Succeed on the Merits 

  Petitioners’ habeas petition alleges five counts against Respondents: (1) Respondents’


actions in denying Petitioners the opportunity to apply for asylum, taken pursuant to the EO,


violate the procedural due process rights guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment; (2)


Respondents’ actions in seeking to return Petitioners to the countries they fled, taken pursuant to


the EO, deprive Petitioners of their rights under 8 U.S.C. § 1231(b) and the Convention Against


Torture without due process of law; (3) Respondents’ actions in seeking to return Petitioners,


taken pursuant to the EO, deprive Petitioners of their statutory and regulatory rights; (4)


Respondents’ actions taken pursuant to the EO violate the equal protection component of the


Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment; and, (5) Respondents’ actions in detaining and


mistreating Petitioners and members of the proposed class were arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of


discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with the law, in violation of the Administrative


Procedure Act.

A. Counts One and Two – Procedural Due Process Claims

   First, CBP acting pursuant to the EO, unlawfully denied their liberty interests under the


due process clause of the Fifth Amendment.  Petitioners Darweesh and Alshawi are physically


present in the United States with valid entry documents, and have been denied the ability to


apply for asylum or withholding protections under the Convention Against Torture. 

   Additionally, due process requires that arriving immigrants be afforded those statutory


rights granted by Congress and the principle that “[m]inimum due process rights attach to


statutory rights.” Dia v. Ashcroft, 353 F.3d 228, 239 (3d Cir.2003) (alteration in original)
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(quoting Marincas v. Lewis, 92 F.3d 195, 203 (3d Cir.1996)). See also Clark v. Martinez, 543

U.S. 371 (2005) (demonstrating that immigrants who have not yet been admitted are not


categorically excluded from these protections). The Immigration and Nationality Act provides


that “[a]ny alien who is physically present in the United States or who arrives in the United


States. . . irrespective of such alien’s status, may apply for asylum in accordance with this section


or, where applicable, section 235(b).” 8 U.S.C. § 1158(a)(1). In particular Congress has given


asylum seekers the right to present evidence to an Immigration Judge, 8 U.S.C. §


1229a(b)(4)(B), the right to move to reconsider any decision that the applicant is removable, 8


U.S.C. § 1229a(c)(5), and most importantly for the purposes of this appeal, the right to judicial


review by a court of appeals of final agency orders denying asylum on the merits and directing


removal, 8 U.S.C. § 1252(a)(2)(B)(ii). Under United States law as well as human rights


conventions, the United States may not return (“refoul”) a noncitizen to a country where she may


face torture or persecution. See 8 U.S.C. § 1231(b); United Nations Convention Against Torture


(“CAT”), implemented in the Foreign Affairs Reform and Restructuring Act of 1998


(“FARRA”), Pub. L. No. 105-277, div. G, Title XXII, § 2242, 112 Stat. 2681, 2681-822 (1998)


(codified as Note to 8 U.S.C. § 1231). Petitioners’ ability to apply for asylum and withholding


under CAT is therefore required by the due process clause, before they may be subject to


removal. The EO, however, categorical prohibition on evaluating asylum and CAT claims


deprives petitioners of any legal process. 

  In Landon v. Plasencia the Supreme Court held that in evaluating immigrants’ procedural


due process rights when seeking admission to the United States that “the courts must consider


the interest at stake for the individual, the risk of an erroneous deprivation of the interest through


the procedures used as well as the probable value of additional or different procedural
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safeguards.” Landon v. Plasencia, 459 U.S. 21, 34 (1982). Petitioners’ interests in this case are


weighty: they both stand to lose the right to live and work in “this land of freedom.” Id.; see also

Bridges v. Wixon, 326 U.S. 135, 154, (1945) (noting that individuals have a liberty interest in


proper procedures being applied in deportation proceedings). Both Petitioners Darweesh and


Alshawi also have considered interests in avoiding deprivation of life and torture if forced to


return to Iraq, and have strong connections to the United States including Lawful Permanent


Resident immediate family members. Landon, 459 U.S at 34 (recognizing family and personal


connections within the United States as an individual interest). Mr. Darweesh has reason to


believe he will be tortured on killed by terrorists currently searching for him and his family in


Iraq. ECF No. 1, ¶ 21; Mr. Alshawi similarly has had family members who were targets of


kidnapping and fears for his life. ECF No. 1, ¶ 44. Additionally, because Petitioners have already


been through substantial procedural screenings and approved for admission (through SIV and


Follow to Join (FTJ) visa category F2A screenings), the government’s interest “in efficient


administration of the immigration laws” has already been satisfied. Landon v. Plasencia, 459


U.S. at 34. The liberty interests of petitioners and extreme risks of injury that will result from


arbitrary deprivation of Petitioners’ rights are therefore substantial and well-recognized by


existing precedent, and their denial of admission without the ability to apply for asylum or


withholding under CAT offends due process clause of the Fifth Amendment.

B. Count Three – Accardi Claim

  Respondents’ actions in seeking to return Petitioners to Iraq, taken pursuant to the EO,


deprive Petitioners of their statutory and regulatory rights in violation of Accardi v. Shaughnessy,


347 U.S. 260 (1954), which stands for the principle that agencies must comply with their own


regulations. See Montilla v. I.N.S., 926 F.2d 162 (2d Cir. 1991) (holding that remand was
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required where immigration judge failed to comply with regulations that existed for alien’s


benefit, regardless of whether error resulted in prejudice); see also Vitarelli v. Seaton, 359 U.S.


535 (1959) (reinstating Interior Department employee after removal in violation of Department


regulations). The Supreme Court has explained that this principle is grounded in the Fifth


Amendment’s guarantee of due process, as well as administrative common law and the nature of


legislative rulemaking. In the Second Circuit, Accardi relief is available when the agency failure


to follow regulations prejudiced the outcome, was so egregious as to shock the conscience, or


deprived our plaintiffs of fundamental rights. Rajah v. Mukasey, 544 F.3d 427, 447 (2d Cir.


2008).

  The Immigration and Nationality Act and implementing regulations, including 8 U.S.C. §


1225(b)(1) (expedited removal), 8 C.F.R. §§ 235.3(b)(4), 208.30, and 1003.42; 8 U.S.C. § 1158


(asylum), and 8 U.S.C. § 1231(b)(3) (withholding of removal), and the United Nations


Convention Against Torture (“CAT”), implemented in the Foreign Affairs Reform and


Restructuring Act of 1998 (“FARRA”), Pub.L. No. 105-277, div. G, Title XXII, § 2242, 112


Stat. 2681, 2681-822 (1998) (codified at 8 U.S.C. § 1231 note), entitle Petitioners to an


opportunity to apply for asylum, withholding of removal, and CAT relief. These provisions also


entitle Petitioners to a grant of withholding of removal and CAT relief upon a showing that they


meet the applicable legal standards. 

  Respondents’ actions in seeking to return Petitioners to Iraq, taken pursuant to the EO,


deprive Petitioners of their statutory and regulatory rights under the above provision. This error


was clearly prejudicial in that Petitioners and members of the proposed class were offered no


opportunity to apply for the above relief. In particular, DHS’s failure to follow its own


regulations in affording Petitioners and members of the proposed class an opportunity to apply
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for asylum and other forms of humanitarian relief constitute an Accardi violation and should be


set aside.

C. Count Four – Equal Protection

  Petitioners claim a violation of the equal protection component of the Due Process Clause


of the Fifth Amendment, on the ground that the EO constitutes intentional discrimination by the


federal government on the basis of religion and national origin. As the Second Circuit has


explained, intentional discrimination by a government actor can be demonstrated in multiple


ways:  

First, a law or policy is discriminatory on its face if it expressly classifies persons

on the basis of race or gender.  See Adarand Constructors, Inc. v. Pena, 515 U.S.


200, 213, 227-29 (1995). In addition, a law which is facially neutral violates equal

protection if it is applied in a discriminatory fashion. See Yick Wo v. Hopkins, 118


U.S. 356, 373-74 (1886). Lastly, a facially neutral statute violates equal protection

if it was motivated by discriminatory animus and its application results in a


discriminatory effect. See Village of Arlington Heights v. Metro. Housing Dev.

Corp., 429 U.S. 252, 264-65 (1977).

Hayden v. County of Nassau, 180 F.3d 42, 48 (2d Cir. 1999). 

  Discrimination on the basis of religion is a violation of equal protection. See 

City of New Orleans v. Dukes, 427 U.S. 297, 303 (1976) (citing religion as an “inherently


suspect distinction”); see also Bd. of Educ. of Kiryas Joel Vill. Sch. Dist. v. Grumet, 512 U.S.


687, 715 (1994) (O’Connor, J., concurring); McDaniel v. Paty, 435 U.S. 618, 644 (1978) (“In my


view, the Religion Clauses the Free Exercise Clause, the Establishment Clause, the Religious


Test Clause, Art. VI, cl. 3, and the Equal Protection Clause as applied to religion all speak with


one voice on this point: Absent the most unusual circumstances, one’s religion ought not affect


one’s legal rights or duties or benefits.”). Similarly, “national origin . . . [is] so seldom relevant


to the achievement of any legitimate state interest that laws grounded in such considerations are


deemed to reflect prejudice and antipathy.” City of Cleburne, Tex. v. Cleburne Living Ctr., 473


Case 1:17 cv 00480   Document 6 1   Filed 01/28/17   Page 11 of 27 PageID #: 63


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5253-000002

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



 11

U.S. 432, 440 (1985). Therefore, a government action based on animus against, and that has a


discriminatory effect on, Muslims or individuals from the countries in question violates the equal


protection component of the Due Process Clause.

  Petitioners allege that their rights under the equal protection component of the Due


Process Clause will be violated by government action that will be applied in a discriminatory


fashion. Applying a general law in a fashion that discriminates on the basis of a suspect


classification violates the Due Process Clause. See Hayden v. County of Nassau, 180 F.3d 42, 48


(2d Cir. 1999); Yick Wo v. Hopkins, 118 U.S. 356, 373-74 (1886). President Trump made it clear


while signing the EO that it will be applied particularly against Muslims and that Christians will


be given preference. See Michael D. Shear & Helene Cooper, Trump Bars Refugees and Citizens


of 7 Muslim Countries, N.Y. Times (Jan. 27, 2017), https://www.nytimes.com/2017/01/27/us

/politics/trump-syrian-refugees.html (“[President Trump] ordered that Christians and others from


minority religions be granted priority over Muslims.”); Carol Morello, Trump Signs Order


Temporarily Halting Admission of Refugees, Promises Priority for Christians, Wash. Post (Jan.


27, 2017), https://www.washingtonpost.com/world/national-security/trump-approves-extreme-

vetting-of-refugees-promises-priority-for-christians/2017/01/27/007021a2-e4c7-11e6-a547-

5fb9411d332c story.html?utm term .c30584b100c2. It is clear from the President’s public


statements that the EO will be applied in a manner that disfavors individuals of one religious


group, Islam, and favors individuals of other religious groups. This differential application will


violate the equal protection component of the Due Process Clause. 

  Petitioners allege that their rights under the equal protection component of the Due


Process Clause were violated by government action motivated by forbidden discriminatory


animus against individuals from certain countries and Muslims and with a discriminatory effect
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against individuals from certain countries and Muslims. See Jana-Rock Const., Inc. v. N.Y. State


Dep’t of Econ. Dev., 438 F.3d 195, 204 (2d Cir. 2006) (“Government action . . . violates


principles of equal protection ‘if it was motivated by discriminatory animus and its application


results in a discriminatory effect.’”); see also Hunter v. Underwood, 471 U.S. 222 (1985);


Mhany Mgmt., Inc. v. Cty. of Nassau, 819 F.3d 581, 605-13 (2d Cir. 2016). “When there is a


proof that a discriminatory purpose has been a motivating factor in the decision, . . . judicial


deference is no longer justified.” Vill. of Arlington Heights v. Metro. Hous. Dev. Corp., 429 U.S.


252, 265 66 (1977). Petitioners challenging such facially neutral laws on equal protection


grounds bear the burden of making out a “prima facie case of discriminatory purpose.” To


establish a prima facie case of discriminatory purpose, the Second Circuit has applied “the


familiar Arlington Heights factors.” Mhany Mgmt., Inc. v. Cty. of Nassau, 819 F.3d at 606 (citing


Vill. of Arlington Heights v. Metro. Hous. Dev. Corp., 429 U.S. 252 at 266-7). The Arlington


Heights test looks to the impact of the official action, whether there has been a clear pattern


unexplainable on other grounds besides discrimination, the historical background of the decision,


the specific sequence of events leading up to the challenged decision, and departures from the


normal procedural sequence. Substantive departures may also be relevant “if the factors usually


considered important by the decisionmaker strongly favor a decision contrary to the one


reached.” Vill. of Arlington Heights v. Metro. Hous. Dev. Corp., 429 U.S. at 266-7. 

In this case, the Arlington Heights factors are clearly met. The impact of the EO will


clearly fall disproportionately on Muslims and individuals from the countries cited in the EO. As


an initial matter, when asked about his proposed ban on Muslims in a July 2016 interview with


NBC’s Meet the Press, the then Republican presidential nominee explained, “I’m looking now at


territory. People were so upset when I used the word ‘Muslim’: ‘Oh, you can’t use the word
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“Muslim.”’ Remember this. And I’m okay with that, because I’m talking territory instead of


Muslim.” See Jenna Johnson, Donald Trump Is Expanding His Muslim Ban, Not Rolling It Back,


Washington Post (July 24, 2016), https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/post-

politics/wp/2016/07/24/donald-trump-is-expanding-his-muslim-ban-not-rolling-it-

back/?utm term .139272f67dd2. Consistent with this statement, the countries targeted by the


EO are all majority Muslim.  

When signing the EO, furthermore, President Trump publicly promised that under the


EO, preference will be given to Christians from the “countries of concern.” See Michael D. Shear


& Helene Cooper, Trump Bars Refugees and Citizens of 7 Muslim Countries, N.Y. Times (Jan.


27, 2017), https://www.nytimes.com/2017/01/27/us/politics/trump-syrian-refugees.html


(“[President Trump] ordered that Christians and others from minority religions be granted


priority over Muslims.”); Carol Morello, Trump Signs Order Temporarily Halting Admission of


Refugees, Promises Priority for Christians, Wash. Post (Jan. 27, 2017),


https://www.washingtonpost.com/world/national-security/trump-approves-extreme-vetting-of-

refugees-promises-priority-for-christians/2017/01/27/007021a2-e4c7-11e6-a547-

5fb9411d332c story.html?utm term .c30584b100c2. It is clear from the President’s public


statements that the EO is intended not only to target Muslim-majority countries, but also to have


a disparate impact between Muslims and Christians from the same countries. 

The historical background of this decision reveals a long line of public statements by


President Trump indicating animus towards Muslims. See Theodore Schleifer, Donald Trump: ‘I


think Islam hates us’, CNN (Mar. 10, 2016), http://www.cnn.com/2016/03/09/politics/donald-

trump-islam-hates-us. The sequence of events leading up to this decision reveals that President


Trump has long publicly stated that he plans to ban Muslims from entering the United States.
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See, e.g, Donald J. Trump, Donald J. Trump Statement On Preventing Muslim Immigration,


(Dec. 7, 2015), https://www.donaldjtrump.com/press-releases/donald-j.-trump-statement-on-

preventing-muslim-immigration (“Donald J. Trump is calling for a total and complete shutdown


of Muslims entering the United States until our country's representatives can figure out what is


going on.”); Abby Phillip and Abigail Hauslohner, Trump on the Future of Proposed Muslim


Ban, Registry: ‘You know my plans’, Wash. Post (Dec. 22, 2016), https://www.washingtonpost

.com/news/post-politics/wp/2016/12/21/trump-on-the-future-of-proposed-muslim-ban-registry-

you-know-my-plans/?utm term .a22a50598ea3. 

The EO also represents a substantive departure from previous policy. The named


petitioners or their families provided important assistance to the United States military, because


of which they were offered entry to the country. Detaining individuals who provided valuable


support to our military, at risk of their lives, is not justified by the factor given by the


decisionmaker in favor of the decision: America’s national security. As Major General Paul D.


Eaton testified before Congress, this would endanger, not protect our national security: “We have


a moral obligation to assist those who have allied themselves in our mission in Iraq. Failure to


keep the faith with those who have thrown their lot in with us will hurt us; will certainly hurt us


in future counterinsurgency efforts.” Iraqi Volunteers, Iraqi Refugees: What is America’s


Obligation?: Hearing before the Subcomm. on The Middle East and South Asia of the H. Comm.


on Foreign Affairs, 110th Cong. 34 (2007) (Statement of Major General Paul D. Eaton USA,


Ret.). 

Given the disparate impact of the EO, a historical background of public statements of


animus against Muslims, the specific sequence of promises by President Trump that he would


“ban” Muslims, and the substantive departure from prior policy on the basis of factors that
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strongly favor a decision other than the one reached, the Arlington Heights factors are clearly


met. See Vill. of Arlington Heights v. Metro. Hous. Dev. Corp., 429 U.S. at 266-7. Petitioners

have therefore asserted a prima facie claim of discriminatory purpose and of discriminatory


impact. It is the government’s burden to rebut the resulting “presumption of unconstitutional


action.” Washington v. Davis, 426 U.S. 229, 241 (1976).

D. Count Five – Administrative Procedure Act

   Finally, Defendants’ actions in detaining and mistreating Petitioners and other members


of the proposed class were arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in


accordance with law; contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity; in excess of


statutory jurisdiction, authority, or limitations, or short of statutory right; and without observance


of procedure required by law, in violation of the Administrative Procedure Act (APA), 5 U.S.C.


§§ 706(2)(A)-(D). 

  The scope of this Court’s review is delineated by 5 U.S.C. § 706, which provides that the


“reviewing court shall . . .  hold unlawful and set aside agency action . . . found to be “(A)


arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law; (B)


contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity; (C) in excess of statutory


jurisdiction, authority, or limitations, or short of statutory right; . . . [or] (D) without observance


of procedure required by law . . . .” 5 U.S.C. § 706(2) (emphasis added).  The APA provides


further that, “[t]o the extent necessary to decision and when presented, the reviewing court shall

decide all relevant questions of law, interpret constitutional and statutory provisions, and


determine the meaning or applicability of the terms of an agency action.” Id. § 706 (emphasis


added). Under the APA, this Court reviews errors of de novo. Andrew Lange, Inc. v. F.A.A., 208


F.3d 389, 391 (2d Cir. 2000).
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  Respondents detained and mistreated Petitioners and other members of the proposed class


solely pursuant to the January 27th EO, which expressly discriminates against Petitioners on the


basis of their country of origin and was substantially motivated by animus toward Muslims, in


violation of the equal protection component of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment.

See supra Part I-C. The EO exhibits hostility to a specific religious faith, Islam, and gives


preference to other religious faiths, principally Christianity. Respondents’ actions were therefore


“contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity, in violation of § 706(2)(B). 

 Further, the INA forbids discrimination in issuance of visas based on a person’s race,


nationality, place of birth, or place of residence. 8 U.S.C. § 1152(a)(1)(A). This section


establishes a non-discrimination principle that extends to the agency’s processing of applicants


for entry at the border. Were this not so, this section would have no practical effect, since CBP


could simply deny entry to individuals based on the above prohibited characteristics to


individuals whom DHS had otherwise duly issued a visa. Respondents’ detention and


mistreatment of Petitioners and other members of the proposed class, despite their possession of


valid entry documents, is therefore contrary to the INA and in violation of 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(C). 

  As set forth in Parts I-A, supra, Respondents’ actions also violated procedural


requirements of the Fifth Amendment and the Immigration and Nationality Act by seeking to


return Petitioners and members of the proposed class to their home countries without the


opportunity to present claims for asylum or other forms of humanitarian protection. Individuals


arriving at United States ports of entry must afforded an opportunity to apply for asylum or other


forms of humanitarian protection and be promptly received and processed by United States


authorities. 8 U.S.C. § 1158(a)(1); see also id. § 1225(b)(1)(A)(ii). The Immigration and


Nationality Act and implementing regulations, including 8 U.S.C. § 1225(b)(1) (expedited
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removal), 8 C.F.R. §§ 235.3(b)(4), 208.30, and 1003.42; 8 U.S.C. § 1158 (asylum), and 8 U.S.C.


§ 1231(b)(3) (withholding of removal), and the United Nations Convention Against Torture


(“CAT”), implemented in the Foreign Affairs Reform and Restructuring Act of 1998


(“FARRA”), Pub.L. No. 105-277, div. G, Title XXII, § 2242, 112 Stat. 2681, 2681-822 (1998)


(codified at 8 U.S.C. § 1231 note), entitle Petitioners to an opportunity to apply for asylum,


withholding of removal, and CAT relief. Petitioners’ actions, in violating the procedural


requirements of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment and these various statutory


provisions, also violate § 706(2)(D) of the APA, which prohibits agency action taken “without


observance of procedure required by law.” 

  For all of the reasons set forth in this section, Petitioners’ challenged actions were


“arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law.” 5 U.S.C.


§ 706(2)(A). In addition, Respondents’ actions were arbitrary and capricious for their failure to


consider “all relevant issues and factors.” Long Island Head Start Child Dev. Servs. v. N.L.R.B.,


460 F.3d 254 (2d Cir. 2006) (citing Motor Vehicle Mfrs. Ass’n v. State Farm Mut. Auto Ins. Co.,


463 U.S. 29, 48-49 (1983)). Under State Farm, for an agency action to survive arbitrary-and-

capricious review, it “must examine the relevant data and articulate a satisfactory explanation for


its action including a rational connection between the facts found and the choice made.” State


Farm, 463 U.S. at 43 (internal quotation omitted). This “hard look” standard exceeds the


“rational basis” standard applied under the Due Process Clause. Id. at 43 n.9. Here, the


Government has failed to consider many relevant issues and factors, including evidence


regarding the low risk to U.S. citizens posed by refugees, the relative risk presented by those


arriving on different visa categories.

II. Without a Stay of Removal, Petitioners Face Irreparable Harm 
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  Along with the likelihood of success on the merits, the irreparable injury inquiry is one of


“the most critical” factors in adjudicating stay applications. Nken, 556 U.S. at 433. Without a


stay of removal, Petitioners and class members will suffer irreparable harm for three main


reasons: (1) near certain return to their country of origin, where they may face threats of


persecution, death, and torture, (2) inability to effectively communicate with legal counsel from


outside the United States; and, (3) the harm that would be inflicted on Petitioners’ and class


members’ families, who are lawfully present in the United States. 

  Mr. Darweesh and Mr. Alshawi, as well as members of the proposed class, likely face


serious bodily harm, persecution, and death absent a stay of removal. Both Mr. Darweesh and


Mr. Alshawi either worked for the United States government and its contractors in Iraq, or have


ties to immediate family members that did so. See ECF No. 1, ¶¶ 4, 18-20, 43. Due to this


association, Mr. Darweesh faced repeated threats from militant groups within Iraq, leading him


to apply for a Special Immigrant Visa to leave Iraq and come to the United States. Id. ¶¶ 20-22.


Similarly, Mr. Alshawi’s wife worked for a U.S. contractor, the Falcon Security Group in Iraq.


Id. ¶ 43. Due to this association, local insurgents targeted Mr. Alshawi’s family, killing his


sister-in-law’s husband and inflicting serious bodily harm on his sister-in-law and niece. Id. ¶ 44.


As a result, Mr. Alshawi’s wife applied for refugee status, and, after arriving in the United


States, filed a “Follow to Join” visa for Mr. Alshawi.

  Nevertheless, despite the fact that Petitioners and class members have lawful entry


documents, see id. ¶¶ 30, 46, Respondents will likely return them to the country from which their


travel originated or their country of origin, placing their lives in imminent danger. See EO Sec.


3(c); 8 U.S.C. § 1231(b)(1)(A) (arriving aliens denied entry “shall be removed to the country in


which the alien boarded the vessel or aircraft on which the alien arrived in the United States”).
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Congress itself has expressed grave concern for the plight that individuals in Petitioners’ position


face. See H.R. 110-158 at 2 (2007) (“The[] work [of Iraqi and Afghani translators] for the United


States government often makes them targets of death squads, militias, and al-Qaeda. Many


translators and interpreters are forced into hiding and are unable to escape this threat.”); The


Plight of Refugees, Hearing Before the S. Judiciary Comm., 110 Cong. Rec. 2 (2007) (statement


of Sen. Ted Kennedy) (noting severe danger many refugees face). 

  Other members of the proposed class, which according to statements by CBP officials,


include at least “dozens and dozens” of additional individuals detained at JFK Airport (not to


mention an unknown number of additional persons detained at other airports across the nation),

also face a strong likelihood of serious bodily, persecution, and death due to enforcement of the


EO. Many putative class members have been previously screened by the U.S. Refugee


Admissions Program to determine whether they have “well-founded fear of persecution”, see 8


U.S.C. § 1101(42), and issued a visa for entry to the United States as a form of humanitarian


protection. Members of the proposed class are fleeing the world’s most war-torn and violent


countries, which have prompted a massive exodus as innocent victims like class member flee to


safety in recent years. See, e.g., 162 Cong. Rec. S4354 (2016) (Statement of Sen. Leahy) (“Over


the past 5 years, the world has witnessed millions of Syrians desperately fleeing the terror


inflicted by ISIS and Bashar Al-Assad’s regime …. As a humanitarian leader among nations, the


United States must play a significant role in efforts to resettle those displaced by this devastating


conflict.”); Anne Barnard, Death Toll From War in Syria Now 470,000, Group Finds, N.Y.


Times (Feb. 11, 2016), https://www.nytimes.com/2016/02/12/world/middleeast/death-toll-from-

war-in-syria-now-470000-group-finds.html; Chris Hughes, Half a Million Refugees gather in


Libya to Attempt Perilous Crossing to Europe, The Guardian (June 6, 2015), https://www.the
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guardian.com/world/2015/jun/06/cameron-merkel-at-odds-resettle-refugees-europe-migration.


Thus, denial of entry to United States  despite preapproved and lawful entry documents  places


Petitioners and class members in grave danger, given that they lack legal status anywhere other


than the United States and their country of origin. See ECF No. 1, ¶¶ 30, 46 (describing


Petitioners’ entry documents).

  Second, Petitioners and other class members will face extreme difficulty in pursuing their


claims to lawful entry to the United States if removed from the United States. Respondents have


detained Petitioners and other members of the proposed class and are holding or have held them


in temporary detention facilities. ECF No. 1, ¶¶ 4-5. If Respondents continue to detain members


of the proposed class and permit access to them, counsel and Petitioners will be able to


communicate, gather facts, and ensure that Petitioners are adequately represented in their


removal claims. In contrast, removal will significantly hinder counsel’s ability to contact their


clients, provide for interpretation, and identify other class members that detained pursuant to the


January 27 EO. 

While all class members’ removal or forced departure from the United States should be


stayed, stays of removal are especially justified in Petitioners’ cases given their status as class


representatives. See ECF No. 4, ¶¶ 28-38. Petitioners have submitted a motion to certify a class


in which they serve as representatives, see ECF No. 4, and thus removing them would severely


impede their ability to adequately represent the class. See United States ex. rel. Sero v. Preiser,


506 F2d 1115, 1125-26 (2d Cir. 1974) (outlining standards for representative habeas class


actions).

  Finally, Petitioners’ and putative class members’ U.S. citizen, Lawful Permanent


Resident, and immigrant family members present in the United States will face certain


Case 1:17 cv 00480   Document 6 1   Filed 01/28/17   Page 21 of 27 PageID #: 73


Document ID: 0.7.10904.5253-000002

Obtained by Judicial Watch, Inc. Via FOIA



 21

irreparable harm if Respondents forced Petitioners’ departure. Indeed, Respondents have


prevented Petitioners from reuniting with family members, who were either already present in


the United States or released upon departing the plane in JFK. See ECF No. 1, ¶¶ 32-33, 41-42.


The forced separation has already provoked fear and emotional trauma among Petitioners’ family


members, as they face the strong possibility that they may not see their husband or father again.


See Michael D. Shear & Nicholas Kulish, Trump’s Order Blocks Immigrants at Airports, Stoking


Fear Around Globe, N.Y. Times (Jan. 28, 2017), https://www.nytimes.com/2017/01/28/us

/refugees-detained-at-us-airports-prompting-legal-challenges-to-trumps-immigration-order.html

(describing the reactions of Mr. Alshawi’s family to his continued detention in JFK and the


possibility that he may be removed). Should Respondents remove Petitioners and other class


members, they and their family members will likely face years, if not a lifetime of separation 

or may never see each again, should class members be forced to return to the danger in their


countries of origin. Thus, Petitioners and class members face a clear and strong threat of


irreparable injury, and this factor weighs strongly in favor of granting the motion to stay.   

III. The Issuance of a Stay Will Not Substantially Injure the Government, and the


Public Interest Lies in Granting Petitioner’s Request for a Stay of Removal

The Court in Nken found that the last two stay factors, injury to other parties in the


litigation and the public interest, merge in immigration cases because Respondent is both the


opposing litigant and the public interest representative.  Nken, 556 U.S. at 435. The Court also


noted that the interest of Respondent and the public in the “prompt execution of removal orders”


is heightened where “the alien is particularly dangerous” or “has substantially prolonged his stay


by abusing the process provided to him.” Nken, 556 U.S. at 436 (citations omitted).  Here,


neither of these factors nor any other factors exist to suggest that the Respondent or the public


have any interest in Petitioners’ removal beyond the general interest noted in Nken. Furthermore,
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the Nken Court recognized the “public interest in preventing aliens from being wrongfully


removed, particularly to countries where they are likely to face substantial harm.” See Nken, 556


U.S. at 436. The Petitioners in this case would both face substantial harm if removed, as would


their families, shifting the balance of hardship in favor of staying their removal. 

Mr. Darweesh is not a danger or a threat to the United States, and he faces substantial


harm if removed. He faithfully served the U.S. government for over ten years, for which he was


granted a Special Immigrant Visa (SIV) after facing serious threats on account of his service.


Before he was approved for the SIV, he passed through an interview at the U.S. Embassy in


Baghdad, security background checks, and a medical examination. See Complaint, ¶¶ 28-29,


ECF No. 1.

From March 20, 2003 to September 30, 2013, Mr. Darweesh worked as an interpreter for


the U.S. Army 101st Airborne and the 91st Engineering Unit at the Baghdad Airport, among


other U.S. contracting roles. Id. ¶¶ 18-19. As a result of Mr. Darweesh’s association with the


U.S. Armed Forces, he was targeted by both the Baghdad police and men he had strong reasons


to believe were terrorists. Id. ¶¶ 20-21. Because of those threats and his service to the U.S.


government, Mr. Darweesh applied for and received an Iraqi Special Immigrant Visa, a program


specifically created to provide protection to Iraqis and Afghans who face or have faced serious


threats on account of their service to the United States. Id. ¶¶ 22-23. 

In addition, this Court should consider the harm that Mr. Darweesh’s wrongful removal


would cause his family members. Mr. Darweesh is married and has three children, the youngest


of whom is seven years old. His wife and children also received SIVs and were able to make it


through passport control and customs, where they were separated from their husband and father.


Nicholas Kulish and Manny Fernandez, Refugees Detained at U.S. Airports; Trump Immigration
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Order is Challenged (Jan. 28, 2017). Because Mr. Darweesh is neither particularly dangerous


nor did he “substantially prolong his stay by abusing the process provided to him,” the public


interest in preventing his wrongful removal outweighs the government’s general interest in


prompt removal, especially in light of the substantial harm he faces and the harm his wife and


children would suffer if he were removed. 

Mr. Alshawi likewise does not pose a danger or threat to the United States and would


face substantial harm if removed. Before granting his Follow to Join (FTJ) visa category F2A,


the U.S. Embassy in Stockholm determined that Mr. Alshawi is not a security threat to the


United States. Id. ¶ 41. He is attempting to join his wife, Duniyya Alshawi, and their seven-year-

old son in Houston, Texas, where they have been living for 3 years. Id. ¶¶ 42, 45; see also

Michael D. Shear & Nicholas Kulish, Trump’s Order Blocks Immigrants at Airports, Stoking


Fear Around Globe, N.Y. Times (Jan. 28, 2017), https://www.nytimes.com/2017/01/28/us

/refugees-detained-at-us-airports-prompting-legal-challenges-to-trumps-immigration-order.html.

Ms. Alshawi worked for a U.S. contractor from 2006-2007, as did her brother. See ECF No. 1, ¶


43. As a result of their connection to the U.S. military, insurgents believed they were


collaborators. Id. Then, “[i]n 2010, insurgents attempted to kidnap Ms. Alshawi’s brother. A


month later, an IED placed on Mr. Alshawi’s sister-in-law’s car detonated, killing her husband


and severly injuring her and her daughter.” Id. ¶ 44. After those incidents of violence, Mr. and


Ms. Alshawi moved from Baghdad to Erbil, Iraq out of fear for their safety. Id.  

Mr. Alshawi’s wrongful removal would not only result in a serious risk of substantial


harm to him, but would also cause harm to his wife and seven-year-old son. Ms. Alshawi and


their son applied for refugee status in January 2011 and were approved to travel to Houston


through the Priority 2-Direct Access Program (P2-DAP) in January 2014. Id. ¶ 45. They have
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since adjusted status to become lawful permanent residents. Id. Ms. Alshawi filed for an FTJ visa


for her husband, and Mr. Alshawi obtained a U.S. Foil Type ZZ (Visa 92) on January 11, 2017,


prepared at the request of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS). Id. Mr. Alshawi and his


family face substantial harm if he were to be removed; thus, the balance of hardships weighs in


favor of staying his removal. 

Respondent cannot make any particularized showing that granting Petitioners a stay of


removal would substantially injure its interests or conflict with the public interest in preventing a


wrongful removal, such that the third and fourth Nken factors would outweigh the hardship


Petitioners would face if removed.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, this Court should grant Petitioners’ motion for a stay of


removal.

DATED: January 28, 2017
New Haven, Connecticut
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